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' HEARINGS ON FOREIGN LANGUAGE AND
INTERNATIONAL STUDIES ,

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 1980

@ House OF REPRESENTATIVES, * .-
SUBCOMMITTEE ON SELECT EDUCATION,
COMMITTEE. ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, D.C.

 The Subcommittee on Select Education convened at 1:05. p.m.,

Hon. Paiil Simon (chairman of the subcommittee) presiding. :
Members present: Representatives Simon, Stack; and Erdahl.
Staff present: Nick Penning, staff assistant; Cheryl Kinsey, re-

. search assistant; Dianna Cregger, executive secretary; Jennifer

~ Vance, minority senior legislative associate; Terri Sneider, minor-
ity legislative associate. . ‘
“Mr. Smmon. Good afternoon. The Subcommittee on Select Educa-
. tion will come iu order for the purpose of hearing testimony on
H.R. 7580 and House Concurrent Resolution 301. H.R: 7580, intro-
duced by Mr. Panetta and myself, would provide for (per.capita
grants to- reimburse elementary schools and institutions of higher
education for part of the costs-of providing foreign language in-

. struction. -

*. House” Concurrent Resolution 301, introduced by Mrs. Fenwick,
Mr. Panktta, Mr. de la Garza and myself, expresses the feeling. of
Congress that there is a need to strengthen course offerings and

requirements in foreign language and international studies in the

Nation’s schools; colleges, and universities. _

As the report of the President’s Commission on Foreign Lan-
guage and International Studies states, competence in foreign lan-
guages is vital to all Ameri¢ans; a weakness in these areas poses a
great threat to Americd’s security and economit- viability. In a
democratic society like,ours, leadership cannot be effective without
a well-informed citizenry. ' ~

In reality; however, programs and institutions for education and

A

training for foreign language and international studies are both -

currently inadequate and actually falling further behind. -
. We hope that this legislation will pave the way for a renewed
emphasis on foreign language and .international studies in the

“years 10 come. . '
{Th text of H. Con. Res. 301 follows:] °

(9%
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oo H CON. RES. 301

Expressing the sense of the (ungrus that there is a need to slr(nglh( nocourse
offerings and requirements in foreign langruage studies _and lnltrlmllnnu\
studies'in the Nation's se h(mls colleges, and universities.

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
Mareir 12, 1980 .
Mr. Sistox dor himsell, Mrs, Frswiek, Mr. PANETTS, and Mr. bE LA Garzae
submitted the following concurren resolution; which was geferred o the

. Committee on Edueation and Labor
s E

)

- . . - N

CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

hxpressmg the sense of the Congress that there is a need tu
strengthen course offerings and requirements in foreign lan-
guage studies and international studies in the Nation'

schools, colleges and universities.

Whereas a knowledge of other languiges and cultures 1s neces
sary to keep American business competmvc in world trade,

I ] Wheréas the continued cffecuveness of Amcncan foreign polu\
dcpcnds upon diplomatic .and intelligence-gathering effort-
which are based upon a sound knowledge of the world:

e

Whereas in our democratie society it is essential for the general
public to understand world events so that official policie:
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will reflect - the "concerns a-x\_d‘intcres“ts of the American
people; ' _
Whereas a knowledge of foreign languages and cultures can
help to lmprove mutual und rstandmg among dlffercnt

PR

-ethnic grou‘pe‘ and cultures thhm Amcrlcan socxety,
\Whereas the past decade saw an alarming dcc]me in the 8t udv,
of foreign ]anguages and international issues in the Nation’s

schools, co]]cgcs, and universities, despite ‘the growing im-
portance of these subjects to the welfare of our Nation and

our pcop]e _

Whereas the President’s Commission on Foreign Language and
International Studies has recommended that greater cmpha-
sis nceds to be placed on the study of these subjects; and

W hereas the week. of March 23 through March 29 has been
proclaimed “Foreign Language Week™: Now, therefore, be
it ' ‘

1 Resolved by the House of Representatives (the Senate

Y9 ‘concurring), That it is the sense of the Cohg?ess that ‘school -

o

authorities and college and university administrators should

o,

consider strengthening the ztudy of foreign languages and
5 cultures through appro&riate actions, including the fol]owing:‘
6 the gradual estab]ishmem of requirements for the study of
T J forcign l>a"n‘guages and cultures for entrance to postsecondary
8 ins.tit_utions; the addition of foreign language studies “and in-
9 ternational studies as rt:(‘]uircmcrits for col]cg; graduation;
10 the improvement of mtcrnanona] studies in the curriculum at
11 all levels of education; the offcring of a wider variety of lan-

a

12 guages at the secondary school level; and the placing of
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}1 greater c.mphasis.on the teaching of foreign languages and

/,-'2 cultures for elementary schoolchildren.

y
" D -
-
2
- .
t - .
\
*
\ .
. y
A
'
- . -
$ -
.
—— J
r .
w
>
\
.
. 2
‘ 9
“ .
\
e P
- L3
@



-\

. ’ s - . .«
. - ;
. . 5
v - ; . . i
.

.+ aMr. Simon. Beforé 1 introdlice.our first distinguished witness, let
Tne say for the record I noted the results of the’ electién yesterday

* * in Florida, ahd we sre going to lose the service of Sur.distinguished ..

colleague to my right, Mr. Ed. Stack. He has been a marvelous
constructive, positive_force on this subcommittee and in the House,
. and I simply want the record to show that I think not only this
subcommiittec and out fult~committee, but this Congress and the
‘Nation, laVe suffered a loss, when Ed Stack lost this election.”
° - I'd like to call on Mr. Erdahl. ' _ : e
Mr. ErpaHL. If the chairman would yield, I would just like to
_identify myself with those comments and sentiments, because as a
.member of the minority on this committee and the Congress, I, too,
havé been. impressed with Kd and his dedication, his grasp of the
4 issues, and certainly his loss is also across party lines. I think it’s .
not only a loss to this Congress, but also to his district back in
Florida. But we wish him the very best and we know that things
still lie ahead for our good friend Ed Stack.
Mr. Simon. We're going to have rebuttal now here. [Laughter.]
Mr. Stack. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Mr. Erdahl, for your
kind comments. I am not the only person present in this room who
has lost an election. I'think what has constituted in my view a
public disgerviece—and I will not make my remarks mcre pointed,
but’ let mle say that there are worse things in life than losing
elections, and I will ‘not disappear, and I will be here to the best. "
.extent that I can in- the days-that lie ahead, and I accept this
verdict gracicusly and gracefully, I hope. And certainly I want to -
say it’s been a great pleasure to serve with such distinguished
colleagues, and I 'commend them for the work thgy have done on
, .- this subcommittee; and I will, at the end of this sessipn, share your
work to the extent possible. Thank you. .
Mr. SimoN. Thank you. : . ]
Qur first witness is the rerson he referred to as one who has also
i -suffered defeat, and you may well emulate him, Ed, because he has
" contributed significantly after that, as he did prior to that. He has
been one of the giants of the Senate in this centiiry. o
One of the things I have seen ‘time and time again, visiting in
other countries is to have people come up, a cabinet member or
someone come up and say, “Well, I was a Fulbright scholar.” And
it is a pleasure to welcome as our first witness kere today Senafdr
Fulbright, the author of that act, and a leader in so. many ways in
this whole field. -+,
Senator, we are pleased to have you here.
Senator Fulbright. ‘ :

- STATEMENT OF HON. J. W. FULBRIGHT, FORMER U.S. SENATOR

C e Senator FuLBriGHT. Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I am very -
honored to be invited. It's a rare privilege to be invited before
anybody in either Congress. I think it’s the second time I have-been
so. | am the one who is honored by the invitation. The thought that -
I have anything to contribute to it is very gratifying. ' :

I apologize to the committee for not being able to submit the
usual copies in advance, but I, ‘as you know, am a private citizen
and I was just last week, as a matter of fact, at the convention of
the Fulbright Alumni Association, and I've been out of town, so I

e
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was a httle delayed in - preparing it. But Im sure the committee

won't suffer, but the trouble is the chairman knows more about. .

.this’and has followed it more carefully than I have in recent years,

but I hope you will accept my short statement for Whatit’s wdrth,
andI do have a few comments that I would like to make

4 1 don't know whtat the.time limit is. I'll try to make.it very brlef .

Mr. SimoN. You take whatever time yoy wish.

Senator FuLBriGHT. Well, I am “convincded that these two meas-
ures whlch are before the committee concern one of‘the most
pressing néeds of our‘country, but at the same time they deal with

a problem which does not-lend itself to a quick -or early solutlon :
. These bills concern. a deficiency in our public education wh1ch chas

been for many years growing into a major scandal. N
I think I referred earlier to two reports-that I wish to quote

.from. I recognize that the chairman is a member. of one of the

bodies, and participated in' it, but newvertheless for the record I
think it's important. I want to quote a few pas ages from the
report: to the President, from the President’s Comnission on For-
eign - Language and International Studies, commonly referred to as
the Perkins report, after its chairman, Dr. James Perkins. ’

. From that report-I wish to read Jjust a few paragraphs as back-
ground, and I quote: ‘

The President’s Commission has devoted a year to an mtensnve evaluatloﬁ of the
state of foreign language and irternational studies and their impact.on.the nation’s
.internal and external strenEth We are profoundly alarmed by what we have found;

is country’s language and research capacity, at a tnme
when an increasingly hazardous international military, political and economic envi-

" ronment is making unprécedented demands on America’s resources, intellectual .

capacity and public sensitivity.

Nothing less is at issue than the nation’s secunty National secunty, moreover, "

cannot be safely defined ‘and: protected within .the narrow framework of defense,
diplomacy and economics, A nation’s welfare depends in large' measure on the
intellectual dnd psychological strengths that are derived from perceptive visions of
the world beyond its own boundaries.

Americans’ scandalous incompetence in foreign languages also explams our dan-
gerously inadequate understandirg of world affairs. Our schools graduate, a large
majority of students whose knowledge and vision stops at the American shoreline,
whoee approach to international affairs is provlncnal and whose heads have been
filled w1th astonishing misinformation. .

/

Mr. Chairman, there is a ‘great deal more in that report with
supporting. evidence to persuade any reasonable person that we
have reglected one of the most”important elements in our national
strength; that-is, our schools, and espec1ally the teachmg of lan-
guages and mternatwnal studles

Having observed and studied our foreign affalrs now for the last
40 years, 32-of which I'spent in the Congress, I am certain that the
eonclusions of the Perkin.report are sound. One need. not call to
‘this commiittee’s attention the fact our country, since it became a
major power in the world, has never faced such difficult and omi-
nous problems, with the p0551ble exception of the 1930 s, as it now
faces in its economic and political affairs.

'The measures which are before this committee cannot of course,

" alleviate-immediately these problems, but if we wish to continue as

a great and enlightened community, it is essential that they be
enacted and-implemented as soon as possible.

* I cannot and should not at this time take the committee’s time to
mention the different aspects of our dependence upon foreign

o
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sources for raw materials, many essential to our defense, and cer-
tainly to our industrial life, the consequences of the continuing
deficit in the balance of payments and a decline in our prestige and
influence in the world. That's quite evident, I think, to anyone who

reads a newspaper. B

[ would like, however, to suggest that the committee ¢onsider in

‘connection with the Perkins report which, of course, is available to .

vou, another report recently submitted io the National Science
Foundation by Dr. Izaak Wirszup of Chicago University.

I thought perhaps you were not as familiar with this report. It's
very recent. I sent for it and got a.copy from Dr. Wirszup.

This report consists of a comparative study of the .teaching of
mathematics and science in the secondary schools of the Soviet

.Union and the United States. I may.say the National Science
Foundation commissioned Dr. Wirszup to make this study._Al-
.though it is not directly addressed®to the teaching of foreign lan-

guages, I am confident that comparison would yield similar results

~in’ that field, as well .as in the subject of Dr. Wirszup’s report.

I would like to give the committee just a few quotations frcin Dr.
Wirszup’s report, with the thought that you may wish to invite him
te give a special report, which I think would be very enlightening
to the Congress and to the Committee. v ‘\ _ i

He writes as follows—and I am here just selec ing a few pas-
sages—I-have the report—to give a little feel about the nature of it:

My investigations show conclusively that in the last decade the Soviets have made
simultaneous quartitative and qualitative gains without equal in the history of
their-education, affecting the entire young population. Lo

In June of 1978, after, years of extraordinary investment and effort culminating in
the introduction of compulsory 10-year schooling, over 5 million students graduated
from secondary schools of al types. a success rate of 97.7 percent. In the United
States, by contrast, fiearly 75 percent of all 17-year-olds—about 3,150,000 students—

graduate from high school.

Moreover, the extraordinary Soviet research .in the psychology and methods of .

learning and teaching mathematics has been applied in the new curriculum which
now surpasses in quality, scope, and range of implementation that of any other
country. : . ‘ ’

For the 98’ pel&:de.nt of the school age population that now completes secondary
school or it} e‘q‘ly'ulent, the Soviets have introduced science and mathematics
curricula whosé content and scope place them far uhead. of every other nation,
including the United States. Their foremost scholars and educators are engaged in
improving the school curricula and perfectiifg teaching methods in a concerted drive
to provide mass education of unmatched quality.

I should have put in this that Dr. Wirszup is professor of math-
ematics at the University of Chicago, an expert on Russian affairs,
and he teaches also computer sciencss, and is very highly regarded
in his field. : . '

In a recent study by the International Communication Agency, it
appears that not only the'Soviets, butyrance, Germany and Great
Britain also are making a substanti ly greater effort ‘than the
United States in cultural and informatlon programs. :

From a different spurce, which I thought was relevant to this, a '

House /of Representdtives -Committee on International Relations
it 1977 concluded:

(Significantly, in Soviet-third wolld cultural relations, the Soviet leadership ap-
péags to have placed its greatest opes for ultimate success in the academic ex-
change program.’ S - !
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In Latin America, which we like to think of as “our hemi- |
‘sphere,” the Soviets funded 4,650 grants in 1978; the principal U.S..

- agencies offered only 2,062 grants to civilians for serious ‘education-
al purposes, a¢cording to a recent report of the ICA.

There are, ] may say, extensive figures in this field available to
the committee, so I 'shall not burden the record further with them.
They are all in the report from the.ICA. - “

in cowclusion, I wrge this committee to report the bills under
consideiation favorably. They will encourage the revival of lan-
gugge and international studies which will enrich the lives of all
cur yeung people in the future. One can obtain a much better
appreciation of one’s own country against the background of knowl-
edge of the history and culture of other countries.

*  That has been the experience of more than 40,000 participants in
our national exchange program who have studied abroad.

I mentioned a moment 'ago_that I just attended the annual coh-
vention of the Fulbright Alumni Association, and there were a
great many testifying, these pdnels of people who said exactly that
point; that they never did appreciate the United States until they
had studied abroad and had a perspective on it from that experi-
ence. :

In calling the committee’s attention to the intensive efforts of
the Soviet Union to improve its educational program, I do not
suggest that the bills before the committee are dependent upon

- at 'the-Soviets may. be doing. This legislation is needed regard-
less of what the Soviets may do. AN v

It is sorely needed simply to give our people and our Government
an opportunity better to understand the nature of the internatibn-
al eommunity of which we are a part, a very important part, and -
to acquire a more realistic and accurate idea of the proper role for

* us to play.in that community. - = - & . S
As one of the two so-called: super-powers, we have .a.special -

- responsibility to cultivate a more cooperative spirit among nations

.. -and to minimize the possibility of a major war. _— , .
. Strategic power, of course, has a role in-our responsibility, but

we' sometimes give the impression, to-our friends as well as our

.adversaries, that military. power is all that we need to keep the

.7 ‘peace and to insure our future. In our preoccupation with military

.+ ' ‘power, we-are in danger of losing.our influence and prestige in the

~world simply because we lack the knowledge and understanding to

: .conduct our relations with other gountries in an effective and -

T rational manner. a : » Coe .
.. * Our material®prosperity has led us to believe that we are the’
“pnly virtuous- ‘and unselfish people -in. the world, -a proposition

. which many others find difficult to accept. . . ) .

- T, of course, believe that e do have many admirable qualities as
* < aation, but the least admirable is oursself-rightousness, and.to

. correct that we désperately need a much more effective educationgl .
program with emphasis upon international studies and foreign lan-
guages.-These are necessary, they are essential, to give us a true

perspective of our préper role in the world. S :
o ~Mr. Chairman, if timeé permits, T had a further thought this

"ot

morning 1 like to offer the committee. As we all know, to our
_sorrow, our complacency .and parochialism_has deceived ‘our lead-

S ’ N o
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ing industrialists for 20 years about the industrial progress being
made in such ‘countries as Japan and Germany. When Volkswagen
and Mercedes and Honda and Datsun and other companies began
about 30 years ago to produce modern &automobiles and electronic
machines of superior quality, our ieaders of industry were simply
incapable of understanding the obvious 51gn1ﬁcance of these accom-
plishments.

None of our leaders were aware of the tremendous changes that
were taking place in these countries. They were not aware primar-
ily because none of them were versed in the language and culture

.of those countries, and could not draw the proper conclusion even

from what they did read about in the papers.
The consequences of this lack of knowledge and awareness con-

front us today in the hundreds of thousands of unemployed in our .

steel, automobile, and electronic industry. The enormous and dan-
gerous deéficits in our balance of trade continue to erode the value
of the dollar and the confidence our best friends have in our
capacity to manage our affairs in a rational manner.

Our national egocentrism, coupled with our racial bias toward

foreigners, is largely respon51ble for the deplorable state of our

economy.
I am deeply concerned, Mr. Chairman, that we are following a

similar path toward the Soviet Union. We have an obsession about
Russian imperialism which tends to distort our judgment with
regard te the other developments taking place within the Soviet
Union. We tend to denigrate everything they do except in the field
of armaments and military power.

We have too few people in positivns of. leadership who under-
stand the people and culture of Russia, and we are likely ‘o ignore

the significance of the developments as clearly presented in the

Wirszup report. The progress they are making in their secondary
education confronts us with a challenge far more serious in the
long run than did the sputnik they putup in 1958.

-Our response to that event was immediate, it was dramatic and
successful in the NASA program of the 1960s. I am suggesting that
in light of the Perkins and the Wirszup reports read together, we
should respond with a program in education comparable in scope to

our response to sputnik. It is a ‘much. more subtle and difficult.

challenge to meet; but if we do not respond, ‘it is likely that we

shall encounter-in our international political affairs conditions sim-
ilar to those we are now faced with in.industry and commerce. -

So I, Mr. Chairman, believe that the bill before the committee is

an-essential first step toward meeting that challenge, and it is very

important that we begin now.
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
[The prepared statement of J. W. Fulbright follows: ]

PREPARED Syaresment oF Hos. J. W. FuLBrIGHT.- ForMer U.8. SenaTor
Mr. (hmrm'm I am honored bé your invitation tq, tesufy"on H.R. 7580.and H.

"Con. Res. 301.°1 apologue to the Committee for not being able to submit the usual

copies in advance, but [ am now a private citizen with timited resources for such a
task. I hope the Committee will accept my short statement and be willing to accept

" as part of my statement excerpts from two recent reports which are relevant to the

subject under consideration.

. First I wish to express my appreciation to Congressman Simon and his colleagues

for their initiative m introducing these bills. I am convinced they concern one of the

e e e
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most pressing needs of our country, but at the same time they deal with & problem
which does not not lend itself to a quick or early solution. These bills concern a
deficiency in  our public education which has been, for many years, growing into a
major scandal.

I referred above to certain reports, The first I wish to quote from is the “Report to
the President from the President's Commission on Foreign Languzge and Interna-
tional Studies,” commonly referred to as the Perkins Report after its Chairman, Dr.
James Perkins. ) i

If I may quote from that report:

“The President’s Commission has devoted a year to an intensive evaluation of the

state of foreign language ‘and
internal and external strength. We are profoundly afarmed by what we have found; -
40" a serious deterioration in this country's language and research capacity, at a time
R ‘when an increasingly hazardous international military, political and economic envi-
ronment is making unprecedented demands on America’s resources, intellectual
capacity and public sensitivity. v

"Not%ing lesh is. at issue than the nation’s et .ity. * ° * National security,

moreover, cannot safely be defined and protected within the narrow framework of
defense, diplomacy, and economics. A nation’s welfare depends in large measure on
the intellectual and psychological strengths that are:derived from perceptive visions
of the world beyond its own boundaries.
* »Americans’ scan-alous incompetence in forei _languages also explains our dan-
gerously inadequate understanding of world affgirs. Our schools graduate a large
majority of students whose knowledge and vision stops at the American shoreline,
whose approach to international affairs is provincial, and whose heads have beer
filled with astonishing misinformation.”

Mr. Chairman, there is much more in that report with sufpporting evidence to
persuade any reasonable person that we have neglected one o the most important
elements of our nationzl strength; that is our schools and especially the teaching of
languages and international studies. .o i - :

aving observed and studied our foreign affairs now for the last 40, years, 32 of
which I spent in the Congress, [ am certain that the conclusions of the Perkins
report are sound.-One need not call te this Committee’s attention the-fact that our
country since it became a major power in the world, has never faced such difficult
and ominou3 problems, with the possible exception of the thirties, as it now faces in
itc economic and political affairs. The measures which are before this Committee
cannot. of course, alleviite immediately these problems, but if we wish to continue
as a great and enlightened' community it is essential that they ‘be enacted and
implemented as soon as possible. - . )

I cannot take the Committee's time to mention the different aspects of our
dependence’ upon foreign. sources for our,raw materials, the consequences of . the :
continuing deficit in our balance of payments and the decline in our prestige and

influence in the world I would like, however, to suggest that the committee consid- *

er in connection with the Perkins report, another report recently submitted to the .
, National Science Foundation by Dr. lzaak Wirszup of Chicago University. This
« _-report consists of a comparative study of the teaching of mathematics and science in
.~ the secondary schools of the Soviet Union and the U.S. Although it is not directly
addressed to the teaching of foreign languages, I am .confident that comparison
- would yield similar results in that field as well as in science. )

international studies and their impact on the nation’s . °

1 would like to give the Committee a’ few quotations from Dr. Wirszup’s report,.

with the thought that _ou may wish to invite him to give you a Special report.

Dr. Wirszup writes as follows:” R .

. “My investigations show conclusively that in the last decade the Soviets have-
made simultaneous quantitative and qualitative gains without equal in: the history
of their education, affecting the entire young population. € o :

“In June of 1978, after years of extraordinary investment and effort culminating-
in the introduction (1975) of compulsory 10 year schooling; over 5 million students
graduated from secondary schools ‘of all types, a success rate of 97.7 percent. In the
United States, by contrast, nearly 75 percent of all 17 year' olds—about 3,150,000 -
students—graduate from high school. ~ a
- “Moreover, the extraordinary Soviet researchin the psychology and methods of
learning and teaching mathematics has been applied in the new curriculum, which .
now surpasses in quality, scope and range or implementation that of any other
country. : . h

“For-the 98 percent of the school age population that now completes secoridar;,

! school or its equivaleént, the Soviets have introduced science. and mathematics
curricula whose content and scope place them far ahead of every other nation,

including the United States.. Their foremost scholars-and educators are engaged in

-

. .
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improving the school curricula and perfectinF'vteaching methods in a concerted drive
to provide mass education of unmatched quality.”

n a fecent study by-the 1.C.A. it appears that not onlf' the Soviets but France,
Germany, and Great Britain also are making a substantially greater effort than the
U.S. in cultural and information programs. C

. From a different source we may note, a House of Representatives Committee on
International Relations. report in 1977 concluded: . .
“Significantly, in Soviet-third world cultural relations the Soviet leadership ap-
pears to have placed its greatest hopes for ltimaté success in the academic ex-
change program.” : ° c
In Latin America which we like to think of as “our hemisphere” the Soviets
funded 4,650 grants in 1978; the principal U.S. agencies offered only 2,062 grants to
civilians for serious ‘educational gurposes, according to a recent report of the 1.C.A.
There.are extensive-figures in this field available to the Committee so I shall not
burden the record further. e T
In conclusion I urge“this Committee to report the bills under consideration favor-
ably. They will encourage the revival of language and international studies, which
will enrich the lives of all our young people in the future. One can obtain a much
better appreciation of one’s own country against the background of knowledge of the
history and culture of other countries. That has beén the experience of more than
40 thgusand participants~in our natianal exchange program who have studied
abroad. ‘ Lo
In calling the Committee's attention to the intensive efforts of the Soviet Union to
improve its educational program, I do not suggist that the bills before the Commit-
tee are in any way dependent upon what the Soviets may be doing. This legislatign
is needed regardless of what the Soviets may do. It"is sorely needed simply to give .
our people and our government an' opportunity better to understand the nature of -
the international community of which we are a part, an important part, and to-
acquire a more realistic and accurate idea of the proper role for us to play in.that
- community. As one of the two so-called super powers, we have a special responsibili-
ty to cultivate a more cooperative spirit among nations and to minimize the possibil-
ity of a major war. Strategic power, of course, has d role in our responsibility, but -
we sometimes give the impression, to cur friends as well as our adversaries, that
military power is all that we need to keep the peace. In our pre-occupaticn.with
military power we are in danger of losing our influence and prestige in thé world
simply because wé lack’ the kno»y]edge and understanding to conduct ‘our relations
with other countries in. an effective and rational manner. Our material progperity
has led us-to believe' that we are-the only virtuous and unselfish people in the
world, a proposition many others find difficult to accept. I, of course, beli¢ve that we
do have many admirable qualities as a nation, but the least admirable is our self
. gfhteousness, and to correct that we: desperately need a much more effective
ucational program with emphasis upon international .studies and foreign lan-
: guaﬁ:s THese are necessary ‘to give us a true perspective of ‘our proper role in the
world. o . o N - .
Mr. SimoN. We thank you for an excellent statement. In the area
_ of exchanges,- Alan Kassoff, who is head of the:IREX program that
exchanges with the Soviet Union and the East European countries,
points out that we' Sﬁend each year on our exchanges-in that area
the equivalent of what we spend on constructing one-third of a
mile of intergiate highway. _ " _ mre _

Senator FUbBRIGHT. It's minimal, and even that’s been held up
recently because of the embargo. . . :

_ Mr. SimMoN.-And it is just very shortsighted for us not to try to be
sensitive to these other aréas. e . R

Senator FuLsriGHT. It’s disastrous, Mr. Chairman. One country -
we ought'to understand is the one.that is our principal competitor.
I mean how do we make ‘progress by closing our eyes to what’s.
going on. there? I think we have very distorted views of what's
going on mow. . L : .

This report shocked me, I confess.” When I réad that, I couldn’t
believe it. My attention was called to it by a column in a local
paper. I wrote to Dr. Wirszup, who I happen to know. I got the
report. It's really shocking. I had no idea the Russians had put this

° ) .
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kind of effort into this program. It started in 1966, and I didn't
bore you with a long description of the comparative seriousness of
that secondary education a‘ﬁd what they do -with it. I mean the
amount of serious subjects that they require of all their students is
astonishing, compared to ours.: . :

I hope the committee can give very close attention to that, report
and compare it to our effort, because there are two things about
this: =~ | : : - :

One is, it's extremely important in itself, our relations to the
Russians. Beyond that, this very great competitive spirit we have
may, if it’s brought to bear and focused on this instead of solely
upon more missiles ‘and more intercontinental missiles, it might
get some results. If the people .can realize this is part of that
competition, and not put all our eggs in one basket, maybe they
will respond. : :

Y

Mr. Simon. The point you make, that our security focus has to be

-much broader than simply a focus on——

)

Senator ‘FuLBRIGHT. Oh, yes. I can'imaginé what the Russians
will do about these nutlear weapons, just what they decided about
the man on the moon. They decided it wasn’t worth it to put all

that effort in going to the moon so they didn’t try after we did. Our

effort was inspiréd largely to do it. first. Now if they see that the
world needs this educational approach, more educaticn -and ex-

changes, which they, are doing, and just keep an equivalency on-the

military part, I ‘think they will leave us at.the starting gate.
I ‘mean we will end-up in—20;~80 years just like we "have .in

" automabiles. We've got:all these missiles which certainly I assume

we are not intending to use and I don’t think they-are stupid
enough to do it.You can’t discount these people, their long experi-
ence. They've had a much longer history than we have. I don’t
think for a moment they will precipitate-or provoke a war. They
know the consequence, They suffered in.World War II, much more

"~ than we did. .

One great trouble we have m realizing, the 'significance of war -

comes from never having had the experiences that all other great

’

nations have had, of being occupied by a foreign hostile army .or.

being overrun by a hostile army. They’ve all had it. The Germans,

Japanese, and the Russians’ And they’re serious about this business.
ve the impression we're,not serious about it -

. ‘We sometimes .
because we haven’t had that experience. But if they direct their

efforts alang the lines the -Wirszup report indicates and continue,’

what’s going to be the attitude: of ‘the world? Where is our preéstige

and influence, if we end up continuing to be a nation of ignora- . .

muses apd they know what they're doing? This is what it amounts
to. ) '

-

- Mr. SiMON. Let me revert to .your‘for"‘rner' role as a university -
president here if I may, for-a moment. One of the points that was

made very frequently by our former colleague, Al Quie, who is now .

- the Governor of Minnesota, and Arlen Erdahl has taken his place

.on this committee and in the House, he said we had to.send a

signal in ‘some way to the schools of the: Nation that they had to
" provide leadership in this area, and I guess what we are trying to
do with this legislation is to send that kind of-a signal. = . ..~ -

.
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One of the thmgs we do in the one bll] for e‘camp]e is to say
that among other thmgs if you require forelgn languages either for
entrance or ‘for graduation, we will pay you the equivalent of $30
per «tudent for ful, time equivalent student per academic year.

I don’t know how many students there are at the University of .
‘Arkansas, but let’s just say 10,000.

Senator FULBRIGHT. Well, about 12 at the main one. You know,
they ve got a new orgam?atlon if you include all the branches, but ,
in Fayetteville, where I was, it's about 12.000.

Mr. Simon. OK, on 12,000 students you're talking about $360,000. "

Is that enough to have an impact, is that enough of a carrot—I'm
‘ not just picking on the Umver51ty of Arkansas now—but is that
enough of a carrot to get us movmg”

Senator FuLBricH?. Well, it’s not a very big carrot. Nevertheless .
the fact you draw attention” to it by a program, even though it
wouldn’t be the only consideration, the very fact that the Congress
and your legislation suggests and gives leadership that some knowl-
edge and experience in foreign  languages, and in international
studies should be required for graduation or for entrance will be a
great incentive. The money. is a vehicle, under our system, where we

can’t just order them to do it. You've got to use, as you say, a carrot
- and a stick. :

.The Russians, of course have the advantage that they Just do it,
when the Central Committee says this must be _done, they do—xt—l————
don’t wish to be in an attitude of exaggeratmg their merits;. but
‘this is a tremendous achievement. We have difficultyin imple-
menting this, but I think the approach of the committee is sound. .

I cannot- tell you whether that amount is enough or not. I think =
it is not insignificant, and it is a symbol of the pohcy whxch you are -
.supporting.

It’s too.bad that léadership alone w1thout mcentlve wont work,
but “I -agreé, -that” under our system we have to give an incentive, _

» and we should. The amount in this bill is $9o million I believe you,
« '~ are recommending. o S a .
. Mr. Simon.That’s correct. ‘ :
- - Senator FuLBriGHT. Weli, for a "nation of thls swe thl’S 1s an -
awfully small amount.
Mr. Simon. Less thar 50 cents per person. )
Senator FuLBRIGHT. Well, you made the comparison - .about biild-- -
- ing roads and many comparisons can be made, but the fact s thlS
_country has not yet accepted the responsibility in education. ,
~ Of course, orlgmally we thought that was a local matter. The
Congress didn’t -have any responsibility in national education-up -
until, T think, 1964. I sponsored a bill in "1948. We passed it in the "
Senate. it got tangled up in rehglous and racial matters and never
got through the House, but that’s part of cur history. ‘
3ut it’s time we do it, bécause now the Nation 1s respon51ble in -
international affairs, not the States; and we have got a great .
responsxbxhty It's quite. diiferent now, than what it used to be. ' .
I dor’t wish to appear. to be so critical of ‘the country. All Tm* ~
-really saying is it’s a great country, and for 200 years we did a -,
great job under our system but times have changed, and we'vé got
to_do something to mppf that change, and one’is that I think the

: A . '.
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Federal Government has to give leadership in this area of educa-
tion or we're going to be left at the post. .

Mr. Simon. Mr:.Erdahl? :
.Mr. ErpaHL. Thank you, Mr. Chaxrman and thank you very
much, Senator, for being with us and presenting that good testimo-

+ ny. Just kind of a general question. As you have observed 'and
absorbed, I guess, too, our American scene domestically and inter-
nationally for a generation.in the Congress, are we moving into a
period of being neoisolationist in this country? . :

There seems to be a mood out there that would say we can be

sufficient urto ourselves, This gets into energy and maybe educa-

“ " tion and a lot of things. Do you see that as a trend and maybe as a
danger?

Senator FULBRIGHT. Well, it's utterly impossible, due to all klnds‘
of things, economics aside. Whether you want to or not, you can’t
do it. I think all that is,'is a frustration with the difficulties we are
suffering, all the way from the hostages and our balance of pay-
ments and the Afghanistan situation..It’s a frustration and we, of
_course, are repelled by it, we don’t like it. But I think the idea of
returning to isolation or trying to cut’our relationships is so unre-
alistic, I don’t think it will happen.

1 think if we can get over'this frustration about it, we w1ll renew
‘and reinvigorate. I hope our relations on this k1nd of leglslatlon is
a step in the right direction.

I mentioned just in passing the dependence upon all kinds of .
basic materials which this country must have for its economy and

. those are facts, there's noth1ng you can.do about it. We just. don’t,
- have those, and if we don't ‘continue to have good relatlons and’

access to them, we will really ;o down the drain, . .

It’s inconceivable to me th«: you can move in any serious way to
isolationism, and- it certainly .would be wrong and against, our” . .
interests to do that..We all resent it, as when we’re sick, we rebel . . =
against doctors because they don’t cure us. T

Mr. ErDAHL. I agree with you, and I hope you're right. What.I'm

" getting to is'a practical way of domg thls, apart from some of the >

things brought forth-in-the bill. - e - o
" Do ‘you see. that we probably should be . puttlng more stress on - .
language training at earlier levels, as .other countrjes would do? .
.. Senator FULBRIGHT. Oh, yes: "The best level of-all is at the early
level ‘We' had an interesting experiment in Arkansas in connection
‘with the Department of Education and the Arkansas department.
It-was a cooperative venture, end Ms. Betty Caldwell, who was an .
. expert ‘who had been,well tra1ned in this area, started this train-
ing at the earliest age, from 1 year, and what they could do with
" them, even preelementary school. It costs money to do that sort of
::ihlng, but we ought to be domg this and ‘exploring what can be - .
one .
She 1mpressed me. I went to see that school two or three times. ,
She impressed me with the possibilities especially in languages and . ~
_ humarn relations. Qne of the reasons for that experiment was to see )
.. about what we could do with regard to the relations of the black ]
and .white community, and:I thought it was dramatically successful.. =
— 7 at-that earIy age. They-just“don’ t- have any- feeling -of-prejudice.—————

s
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There are great possibilities there, but we simply have not yet
. been sold on the idea of education in this country. We haven’t
) taken it seriously. We are still in a kind of frontier ‘day when
everybody's—the individual approach, everybody is for himself. If -
ou’ve got a six-shooter, you got along without an education.
I used to hear about it all the time, “Henry Ford didn’t have a
> Ph.D.,” and a lot of these great industrial figures—— ,
. Mr. ErpanL. He had a lot of them working for him, though.
‘Senator FULBRIGHT. He had a lot of them working for him. “You

o don’t need an education to get along in this country.” That's an-
other very important point made in the Wirszup report, and is very
significant. ' ‘ : - '

There’s one paragraph in there about the only way for a man or
woman to look forward to improving his status in life is through
. education, and since the status of life of the average person is
_rather.grim—as you well know, life in the Soviet Union is nothing
like ‘as luxurious as ours at any level. But that distinction is a
" built-in incentive to do something about it. These students either
do that,-or they end up digging ditches. . There is no in-between,
there is nobody going to take care of them, if they don’t apply
themselves. . : .
He makes, I think, some very good points in there about the
incentive to work, and it’s very powerful, and that’s something
.. again that we have to overcome.
~-..We have had an enormously successful and, in a sense, a unique
experience among nations. We have, the best real estate in the
. world; such™as Minnesota, -Arkansas, and others represented here.
We’ve got a lot of your topsoil in our delta down there, but it is the
best real estate ip the 'world, and we- got rich without. the same
kind of efforts and experience ds other countries had to go through, *
none of which are as rich. 7~ Tl - oo
But Russia is interesting. It is much:biggér-than_we are. If they
cultivate their minds, and they have a population as well-educated.

as this indicates they will be, they’ve got a lot of resources to deal“~-..:

with, and that miserable overcentralized system they have, which.

has held them back, is not ‘going to stay.there. forever if they

educate their population. I have no doubt they’ll find-a way to do_

- something about that inefficient system of organization, of overcen-

.tralizing, and a repression-upon the. individual’s ability. Once that’

done, you've got a‘tremiendous power to face there. ,

~ We should be doing' something about it, especially in this area.

" Mr. ErDAHL. I want to.thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank ou, .

Senator, for sharing those insights with us. I think as we look at

-~ + this—I am reminded by staff that in Oklahoma, the university has .
- - hired- a 'Russian :professor and they are using the “electronic

media—radio and television, I’ uess, in this case. :

We have. a son who is a freshman in- college. He hasn’t got
around to writing yet, but he said he’s going to take Russian. So-1
think some of the young, people are looking at these things, and’
hopefully we in the Congress can give them some encouragement
and incentive to look even more intently at'this area. ‘

" Senator FuLsriGHT. I think they will respond if somebody tells

them it’s important. We’ve left the impression it’s not important.

We don’t require it~ And I think that’s one. of ‘the troubles. So I
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meant the symbolism, the money, I think, is a good vehicle to use, .
but I think the very fact that you give leadership and say, “You
must do this,” you know, in the national .interest, it will have an
effect on the leaders in the schools. ’ ' .
.. Mr. Chairman, I don’t know whether you are interested. I had
two little paragraphs a little bit on this point. Would you like me !
to read them into the record? ' .
Mr. SiMoN. You may read them into the record. S
Senator FuLBrIGHT. It will take me just a minute. I know ‘you've
got other witnesses. First, about that incentive, I think, T won't.
read all of this, It says:
. Not only is it the main— o : -
That is education in the sense I have mentioned— '
, main criteria for success in a society that has become increasingly compartmental-

ized by educational achievement, it is practically the only safe avenue to a more
- comfortable standard of living undet Soviet conditions. - .

‘That’s what gives them a drive, these students, when they get
into a school. And there’s one last one: )

The Soviets' tremendous investment in human resources, unprecedented achiev
ments in the education of the general population, and immense manpower pool in
science and technology will have an immeasurable impact on that country’s scientif-

' ic, industrial and military strength. o
It is my considered opinion that the recent Soviet education mobilization, al-

though not as spectacular as-the launching of the first Sputnik, poses a formidable
challenge to the national security of the United States, one that is far more
threatening than any in the past, and one that will be mych more difficult to meet. -

T}lllat’s, sort of a summary of Dr. Wirszup, which I heartily agree .
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Stack? - . N ¢
. Mr. Srack. Senator, in the context of the motivation of students,

- we certainly have the same motivation.in this country with regard
to ultimate achievement and upper mobility. Thatis, we have, ass - -

" you point out in the words of the report, that-we have, let’s say, -
onie-third of the students who enter the 9th grade do not finish the ". .
12th grade. The dropout rate is very high; at least that’s true in my
part of the country, ., . - o o 4

The fact is, these children who are ‘dropping out are not
achievers. They do remain with livesthat are not really successful, ..
material or otherwise,.  * RS R . N

© 7 I'm wondering, in_the massive effort the “Soviets aré making,
where they have been“very- successful. in achieving almost 100

. percent graduation, do youw believe this coitld result from the fact
N that aside from the—what you point out as the ‘extraordinary’

B Soviet resedrch’in. psychology and ‘methods of learning, could this
“come really from the fact-that they have a more disciplined society

L _tha?l\xqe do? Don’t you think that could be an element? , N

Senator FULBRIGHT. Yes, I think that’s a very important element, .

~and the rights of the individuals, which we so highly cherish, it’s
almost nonexistent there. It's the community, I mean the nation
.that’takes precedence over it. This is one' of the human rights
“which we current]yr emphasize, ahd we cherish. . e
_ . I have never been sure that the average Russian=—not the intel- :
——____Tectuals, the So.lzhemt_s_yniar}d,_people . yvho..are..very..vSOphisticated, R A

- ~ 1
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but the ordinary Russian, I don't think is too bothered by it. He’s
accustomed to the discipline, that's been historic.

Of course, I can say the same thing about the Japanese. They are
accomplished at communal action, of action together. These are
differences which we ouglit to understand, and it has great bearing:
upon the success of our efforts. We have to pay a price for the
'luxury of going our own way as individuals, and there ‘is a pretty
heavy price, but we’ve still got to find & way to adapt that to being
effective when we are in competition with a country like Russia. .

Mr. Stack. The point I'm trying to make is this: No one would .
question that we need in foreign language and studies more em-
phasis than we've had in the past, but it seems to6 me that you
touched on this earlier in your testimony. In a sense, our national
priorities are wrong, in that we do not in the total spectrum of
education place sufficient emphasis, we are more concerned with
‘military and other things.

Senator FULBRIGHT. Mr. Stack, what’s really shocking, when I
read the Perkins report, which I did read in preparing to come -
here—I had only read about it before I came here. One good thing
about asking me to testify was at least I read the whole report,
which I probably wouldn’t have done otherwise—it was a very
persuasive report, Mr. Stack. S :

Years ago, there was much more emphasis on foreign languages,
g Latin, Greek, and so on.-Now it's almost abandoned. I mean there
e, . is no requirement. This is what is so distressing.. , ' L

' ‘' Mr. Stack. The point T was coming to was this. In our day we did

study foreign languages. In the course. of doinig.that we learned-a
little bit about English. ‘Today, regrettably; we might place-empha- *
-sis on foreign languages, but do we not need to first address the
) g;:\?t need for learning English? - .
Now in the part of the country from which I come, south:Florida,
“ ~ -we’'have one county which is’' now-officially bilingual, and there is = -
" -much comment to the effect that, well, wé’re emphasizing bilingua- .
<. lism, we are not'teaching the students English. And this 1 regard
. , as a very dangerous situation, arrd what'it comes_down to, really, is
= this: Whether we have an especially large carrot in the bill or not,
no one would question’ the validity of what we are trying to do, but.

it goes much deepet. + . , L L
It seems to me that-we’ve got to try to find ways'to motivate our
society as a whole fo place a gréater emphasis on educational * . -

achievement. That’s what it comes down-to. : ‘ .
"Senator FuLBrIGHT. I agreewith you. Well, I thought that, of
course, having been a schoolteacher, one of the first things I syp-
- ported, in the1940s, I think, in 1947 or 1948, was a bill for support
of general education. We passed it in the Senate. I don’t know .
whether you remember that. You don’t gb back as far ds I do.
"~ Mr;Srack. I was a college professor myself in 1937. [Laughter.)’
.. Senator FuLsriGHT. Well, I've thought this, it’s a terrible tragedy
in a country with, all of the prospects and merits of this one, that it "
has so neglected its educational system,and the effort -we ‘put into -
L it. We have tried to miake the schools solvé a_lot of social and other.. -
-~ - problems, and really-schodls ‘ought not. to.be responsible-for them:
A lot of our schools, for them to be respansibl -the seluti the——
very. difficult racial difficulties we have inherited, is.a great-burden,
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you know, and it's disrupted the quality of schools all over the
country, ds you well know. :

There was-a terrible piece here in the local paper about how our

‘loéal schools—I mean in the District of Columbia—are in dreadful
shape, with strikes of schoolteachers. It’s very distressing. ..

I think the greatest single need of this countrf' is more emphasis
on education and, of course, English is not unrelated to the foreign
language. I mean any language, they are all related. If you teach .
them and help them in one, you are inevitably helping in the other. -

— A t used.to be.considered the idea of taking Latin, in order to make
- ‘you undérstand English and know how to use it and apply it, and to
think:concretely and concisely and lucidly in English. That used to .
be the idea. But that's been abandoned, according to the Perkins’
report. . : .
r. SiMoN. Unfortunately. ' .

Mr. Stack. Thank.you, Mr. Chairman. .

Mr. Simon. Thank you, Senator, very, very much, not only for
your testimony here, but for what you have done and what you.
represent. _

Senator FULBRIGHT. Well, as I said, I'm very flattered you asked -
me. It's been an experience. I don’t get over ere often any more.

Mr. SimoN. We'll have to see that that changes. , X
. Senator FULBRIGHT. When I first came here, this building wasn’t * «
even here, you know. [Laughter.] ‘ L T

Thank you'very much. -~

Mr. SmmoN.“Thank' you. - oL T .

-.... Senator FuLsricHT. Well, I told you, you're.the one hope in the , -
“area ‘that I'm in, as you well know, I mean in the exchange.

Mr. SimMoN. You're too generous, but I thank yon,-anyway. .

. . Representative Millicent Fenwick is here; and we welcome our
colleague, One of the great pluses she’ has is not only an-interest.in
this subject, but.unlike the chairman of this .subcommittee, she
speaks other languages with fluency. I oY

If kI‘7 may interject. just this question, .what languages do you -
speak? | v . :I‘." I : 2 - - 7o

Ms. FEnwick. Well, I thought I spoke Spanish. [Laughter ]

‘Until I cooperated with our colleague, Mr. Oberstar, Represernta-
tive Oberstar-from Minnesota, and we were asked tq do it, and he
speaks beautiful French, and scored with the State Department

~'some 4% out of 5 points. - R o : :
i ~ So 1 said, “Well,.you know, my Spanish is awfully rusty. I'd ..

’ rather do. French.” -“Well, we have someone i French. You'd

_ better do ‘Spanish.” OK, be a good sport. I scored 1%z [Laughter.]

< I was mixing it up with Italian. So'I do understand Spanish, and .
given a liftle time to practice it, I can speak it, and Italian, and - - . .

. French. e T ,

Mr. SiMoN, We welcome you. P : . -

Ms. FENwick. All the easy ones. ' s 7 Lot

& e 2

STATEMENT OF HON. MILLICENT FENWICK, A REPRESENTA-

_ . TIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY . .
¢ Ms. Fenwick.—L-must-bring-you-a—message—from—cur—colleague;—
. Representative Panetta: He will be along by 2 o’clock. .. - = . .

Mr._ASIMON.' OK. :
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Ms. FENwick. So we'll be brief. And I thank you, Mr. Chairman,
for being able to come here today on a subject that we are all very
concerned about, to be precise, the severe lack of study in this
country, in international education and in foreign language study.

- The 2-year study which we conducted as members of the Presi- .

dent’s Commission on Foreign Language and International Studies,
pointed to this shortage, stressing the danger it poses to our nation-
al security, the disadvantage it creates for American business in
world trade, and the dangerously low level of understanding by the

American public of both international cultural and political affairs, _

to which Senator Fulbright has spoken so ably.
House Concurrent Resolution 301, a resolution which we all co-

- sponsored, is in the right direction. It expresses the sense of Con-

gress that we must begin to reverse this downward trend through
education, and I am happy to be a cosponsor, and especially en-

v"bom:aéed by the recommendation of foreign language and interna-
tional study requirements. :

The question now arises, what's the best means of doing all this?
More directly, to what extent should the Federal Government be
involved? How can “we assure quality education without heavy
Government expenditures? . . H o

I think it is clear that to encourage more study in these areas,
some kind of financial incentive will be necessdry. I must confess,

" however, that I have-some reservations about portions of H.R. 7580.

-I helieve that the most effective way to begin to solve this prob-
lem is with direct aid to ‘colleges and universities, and I hope the
bill in its’ final form will have something to say.about standards in
this regard, too. S e e . ;

‘We must, I believe, insist on qualified. teachers and professors. I

. wish very much that the grants to higher education would go only -

to those colleges and universities which have*entrance or gradua-

_tion requirements in language and_foreign study, giving -grants

only where those are required for either entrance .or graduation, or
perhaps both. - - o T -
It is.my hope that the requirements of postsecondary ‘education

- will stimulate a sound and active program. at, the secondary and

elementary levels. In fact, every high school superintendent to ..

- whom I have spoken, and every primary school principal, has told

me that college requirements are essential; and perhaps all’that is -
necessary. Ce Lo :

In ot1‘1er words,” if the high school knew' thdt languages were )
going to be required for college, you’d get study in the high school.

- If the high school knew. this was going to be required for -high

. school, and"the primary school knew, you'd get'languages-in the
" primary. - S .

It is prudent, I believe, to take"a careful look 'into'the.:sf:ructl\xfe

studies. For this reason, I support the proposal in H.R. 7580 for a
survey of the effectiveness of different approaches, and the study
should_intlude the elementary .grades, too-the approashes that

.might be useful there.

It does not seem wise—forﬁdS—tO~start;giving~gtarifs fOr_rgr.ades 1
thrpugh 12, or any part of 1 through 12, until the results of this-

e
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“and methods of teaching both foreign languages and international. ,
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study tell us how we should proceed, which is the method to use,
which is the most effective method. ,

The study is, I think, essential, and.I'm very glad to see it as part
of the bill, but I think we should wait for its results.

It is very important that the findings of the Commission not go
unnoticed, and by the Commission, I'm referring to the President'’s,
Commission, with regard to this bill, and everything to do with the .
study of foreign languages and international culture.

The serious deficiencies we found must be corrected. I am con-
cerned, however, that any action by Congress be done. in a prudent
manner that assures some kind of control over quality, and does

. not involve us in heavy Federal expenditures before we know what
- we really should be doing. R

It would be encouraging, for example, to see active participation
from the private sector, and certainly this should be explored in
the study. ot oo ’

Many thanks, Mr. Chairman. ‘ L

I have a few more comments and if I may, I have a statement to be
submitted. N ) . '

Mr. Simon. The floor is yours. ‘

‘Ms. Fenwick. I have known children.who spoke a foreign lan-
guage, for instance, in the diplomatic service. My sister married a -
diplomat, my father was for a short time in.the diplomatic service.

I have known children who spoke Chinese at an early.age, you know, .
., because they were in China or Farsi, if they were in Persia. But if
° you don’t practice, if it isf’t-continued, it’s lost. e
' 1 don’t know how we could possibly expect early language study —~ ..
‘ . to substitute for living in the country. The-reason that they do absorb
+ . the’language is that they are young and thejr ears are very, very
. alert, and the rhythm of the languages, is adopted quite easily. But
they ‘don’t hold-onto it. The reason that they pick it up is that they.
are saturated, they'are in that atmosphere, they are in the country;
_as a‘rule. Or they may have a-very strict family structure and a
. governess or tutor or nurse who speaks German or 'French or .
*-*  Persian, and insists that they speak that language with little occa- .
. sion to'talk anything else. Youcan do it that way, too. But it requires
a constant, continual refreshment, and you are-not-going to get it, it
seems-to me, with spot grants in two primary grades. I think we’d be
wasting money. And particularly if we do it befere we get the study, -
. - we won't know what we're doing. - o o <
e Today we:lunched with a lady who is a deputy member of the
) _National Assembly of Gabon; where they speak 20-local languages. |
‘and’ French, which is the Janguage of the Assembly. Her ‘daughter -
is longing to learn English and wants to come, to this country, and
we're going-to get to work on a convent in_this country that, will
perhaps be able to-take in the daughter. But théy are-learning,
languages, too. Everybody’s got to. Transportation and ¢ommunica-
"-ti_o?s of the world don’t allow anything else. It's absolutely essen-
tialm O S e T
. The'Japanese husinessmen arrive here, every one of them speak-
" ing English, -and -our. poor people go.and have to have an interpret-
er. It’s not .good -enough. We're not living in the same world. We
had big oceans and they meant so much in the way of separation.
+ But it isn’t the same any more. ' ~ o :
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"Thank you,/Mr. Chairman, C e SIS
‘Mr. SimoX. Thank you very, very much., O viously I 4gree with
. your ultimate conclusion. This bill was modified, as you know,

g after discussion with you. The reason for-including the Nuiversity
and the elementary and excluding high schools and asking. for a -
study there, was the theory that maybe precisely tfis would
happen, precisely as you suggested. If we requifgd it at the college -
level, it would move to the high_school. But % fss clear that
would happen at the elementary level;, and we ¢ ave what we ¢
know are some excellent immersion programs at the elementary
school level. We are going to be having the superintendent from

o the Cincinnati Public Schools testifying here yet today, I have
' -. visited their program, as‘well as one in Takoma Park, Md., where
it is exciting to see second graders who are—— .

Ms. FENwiIcK. Ripping it off, . v
Mr. SiMON. Getting their fractions in French, when they didn’t”
know Firench when they entered first grade. o
Ms. FENwICK. It's wonderful, yes. . . I
Mr. SIMON..And somehow to encourage that .seems to me fa.be .
desirable. We don’t need a study to determine that that ought to be
done more: . ) ‘ o , :
. Ms. FEnwICK. I'm sure you're right, Mr. Chairman, and I tell . -~
you, I think that no matter what happens, they’ll probably forget
" even their numbers .in French, if they don’t get any more before
they get to college. But the very fact they have been exposed to
- something so different is broadening. I'm wishing very much we
could .get the study before we start the programs. What. can .we
-really *accomplish? Should we adopt the trickle-down theory of ..
" pressure from above, and keep to international studies in the sense
of the culture? I wonder. Because the language component is bound
“to be difficult ‘and expensive, and far more difficult to .achieve with S
high quality teaching than study of the cu’lture.,'Ik.now professors’ )
gho could tell you ‘wonderful ‘things to inspire you about Gréek
. civilization. They don't speak a single word of anything but Eng-
lish. You could'get high quality teaching in' the culture of foreign _
- .Countries, much more easily than you can in languages,: if you're .. L
.going to have good language teachers. . . R
{ _ ~ 1 can see what-you mean. There is a value in early studies, even 777
"« 'if it-doesn’t work for the language component. So I'm not closed !
minded.against it. It's just that when our budgets are so short and : ..
our deficit is so-huge, I tremble before starting another program - .
without direction. Thank you. « .
o Mr! Simor. Mr. Erdahl? . . . ) -
- Mr. ErpasL. Thank ‘you, Mr.. Chairman, and thank you very
'much for being with us today, Millicent, and for sharing this,
-+ testimony-with us. Lo . . : o
v . .I'd like to share something with you and others. here, that during
' the course of my first term here in Congress, I had a chanee.to be
on a trip overseas, and at one of our embassies over there, I met an
individual with the Foreign Service. I' think .he’d-been “in- that
country for 3 or 4 years, and I asked him about speaking the
language, and he said, “I really haven’t had to learn this, because
- everybody I deal with speaks English.” 1 thought that was an awful
indictment of our attitude and our system, that he.wasn’t interest- »

. .
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_ ed_enough.to-learnto speak to people in the shops and.in the

- streets. . : _ L

Ms. FEnwick. Absolutely. There was an Englishman in the Mato

* Grosso section of ‘Brazil, running a great mining plant back in the

back country. He’d been there 35 years, and every single one of the
.operatives had learned pidgin English. : v

Mr. SivMon. That’s great. - -j .

If my colleague would, yield, I was talking with one of ‘our other .
colleagues, and I wish'I could remember who it was, and he said———7"
we were at this meeting, I think it was at the NATO assembly
meeting’ and there was Arlen Erdahl, and all of a sudden he and

- ‘this Norwegian Member of Parliament weré speaking Norwegian '
to each other. = . ' -

Ms. FENwIck. Can you speak Norwegian?

Mr. ErDAHL. I learned the Norwegian dialect as a child, and I
studied it. Actually, this happened in Iceland. Because while I can’t
speak Icelandic, I can speak a Norwegian dialect which they under-
stood very easily. I was shocked to have this person tell.me he had

. been there 3 or 4 years, and it was not necessary to learn the
language because everybody he dealt with spoke English. And I'm
afraid that may be the attitude of too many people in our Foreign
Service. 7 ] o .

Ms. FENwicK. It's true. Do you know when the sjtuation wors-
ened. I was told, in Iran, they brought the first ‘and only Farsi-
speaking diplomat from Africa, so that hé could get together
a little more easily with some of the Iranians and maybe under-
stand what was going on. ' ' L

.- Mr. SiMoN. Three: of our fifty-two hostages speak Farsi fluently,
and that says something. ;

Mr. Stack? . , ' '

Mr. Stack. Well, I think we are all pretty much in agreement
that our distinguished witness has imparted some of the problems
that we do have to consider, and thiey are very difficult problems to

. address, obviously. ‘

The onie rather obvious thing, I think, is that in connection with, -
.let’s say, people who reside on the continent, if they learn a lan-
guage, they do have the ability to use’it, because of the proximity
of access to people’ who speak the language in question, which we B
do not havée. o i : ‘

In the course of my lifetime, I've studied Latin, French, German, -
and Spanish, and at this point I know very little of any of them, for
the obvious reason, as you point out, I haven’t used them. :

Ms. FENwick. That's right.. , Coe . .

Mr. Stack. So the question comes down to several compovents. - "
First, we have to get on to the question of psychology and methods
of teaching foreign languages. TRis is very important. There have .
to be better ways of approaching' them in this country, where we '
have such rudimentary teaching of foreign languages to begin with.

But beyond that, once having acquired the facility, how do we keep

. that going? - .

The question of grants and the carrot, as’ Mr. Simon referred to
in the bill. whether that’s adequate, inadequate or desirable,
‘whether or .t there are other better ways to stimulate the motiva-

* tion of people to learn languages. These are things we have to reflect
on. : v S
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-I would go along- with your limited carrot, if you're satisfied

-that’s’ the way we need to approach it. We certainly need to empha-

size_what the bill is supposed to do, and I am in’ agreement, and

certainly I thank our, distinguished witness for bringing her very

enlightened viewpoints to this. Thank you. : .
Ms. FENwick. Thank you. —_— , , '
Mr. SimoN. Thank you very, very much. It's always great. to be .

e witheyou, - - .

. . / s -
Ms. FENWICK. It's good to be with all of you.
[The prepared statement of Millicent Fenwick follows:]

-~ 3 : .

PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. MILLICENT FENWICK, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CoNGREss FroM THE STATE OF NEw JERSEY

~My. Chairman, I thank jyou for the opportunity to testify before your Subcommit-
tee on, a, subject with which we share a deep mutual concern—the severe lack of
study i this countxy, both in international education and foreign language study.
The two year study which we conducted as members of the President’s Commission
on Foreign Language and International Siudies pointed to this shortage, stressing
the danger it poses to cur national security, the disadvantage it creates for Ameri-
can business in world trade, and the dangerously low level of understanding by the
American public of international cultural and political affairs.

H. Con. Res. 301 is a start in the right direction. It expresses the sense of
Congress that we must begin to reverse this downward trend through education. I
am pleased to be a cosponsor of this resolution, and am especially encouraged by the
recommendation of foreign language and international study requirements.

The question now arises—what is the best means to solve this‘serious problem?
More directly, to what extent should the Federal government be involved? How can
we insure quality education without heavy government expenditures?

I think it is clear that to'encourage more study in these areas, some kind of
financial incentives will be necessary. 1. must confess, however, that I have reserva-
tions about portions of H.R. 7580. I believe that the most effective way to begin to
solve this problem is with direct aid to colleges and universities, and I hope the bill
in its ﬁnar form will have something to,say about standards. We must, I believe,
insist, on qualified teachers and professors. I wish very much that the grants to
higher education would go only to those colleges and universities which have
entrance or graduation requirements. I strongly feel that one or both of these will
be necessary to insure a stronger program nationwide. o 1

It is my hope that the requirements of post-secondary education will stimulate a
sound and active program at the secondary and elementary levels. In fact, every
high school superintendent and every primary school principal I have consul
with, has told me that college requirements are essential, and perhaps, all that is™\_
necessary. It is prudent, I believe, to take a careful look into the structure and

- methods of teaching both foreign languages and international studies. For this

reason, I support the proposal in H.R. 7580 for a survey of the effectiveness of .
“different approaches, and the study-should include elementa ‘grades. It does not

| seem wise to start giving grants for grades one through twel eduntil the results of

the study give us some direction as to how we should best pr

It is very important that the findings of the Commission hot go unnoticed. The
serious deficiencies which we found must be corrected. I amh concerned, however,
that any action by Congress be done in a prudent manner that assures some kind of
control over quality and does not involve us in heavy Federal expenditures before
we know what we should really be doing. It would be encouraging, for examg(lae, to
see active participation from the private sector, and certainly this should ex-
plored in the study. . .

Many thanks, again, Mr. Chairman, for giving me this opportunity to testify. If
. You have any questions, I would of course be happy to answer them. .

_Mr. SiMON. Leon Panetta, one of the cosponsors of this legisla-
tion, one of the members of the President’s Commission also, and
one who has provided real leadership in this area. It’s a pleasure to
have you here. . ] &

[The prepared testimony of Leon Panetta follows:] '

28
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Preraren Testimony of Hon. Leon E. PaneTTA. A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
Fros THE Srare oF CALIFORNTA

Mr. Chairman. Let met first commend the Subcomnmittee on.Select Education for
*holding these hearings ousthe issues of foreign language and international studies.
The specific legislation under consideration (FH.CON.RES. 301 and H.R. 7580) were
conceived and introduced as a result of the work of the President’s Commissiop on
Foreign Language and Internationul Studies. [ was privileged to serve on “that
commission with wy distinguished colleague, who chairs this Subcommittee, ulong
with my pood friend Millicent Fenwick. [ am also privileged to have been involved
in. the development of the degislation we're considering, and have been pleased to
cosponsor the measures in this Congress. ) '

As 1 member of the President’s Commission on Foreign Language and Interna-
tional Studies, | became more wwarg and alarmed about the nation’s shortcomings
in the areas of foreign language and international studies. The commission articu-
lated 1ts concerns in a report to the President issued last November. Since then, I've
been working closely with you, Mr. Chairman, v.+h Representatives Fenwick,
*Wirth, Oberstir, Bonker, Roybal, Buchanan. and nunierous others, to continue the
work of the commission here in Congress. In forming an international education
yroup of 36 House members, we have laid the foundation. of member support for
legrislative improvements in these fields. The group has sponsored a number of
informative sessions on specific issues such as the International Baccalaureate
Program and the Foreign Service Institute’s language competency testing and its
five-point proficieney scale. Many of the group’s members have cosponsored the
legrislation before us today, in addition to supporting floor amendments and another
bill, H.R. 6905, which 1 introduced to provide assistance to coHege-level students of
foreign languages. N L

It would be useful, Mr. Chairman, to consider separately the two measures before
us today. House Concurrent Resolution 301 should be handled quickly, since it
simply states the sense of the Congress that “there is a need to strengthen course
offerings und requirements in fore.gn language studies and international studies in
the Nation's schools, colltges, ad universities.” 1 wholeheartedly support swift -
adoption of this resolution, but 1 would suggest one amendment. {Vhat I have in
mind is including a provision that would urge school authorities and college and
aniversity administrators to consider relating foreigh language requirements to
proficicncy levels achieve rather than to hours or years spent studying a language,
using the Foreign Service Institute’s five-point competency scale and its testing
procedures as i model .l am indebted to James Frith. who recently retired from his
position as Dean of the School of Language Studies at the Foreign Service Institute,
and to Richard Brod of the Modern Language Association, for urging the use of
proficiency_standards in our legislation. I personally believe that this idea warrants
very serious attention by the teaching profession and school administrators.

House Concurrent Resolution 301 should be passed without delay. It represents
our hest hope in the 96th Congress to echo the findings of the President's Commis.
kion and to continue the momentum we've established with the formation of the
international education group. the coalition-building efforts among language and *
aren studies associations, and the iritroduction of legislation in these fields. To end
this Congress without at least a show of support for the principles laid out in the
resolution would be a demoralizing blow to those who are anxious to see progress.

As to the other bill before us, H.R. 7580, 1 am proud to have cosponsorecr the bill
and support its enactment, recognizing that certain changes are needed it will win
support in Congress. This hearing offers us a valuable opportunity to receive com-
ments and suggestions from people in the profession regarding the bill’s provisions.
I await with interest the views of other witnesses on the bill. !

My own view in that one general issue should be given serious attention. That
issue boils down to this: Should we include a provision for ensuring the achievement
of certain levels of language proficiency. The point here goes back to my comments
on H. Con. Res. 301. Wouldn't it nake sense to establish the achievement of actual
proficiency ds a condition for reciving federal assistance? The Subcommittee should
consider targeting the per capita funding. not on how many bodies are enrolled in
foreign language’ courses, but whether the institution requires a certain level of
proficiency for entrance or graduation. The Subcommittee ought to consider th:
feasibility of providing per capita grants to elementary and secondary’ schools re-
quiring a specified proficiency level in one foreign language for graduation. The FSI
rating of S-2/R-2 (Speaking Ability, Readin Ability) on its five-point scale might be
a useful goal at this level. Similarly. colfeges and universities which require a
foreign language rating of S-2/R-2 for entrunce and an S-3/R-3 rating for gradua-
tion would receive per capita assistance. )
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Another approach night be to provide per capita assistance to educational institu- - -

tions -which do not require foreign language study but whose lunguage programs
specifically include proficiency levels achieved as a condition for receiving the
assistance. The first proposal above has the advantage of not missing large segments -
of the student body, while the latter avoids the pitfall of having the federal govern-
ment involved directly at trying to influence requirements and curricula at educa-
- tional institutions, ! - - .
* Another suggestion || have is to _include a provision in .the bill requiring the
establishment of u State Advisory Council on Foreign Language dnd International
Studies for those state educational agencies receiving funds under the provisions of
the bill. The President’s Commission urged credtion of such councils, and I believe *
this legislation offers an excellent vehicle for doing so. The Elementuary and Second-
-ary.Education Act contains a similar provision providing for state advisory councils
on adult education. The' councils I recommend here would number approximately
ten individuals appointed by the governor of each state. )

In conclusion, let me reiterate my support for swift passage of H. Con. Res. 301
and speedy consideration 'of revisions in FL.R. 7580. At the very least, this Congress
should pass the resolution to demonstrate its concern and its support for moving
forward in this area. Let me also repeat my commendation of the Chairman of the
Subcommittee for his fine:leadership in the area of foreign language and interna-
tional studies. It's been a pleasure for me to be allie¢ with you and Representative
Fenwick on this issue, ; < -

. STATEMENT OF HON.,.LEON E. PANETTA, A REPRESEN™ \TIVE.
o IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Mr. PANETTA. Thank you, and thank you, members of the sub-
committee, for giving me the opportunity. I would ask unanimous
consent that the testimony be included at this point in the record.

Mr. SiMON. Your testimony will be included in the record. .

Mr. PanerTa. I'lbsummarize the comments. -

First of all, I would like to commend the chairman and also the
members of the subcommittee for holding these hearings on the
issue of foreign language and international studies.

As Paul has pointed out, I was a member of the President’s
Commijssion, I have been extremely concerned about how we can
emphasize fereign language and international studies. Because we
have seen, and the Commission saw, over a period of time, a
gradual deterioration in ,th\‘ese fields, when other countries were
emphasizing the need for language training. : T

As a result of the wof;k of the President’s Commission, there

ave been sothe encoura ing: developments. The President’s Com-
mission was important in focusing attention or trying to focus
attention of the American |public on the problem. :

That was really, I think, one. of Paul’s reasons for working to get
the Commission established. It ‘was certainly one of my reasons for
- participating—I felt this was a vehicle to try to get some public
attention on the problem. o .
As a result of that, we have been able to put together a coalition
of 36 Members of the House who have worked together as a group
on foreign lansuage issuesd, and! the result has been several ele-
ments of success. |

First, [ had amendments ladopted by the House to both the State
Department authorization bill, as|well as to the International De-
velopment Cooperation Act, to require studies of what our lan-
guage capabilities were, within the administration, in both the
tate Department, as well |as other agencies. And also Paul has
been able to have legislation adopted to establish foreign languages
as a priority of the Department of E.ducation.
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Just the other day we had an amendment Paul authored to
establish at least two U.S. embassies abroad in which everyone
within those.embassies would have a language capacity. That legis-
lation wag' adopted by the House. L . )

-1 had an amendment adopted by the Hotse on June-3 with

‘regard to the Peace Corps, to make use of Peace Corps returnees,’ ‘

so t.a¢ they, tdo, could participate‘in trying to advance la'ng_uage

v

training and international education. -

So there have been, over. the period of the last 12 to 15 months,

some real elements of-success, and I appreciate the cooperation of

-

the Members of the Congress in trying to stimulate attention to
this area. This legislation;really follows through on that basic
foundation that’s been established. " :

As a cosponsor of both of thése measures, I think they are
extremely important in trying to bring home to the American
education community and America generally that some steps need
to be taken. Otherwise, we are going to fall behind.

I guess a common reaction to language training is that it is
associated with a good liberal education, that a little Latin or a
little French or a little Spanish kind of.rounds you out.. -. :

_ But the fact is that language training is absolutely essential to

- this country, particularly in the area of foreign trade. The economy
of the United States is greatly dependent on our capacity in foreign
languages. . _

Most other countriés use their own people in other countries who
speak the language. In contrast, our corporations tend to use for-
eign nationals, because we don’t have people who can speak the
language. We have seen that time and time again. * ’

With regard to foreign policy, it is tremer.unusly important. We
have had situation after situation, incident after incident, where
the United States, in terms of its personnel abroad, winds up with

" nobody in'the embassy who can even speak the language.

The greatest example of that, I think, was Afghanistan, when
the American ambassador was kidnaped there. There was nobody
in the American embassy who could speak the language, and we
had to rely on Russians to negotiate for the release of the Ambas-
sador, and that didn’t work out very well. |

. There are other incidents we can point to in which that failing

has really impacted on our foreign policy. So from the point of view :

of the economy, from the point of view of trade, from the point of
view of foreign policy, from the point of view of just this country
better understanding what the world is about, I think it is very
important to stress foreigh language training.
I would draw your attention, first of all, to the resolution, House
~ Concurrent Resolution 301, which simply states that there is a
need to .strengthen course offerings in forei%n languages, et cetera.
"I think that’s probably the first thing I wou d urge you to focus on,
because I think if we can get that kind of resolution adopted, and
swiftly, it will be a statement by the Members of the Congress that
it is important to focus on this area. :

In the time frame Temaining in this session, it is going to be very
difficult, I understand, to do anything that dramatically will in-
crease spending or. get the attention of Congress on substantive
legislation. X ' . - : " '
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But I think House Concurrent Resolution 301 should be moved
quickly, and there is no reason why . we ought not to get the
Congress on record with regard to that resolution. .

I would only indi¢ate, as an additional provision, that we ought -

to look at proficiency levels, and not just simply at the issue of
language training in general terms. S : e
. My concern is that we might get a lot-of people. interested in
+ foreign language training, and they won’t psy much attention .to
proficiency levels. Proficiency levels are important, and we ought
to try, as part of the incentive here, to stress proficiency require-

ments. That's something that Jim Frith, dean of the School of -
Language Studies at the Foreign Service Institute, has stressed.

Also Richard Brod of the Modern Language Association. They have
also stressed the need to emphasize proficiency standards in con-

nection with foreign language training. : ‘
- I would also indicate with regard to H.R. 7580, which I've also

cosponsored,. we might also consider a provisien for- insuring the —

achievement of certain levels of language proficiency.

There is a method of measuring proficiency which has been
established in the Foreign Service area, and there is a rating
system established. I think it’s a good system and it’s one the
subcommittee may wish to emphasize in this legislation.

Again I want to reiterate my support for the swift passage of
House Concurrent Resolution 301. P'd like you to consider HL.R.
7580, because it is important in terms of doing the job in education.

It’s unfortunate, but sometimeés educators don’t respond unless -

there is something-out there for them to grab at. That happens to
be one of the realities we deal with. . . :
On the other hand, I think they ought to recognize some self-

responsibility to get out there and advance the cause for foreign

~ language training, because it’s important to this country.

So, with that, I am pleased to be associated with you, Paul, and . .
Millicent, in trying to advance this effort, and I urge the subcom-- . "™

mittee to take some leadership on this issue, and hopefully get the
-Congress to act on one of these pieces this session. ‘

Mr. SimoN. Thank you very much for your testimony.

Let me add for the record here, also, our appreciation to Senator
Paul Tsongas, who has also shown a real interest in this whole
area. . "

One of the things I have noted about you is you sometimes
understate things. In describing the situation in Afghanistan, you
said—I wrote down the words—“That did not work out very well.”
The Ambassador was shot and killed, unfortunately, tragically. It
did not work out very well, indeed. : )

I appreciate your suggestions on the proficiency here, and maybe

" you could have Matthew Cossolotto of your staff work with the
" subcommittee staff in putting together somée new Jlanguage in this
area. I think it is a very solid suggestion. T
Mr. PANETTA. We'd be happy to, because it’s been my experience
in terms of language training, there is kind of a standard approach
that’s used, you know. You get in certain exams and tests, but you
never really look at how well that individual. has picked up the
language. : - .

<
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In my district,’I've got two institutions that deal with language
training. One is the Defense Language Institute, which is responsi-
- Ble for training the military in foreign languages that are used in
their duty assignments, and they stress proficiency, because it's
_extremely important that that person not only get a touch of the”
language, but-understands really what is being said, and second I
also have the Monterey Institute of International Studies, an insti-
.tute that is engaged specifically in language training, and they also
stress proficiency. . T o
" For that reason, I think it makes a lot of sense to not just dabble
in foreign languages, but to insure that students are really learn-
ing. _ .

Mr. SiMoN. Mr. Erdahl?

Mr. ErpAHL.Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you, Leon, for -
being with us today and presenting your testimony.

. Toward the end, when you were talking about the responsibility

‘that professional educators and teachers have, how can we see that
they-do more in this area? It seems to me that that is a fundamen-
tal issue, as most of us stress, the need for local control in educa-
tion. What’ can we as a Congress perhaps do to encourage local
levels of education to teach foreign languages and encourage col-
leges to prepare more teachers. 1f you care to comment in that
general area. . '

Mr. PanerTa. One of the things I have suggested, it was one of
. the Commission’s proposals, and I did mention it in my testimony,
is the establishment of State advisory councils on foreign language
and international studies. The Commission urged the creation of
these councils, and [ frankly think that if we can at the State level
get those kinds of advisory councils going, they would be an impe-
tus, because 1 récognize, as you do, the importance of Stdte and
local input in the education area. I think it’s extremely important
. to have that kind of local control. -

I think one of the ways to stress it is to involve people at the.
local level and insure the common concerns. We are interested in
getting iocal educators concerned about what’s happening national-
ly. It has to happen on two levels. One level is ohviously the level
of public attention being focused on the problem, and the public.
themselves, parents, being concerned that their children are not
getting that kind of education.

The only way that happens is if the public is made aware of how
important this is, that it's not just a fringe topic. A few years ago.
when we were concerned about the problems of outer space explo-
ration and the Soviet Union getting ahead of us, there was a
tremendous emphasis that took place in terms of engineering
courses, mathematics cousses. »

I can remember.in my first class at Santa Clara that almost two-
thirds of the class were applying for engineering majors. Most of
them flunked, I might say, but they went in to seek that, because
they knew that was an area of opportunity, and it was also an area
of national concern.’ : '

1 think we have got to get the same message across to the
American people today, that foreign languages is not just a fringe
subject. It's something that’s very important to the future of this
country. If we get that message across, parents will be asking for it.
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‘try to find some help. o ,
This obviously would be a direct’ way of providing the kind of .
resources needed to do the job.

l

The second thing is to try to provide incentives, a push I think -

that’s incorporated in the legislation here, Right now. if you listen
to educators, particularly in my State—and [ guess it’s trué in your
States—if there is anything -they’re screaming about, it’s the lack
of funds'in education. They are reaching for anything they can to

A

~ Mr..ErRDAHL! It seems o me there are a lot.of opportunities and
there probably are going to be more for people who. have proficien-
cy in languages; noi only with the Foreign Service; but with inter-
national companies and ‘torporations. I think we have recognized

‘the need and that the demand is there. We should think about

ways to get that known, that ‘there are oppdrtunities for people
who are skilled in languages in a lot of areas around the world. If I

were a young.person,-I'd find that possibility exciting.

Mr. Sivon. If T could just add one comment here. One.of our

problems-js-that we have not had a multidisciplinary approach to !

language training. We have had people getting a Ph. D. in French

for example, and not.anything else, and then they have a hard .

time getting a'job. You know, I can’t walk into a place and say, I

.went 2 job, I speak English.

Mr. ERDAHL. You could in Moscow, ma}be. [Laughter.]
Mr. SiMoN. But if you can speak-French and you are an account-

ant, or you speak German and you are an engineer, you will be

much more attractive to an employer. That’s the kind of approach

we need.
Mr. ErDAHL. Very good point.
Mr. SiMoN. Mr. Stack?

.

tion. .
One carrot, I think, is the fact that one job in seven allegedly
now is in the field of foreign trade. I think®that’s a retty big
carrot, if you get that point across, in line with what you're-talking
about. If young people know-there .are jobs in these fields, if they
have the skills—— TN : "

Mr. PANETTA. It was really fascinating, when we were with the

.Commission, to listen to corporate heads talking about the impor- -,

tance of this, and what they tended to do, as I have said, was just
rely on hiring people in those countries to do the job, as opposed to

. finding people here who could speak the language. And I think

.-

that’s unfortunate.
Thank you." .
Mr. SimoN. Thank you very much.

°

Next we have a panel, Nancy Levy, professor at Wellesley Col- -

lege; James Jacobs, - auperintendent of the Cincinnati Public

Schools; and Julia Laroche, supervising director of foreign lan- .

guages in the District of Columbia Public Schools. .
I understand Mr. Jacobs has a plane to catch, so we will ask
you—and my. apologies to the other two members of the panel—we
will ask Mr. Jacobs to testify first, and then hear from the other
two members. . '
And if I can simply interject, Mr. Jaéobs, I had the privilege of
visiting the three schooe#® in Cincinnati that are language-emphasis

°
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Mr. Stack. I would like to thank our colleague for his contribu-
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~schools. Tt was anexciting thing to walk into d fourth grade class—

you will forgive me -for this—in a somewhat rundown area of
Cincinnati, in an old school :building, and see these youngsters,

literally half black, half white—gett‘ing their:fourth grade biology.,

lesson in German, Obviously that’s the kind of thing we need much

more of in this country.’ / .
, .Mr. Jacobs? . - o aa v P
[The prepared testimony of James-Jacobs follows:] . -

< ) o . .
PrepAreD TestiMONY OF JAMES N. JACORS, SUPERINTENDENT, CINCINNATI Pusnic
" .ScHooLS . ;

The Foreign Laniguage Assistance Act (H.R. 7580), is a first, large, and significant
step toward remedying the needs in this nation for a populativn capable of commu-

nieating freely and openly with its neighl?ors throughout the world, whether in the

realm of potitics, business or friendshi%. .

As the Fresident’s Commission on. Foreign Languages-and-International Studies
noted, Americans have ne;zlected the study of foreign languages for far too long. The
disadvantage to our citizens is great. In diplomacy, our lack of knowledge of the
languages and cultures of friend and foe ‘alike has had serious consequences. For

-example, it higs been revurted that our Iranian embassy had one and only one

person fluent in Faisi at the time of the embassy takeover. In the business world,
Amevican companies do>:'g business.abroad are often at a disadvantage. Unable to
communicate in the language of their clients, often only dimly aware of acceptable
modes of behavior and of doing business, they lose valuable.oppertunities to other
more enlightered nalicnn. As technology brings about increased opportunities for
direct, frequesst, and in™ +:2taneous communications around the world, our ability to

have an open exchangs of ideas must improve canimensurately. And, although !

English has been and will continue to be an internationally ,acceﬁt,ed mode of
communication in diplomacy, technology, and commerce, it is not spoken or under-
stood by the iarge majority of the world’s population. For most of the world’s

population, English is a foretﬁ:nlanguage.

e welcome the Foreign: guage Assistance Act. It is a beginning in the long

road to rectify the lang:zge deficiencies of the American population. It is a role

appropriate to the federal government: the problems caused by the monolingualism

and provincialism of may:7 An 2ricans are serious enough to warrant federal incen-
tives to overcome them. :

The purposes of the legislation are to be commended. The goal of increasin
foreign language enrollments in our nation’s schools is one which we have work
to implément at the local level for many years. In that regard, we, like the sponsors
of this legisle:inn, believe innovative approaches to instruction in foreign languages
are essential if we.are to achieve the goals of a nation conversant with its neigh—
bors. Further, since Jlanguage is a thread that weaves and binds members of a
cultural group, if is imperstive that language study include study of the culture of a
people. For, it is imposuible t¢ truly, communicate until both -parties understand,
value, and respect the ultitudes, values and beliefz so intimately tied to the way one
thinks, acts, and sB:zlakx . “u

The Cincinnati Public Schools initiated a magnet foreign langusge program at the

‘elementary school level in 1974. In beginning our i)rogmm at the primary grades,
p

we recognized several advantages. First, it is simply - ood common senge that the
longer students spend mastering a skill, the better they get at it. Students who
begin fr~eign language in kindergarten have the 12 -years of their academic career
to become “:e: in the language and knowledgeable of the culture of another

.people. Thos: wht begin in grade seven have only five years. Those whe begin in

grade nine, even fewer still. urther, using the typical secondary school fifty minute
period, five penods)weekly as an example, the average high school student has
available a total of 166 hours a year to learn a foreign language. Multiplied by a

- three year course of|study, a high school student beginning language study in grade

nine, has only-498 hours of exposure. - .

These statistics may not seem significant until put into perspective. '
.»"“The language achievement of the six-year-old without schooling in comparison
with students in school is striking. By the age of six, a child has listened to his or
her native lan e for 17,520 hours, which is a conservative estimate based on
eight hours a day for 365 days for six years.,Durinithos'e six years, let us estimate
that the child has produced vocalizations only one

|
i
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our per day, which amounts to .
2,190 hours. In comparison, the student in the classroom in one year has listened to
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“of Spanish as a second language divided into three areas—oral |

e’ § (A

a foreign language for ~320 hours and has produced vocalizations - for .27 hours,

assumin'g‘th'e student talks 10 minutes per class meeting. .
“The figures are not impressive until they are converted into a different frame of _

" reference. For instance, if we expect the student in' the classroom to have the
fluency ‘of a six-year-old child, the student should listen to the foreign language for

55 years. of college instruction and: the student should have the opportunity to -
vocalize in the foreign language for 81 years of college instruction.! | .
If the foreign lang’ua%:.al {.arogram begins in elementary school, students may build
age skill at the secondary.and poet-seqonda?r <levels. Students
inteérested in commerce, diplomacy or some other field in which foreign language is
an ancillary skill may branch out in: later grades, acquiring the specific language
skills which will facilitate and enhance their performance in the world of.work.
Lastly, the enthusiasm and aptitude which young children:demonstrate for lan-
guage. learning makes the elementary age an ideal time to begin. .
In Cincinnati, we. have developed a .unique form of bilingual education. Cincin-
nati’s bilingual programs are unique because all our students are already fluent in
English, and want to learn French, German or Spanish. Qur program is a bilinﬁual
program specifically because two languages serve as the medium of instruction.: It is

a foreign language program in that few, if any, of the students come from families - °

where a language other than English is spoken. . .
Let me describe our program: (although we offer our biiingual programs in
French, German and Spanish, for the sake of_\convenienc'e I.will use Spanish as an

example).
We in with an all day kindergarten program. Half of the day is taught

’entirelm English, and half of the day is taught entirely in Spanish. During the

first half of the day English reading readiness and math readiness experiences are
stressed. The second half of the day, in which Spanish is used, the kindergarten
readiness concepts that were introduced in the morning are reinforced and en-
riched. For example, if the children work with the concept of “red’” in the morning,
they work with the Sfanish word for “red” .in. the afternoon, using diffecent, but
reinforcing, activities. If they work with the number three in the morning, then the .
teacher reinforces the concept of three-in the afternoon in Spanish. The afternoon is
also the time for directed art and music activities, such as stories told in Spanish,
and games and dances typical of Spanish-speaking children.

First grade students, while learning the basic content areas of the first grade

‘ curriculum in their first language, (English), receive over an hour a day of Spanish

as a second language:(a little over 20 percent of the school day). During the Spanish
as a second language é)lerio'd, basic content area instruction is reinforced. For exam-
ple, in the social studies, children study families around the world. Our Spanish

‘students focus on a Spanish-speaking family. When we teach numbers in Spanish,

we reinforce basic mathematical operations already presented in English through
practice in Spanish. : .
In the second grade, the same focus is continued. When it is felt that the children
are comfortable with the basic English reading skills that have been introduced in
first and second grade, reading and writing skills in Spanish are introduced: In
addition, math and social studies and th¢ other content areas are reinforced in
S,!panish. Art projects which reflect Hispanic culture are done throughout the year.
If basic music concepts, such as rhythm skills, are to be taught, Spanish rhythm -
records and instruments are used to.re;nforce ‘these concepts. For ghysical educa-
tion, the Spanish teacher often takes the children outdoors to teach a playground
game that Spanish-speaking children plaﬁ. ‘ e
Beginning in the third grade, and on through the grades, students receive content

" area instruction bilingually. From this point on, as the children grow, we reinforce

the concept of bilingual education, using bilingual classroom teachers to teach the
content areas bilingually. All new concepts are introduced in the child’s stron,
language which, of course, is English, and then reinforced, enriched, and practi

in Spanish. Approximately 25 percent of the third grade school day is taught in
Spanish, This increases to about 40 percent by grade six. This in¢ludes 70 minutes *

ment, Spanish reading an language arts, and content area inst
units to teach the content areas in Spanish have been developed. Th
vocabulary necessary to discuss math concepts, social studies, affectiveeducation,
and science. In addition, since our classroom teachers are bilingual, they a 2 able to
use Spanish throughout the school day. This helﬁs to reinforce the notion that
Spanish isn’t simply another subject during the school day, but is truly a tool for

¢ Asher. James J., “‘LenminisAnother Language Through Actions: the Complete Teacher’s
Guidebook.” California: Sky Oaks Publications, 1977. ) .
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.communicittion. For example, during the m'orning, as the children enter the class-

room, such communication ax “Good morning.™ “Hang up your coats,” “Who's
‘buying lunch?” “Please sit down, Johnny!,”" takes place in the second language.
Throughout the schoo! day, teachers reibforce the language skills of the students by
communicating with their children as mueh as possible in Spunish. Visitors to our
lassrooms ‘will notice that the schedule for the day, helpers chart, etc. are.on the
board in Spanish, as are many of the bulletin boards. - ;

After the sixth grade, the elementary bilingual program ariiculates with a bilin-
wual program for the middle school years. This is a separate school where our
French, Gertnan, and Spanish students come together to continue their study of the
second language, as well as content area studies.in the second language.

On high school level, an Internationul Studies Academy, now in the planning .
stage. will be established. An-important component of this program will be the
implementation of a second language program with application to areas in which
languages are vital. The International Studies Academy will have a curriculum
oriented to the languages and cultures of the world. For example: economics classes
will explore the interdependence of worldwide economies; literature classes will not’
only read the folklore of other lands, but many works will be read in the original.

" Art, music and physical education will include a focus of the contributions of other

o

‘the perspectives of other nations.

peoples to these fields. History students may be asked to describe past events from
We already offer the International Baccalaureate Degree Program, a very rigor-
ous academic program, bused in Geneva, which leads to an internationally recog-
nized high school diploma. (See appendix A.) In the same school we maintain a
bilingual center. for high school students who are of limited English proficiency.
Housing all the secondary programs in’one building centralizes our resources and
creates an international environment. i : )
" In addition to the program described in grades K-12, we huve just initiated a new
foreign language program this fall. Students entering grade 6 may elect to enter
Language Plus, housed at the same site as our Bilingual Middle Sc¢hool. Language
Plus students have Spanish daily. In addition, a career education component in
their course of studies heightens their awareness of the world of work. Students will
have amplé opportunities to learn of the many careers in which foreign language is
a primary or ancillary skill. Guest speakers from the community will be invited to
explain how knowledze of a second language is vital to their job performance. We
expect the Language Plus students to continue their studies on the secondaryNevel
at the International Studies Academy.

= =="* Qur elementary school language program has attained so.me'noteworthy accom-

plishments. Year after year. achievement data that measures growth in (English)
academic skills has shown that our foreign language students are performing
beyond expectation. (See appendix B.) Students entering this program represent a
cross-section of our district's pupil population—racially, economically and academi-
cally. Nonetheless, these students, as a group, are achieving higher scores on stand-
ardized tests of reading and math than pupils in our district as a whole. More
impressive, these foreign language students outperform even the national pupil
population on these same tests—quite an enviable record for any large urban school
district. And, even more enviable when you stop to realize that these scores were
achieved despite the fact that over an hour (and sometimes more) of the school da
is spent in foreign language study. These results echo those research studies whic
have consistently shown that studying a foreig: *':nguage in elementary school has
no detrimental effects on achievement. Further, : supports those which have shown
that, indeed, knowledge of a second language can improve first language skills.
We also believe that our community—our clients—supports and desires opportuni-
ties for foreign language study. A recent study comfucted by the. University of .
Michigan found that almot 75 percent of respondents thougKt foreign language
should be taught in the elementary school. These attitudes are borne out by enroll-
ment growth in our program over the last 6 years. Cincinnati began its elementary
school program in 1974 with approximately 200 students. This year, 1980, that
figure is over 2000, and we are opening school with a waiting list for some of our
classes. (See appendix C.) There is no doubt in our minds that such a growth spurt
reflects the support of our community for elementary school foreign language study.
Cincinnati's program is one of several "different -models of elementary school
language study. Many of these programs have been in response to the alternative,
or magnet school movement. Language magnets offer students an opportunity to
learn a second language in addition to the regular school curriculum. Such magnet
programs vary with regard to the progfam model and the level of second language
proficiency to be attained. They may range from an enrichment program of 15-50
minutes three times a week ‘to the.f(’ind of total immersion programs that Canada

v
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has pioneered. The public schools of St. Louis, Pittsburgh .and Chicago all offer
forefgn language magnets and each year brings new ones. - ;s

nother model of¢a language magnet is Chicago’s LaSalle Language Academy.
LaSalle'is'a magnet school designed to attract pupils kindergarten ‘thréugh eighth

. Hude. to.a racjally balanced language learning center that is part of Chicago’s

ccess to Excellence program. In 1978, its first year of operation, LaSalle had 449

upils enrolled, backed by a waitinﬁ list of about 600. The school offers Spanish,
E‘rench. German, Ifalian, and English as a second language to a somewhat academi-
cally diverse pupil population. Time spent in second languuge stully ranges from 25
minutes daily for primary pupils to 45 minutes for grades 6-8, .

program will articulate with a-high school language centu = Although: LaSalle
currently is the only-elementary magnet school that offers languages, the Access to
Excellence master plan calls-for a total of four such schools to be in operation in"the
next few years. - : )

Foreign language mafnets serve many masters. First, they begin to fill a desper-
ate need for increased foreign lunguage study, especially in the early grades.
Second, they provide parents (and students) with educational choices - about ‘the
kinds of curriculum to be studied and third,-(and not least important) are a proven,
effective means of promoting racial integration. A

Cincinnati’s magnet f'reign language programs ‘have contributed significantly ‘to
reducing racial isolation in our schools. ] -

For example, one of our foreign languagé magnets went from 91 percert Black to
78 percent Black within the space of 5 years. Another school increased its Black
Population from 2 to 35 percent in the same period. (See appendix D.) Cincinnati’s
magnet model has clearly been effective in attrpctinﬁ and retaining minority and
low-income students to foreign language study—much in contrast to the situation
currently extant nationwide,

- 1SSUES AND CONCLUSIONS

The background on: Cincinnati’s role as a leading innovator in elementary school
foreign language programs is intended to place our evaluation of the proposed:
legislation within the context of our-experience. Our many years in the business
give us some insights into the imiolicutions of the bill’s provisions.

One primary concern is the level of funding proposed for elementary schools
foreign language programs. - o .

Let me first address the issue of incentive funding. Both the President’s Commis-

* sion report and the legislation before you place primary financial emphasis on past

secondary programs. While the capitation formula is $20 for elementary schools, it

~is $30 to $60 at the post secondary level. We beliave this is a misplaced priority.

Quite simply, elementary school foreign language programs cost more. The finan-
cial burden of initiating or maintaining an elementary school foreign language

- program far exceeds that at the college level for the following reasons.. .

“(A) Most universities already have a foreign language program established. In-
centive funds would help them expand and strengthen their rograms. In contrast,
there is a_deafth of programs at the elementary school level. Since initiating
programs is always more costly than maintaining them, it- seems obvious that-
incentive funds (i.e. seed monies) are more needed by elementary schools than by
post-secondary institutions. - .

“(B) Universities and colleges justify faculty salaries through student enrollment
and tuition payments. A given number of student enrollments penerates sufficient’
F.T.E.’s (full-time enrollments) to justify a faculty member's employment. Therefore,
as foreign language enrollment in post-secondary institutions increases, the system
has a built-in mechanism for beering at least some of the additional costs. S

“In contrast, elementary schools are organized on a different basis. Each teacher
is responsible for teaching all the required subjects to her 30 students. Most elemen-
tary school teachers are not fluent in, nor certificated to teach a foreign language.
Therefore, school districts with elementary school foreign language programs must

“hire a foreign language teacher—an additional teacher over and above their. regular
" teacher allocation—in order to implement a program. The -greatest single: cost in

elementary school foreign language programs is, therefore, personnel.

“(C) Post-secondary foreign languages have -many decades- of curriculum and
materials development behind them. Elementary school intensive langusge pro-
grams have just one. Consequently, there is a far greater need for new curricula in-
the lower grades. Few, if any, quality materials are available for teaching foreign
languages to elementary school children. School districts are therefore forced to
bear the costs of curriculum and new materials development at a time when.most

‘urban districts are in dire financial straits. More significantly,. even when commer-
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cially -produced- texts exist, many school districts must provide texts for students
from their own funds, while college students are expected to pay for their own texts..
. D) The, very nature. of. young children and their learning styles requires an
* .~ “approach which makes considerable use of audio-visual materials. Again, -school
districts initiating foreign.language grograms in ‘heir elementary schools will have

to invest in additional equipment and supplies to implement their programs.

Given the, preceding description of the comparative costs of elémentary school and
pot-secondary foreign language programs, it should be ‘?atently obvious that the
recommended level.of inceritive funding—$20 per pupil—is insufficient to even
partia]ly defray the costs of such a program. Our own estimate is that start-up costs
are approximately $320 per pu%il and program maintenafnce costs are about $300

. per pupil (See appendix E.) (N.B. These figures do not include the transportation
- costs associated with magnet programs.) Clearly then, the $20 per pupil is inad- °
‘equate as an incentive to begin an elementary schopl foreign language program .
(‘es’Fecially in light of the fact that the funding period is only for two years).
he monies targeted for. elementary schools might be more wisely invested in
model or demdnstration site projects in selectéd school districts- across the nation.
Such projects would serve as “lighthoudes” for the nation—both attracting from
afar those interested in developing new programs and lighting their way. These -
.demonstration sites should represent a variety of inhovative approaches to elemen-
tary school language study, lest we fall into the trap of promoting,a Bingle model as
the one, right and true path to success. Those of us who have developed programs .
_have, over the years, willingly shared our experiences (successes and errors!) with
-others. As elementary school language programs-proliferate, it is imperative that
our energy, as a profession, not be spent re-inventing the wheel. There are far more
necessary and productive tasks.that await us. The. establishment of. lighthouse
centers to serve as dissemination centers, model sites and as research and develetzﬁ- .
ment centers for new instructionsl strategies and materials is‘an essential ingredi-
ent to the successful expansion of foreign language study in the elementary grades.
Along fthese lines, it 1s similarly desirable to allow those alheady in the field an
opportunity to share ideas and experiences under the leadership of either the
federal government or the appropriate professional organizations, funds must be
made akailable for invitational conferences. At such conferences leaders in. this
innovative field of intensive foreign langauge instruction for children could share
ingight$i based upon their success and failures, demorstrate new techniques, display
new terials and report on their recent research results. If our own situation in
Cincinpati is comparable to that of other public school districts, there simply are
not the funds to either sponsor such a conference nor to fund someone from our
staff tp attend one. Federal financial assistance is sorely needed.
We /have already stated our belief that foreign language study is 'most effective
when [begun at an early age and continued through an organized, articulated and
sequehced program of studies through college! However, should this bill be enacted>» "~
as wrlitten, the lion’s share of funds would,be allotted to colleges ay iversities. .
"Letj us use the University of Cincinnati, our local state supported university, as dn.
e ple. Under this bill, as it reads now, U.C. would receive $20,850 just on the
basis| of its” 1979 Spanish enrollment alone-(of course these figures would be even
_higher if other commonly taught la: e enrollments were added). It would’ be
itied to these funds because in 1979 there were 664 pupils enrolled in\Spanish.
I and II, an estimated 50 pupils enrolled in S%nish'geyond the second level.
If tHe enrollment figures in Russian are added, the University of Cincinnati would.
receive an additional $6,300 based on’'an enrollment of 140 pupils. (These figures .
allow for the exclusion of 5 percernit of the language enrollment.). . .
nder Section 5a, any institution of higher education requiring at least two years
credit of high school for language credit for admission, would receive, $30 for each
student carolled at the institution. If the University of Cincinnati initiated such
adinission requirements, it would receive $1,172,130 over and abuve the figures
already cited. In total, the University of Cincinnati alone, would be eligible to
receive $1,199,280. When all the universities nationwide are added together, there.
won'’t be much left for anyone clzs! . : v .
While on the topic of incentives for post-secondary institutions, there are othér “~
areas of concern we wish to address. ’ : C : :
. Section 5a, as we noted, rewards colleges and universities for including two years
of foreign language study in their admissions standards. Theoretically, a university
could have such a rauirement but offer a very limited foreign language course of
study. It could, indeed, have 10,000 students-total enrollment, all of whom had to
_-have completed two years of high school foreign language (and therefore receive .
$300,000), and actual lly have only 100 students tgking a foreign language at the .
college level (and still get at least another $3,000~ as a reward!) While_this would
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" and attitudes developed’in the early grades.
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certainly be a flagrant disrespect for the spirit of this legislation, it is a possible

scenario given the letter of the law.

A great discrepancy exists between the posiu"ve effects of this legislation” on -ﬁO’sf—
-secondary institutions and the burdens it places on secondary schools. While there

are powerful incentives for ‘colleges and uni

versities to strengthen foreign language

entrance requirements, neither incentives or assistance are provided to high schools

which must prepare students for col]e%q ent
'school vocational programs would probébly

ry. Further, students who enroll in high"
find the college door shut. It is impera.

tive that improving the foreign anguage entrance requirements at-the university'

level’not result in an elitist system w

herein only.a small proportion of high school

graduates will be able to enter universities without being required to do reniedial ,

work.

Returning once again to the concept of innovative el'ementax;y schools, it stands to

" tional program in grades 7-12.. Tt will bhe ,

', reason that improved programs in grades K-6 will have implications for the instruc-

the kiss of death to elementary school

rograms if students who complete the K~6 sequence are placed in a traditional
Eeginning foreign language class at grede 7. New or revised curriculum for grades
7-12 will be needed to articulate witl) the elementary school pogram. -

In the same vein, post-secondary jnstitut
their programs of preservice’ and inse

ions area school districts must improve

rvice training. In the past, the success of

foreign language programs has been hindered by inadequately prepared teachers—
teachers whose goal it was to make their pupils fluent, but who could not speak the

language well themselves; teachets who

ew a great deal about the subjunctive
ttle about the lives and customs of the

ple who speal§that language. Fortunately, that situation is changing, but if this

and disjunctive Erronouns, but who knew li

ill creates the drgmatic increase in forei

language enrollment that it is intended

to do, there will certainly be a’serious shortage o qualified personnel. Indeed, in

Cincinnati, our most serious implementatio

n problem has+been a difficulty; in find-

ing teachers who can do the job. Since an Intensive elementary school foreign
language program usually teaches required subjects in both English and the foreign
~Manguage, it is _necessary for us to find teachers who held regular elementary
certificiation and can teach equally well in English and another language. Quite

“frankly, there aren’t too many people like

that around. And yet, if we. are serious

about providing the best educational program possible, it is going to have to be our

demand.

CONCLUSIONS

¢ Lo
We strongly support the concept and Xdu
ance Act. We believe that federal support 1

_ business to make sure that the supply of qualified teachers is adequate to the

' RECOMMENDATIONS

rposes of the Foreign Language Assist-
essential to-increase enrollments in and

to enhance the quality of foreign anguage programs in the United States. Our
" recommendations, however, are that g;]xority funding be given to public schools,

elementary and secondary, as detailed

3

Recommendation 1

ow..*

. Increase .allocation for elementary school Programs for beginning foreign lan-
ggnge programs in the elementary school. We believe we have presented a sound
tionale in the text of these written comments. It seems clear that the start-up

costs are sufficiently high to discourage |

ocal districts from initiating programs
-

unless additional funds are available from outside sources. :
We furtHer recommend - that-urban districts; be given priority funding. Urban

districts need to have their-public image po
to be as good as suburban and ruralaf'

~ carry with them a prestige and aura sorely

lished. It is simply not enough for them

istricts: they must be better. Big city school
- systems are fighting for their lives. Innovative foreign language Jgrograms (K-12) &
i

needed by city school districts. Equally

.important, minority and low-income students will have increased opportinities to

participate in foreign language study if su
dents are, i.e., in urban districts. .

‘Recommendation 2 :

ch programs are placed where the stu-

It has long been clear that foreign language teaching in this country is not in the
forefront of innovative research and deve opment in education. It is time that
changed.. New approaches, strategies, curricula and materials are desperately

needed in grades K-12. Traditional seconda
programs must be developed to articulate w:

ry programs need to be {revamped. New
ith the growing number bf programs for

elementary aged youngsters. Such programs should capitalize on the valuable skills

.
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Recomniendation .S Ve

If colleges and universities dre to be encouraged to make their entrance require-
ments more ‘stringent by requiring two years of high school foreign language. it
stands to_reason that secondary schools will need assistance in preparing students to
mest- those requirements. The alternative is to run the risk that urban districts,

‘alfeady strapped for funds. will be unable to allow students to meet thé new

requirements. effectively shutting out large numbers of urban youth—many of them
mipority and economically disadvantaged—(rom a college education.

1
Recornmendation .} ) ] ‘
Additional legislation to address the area of International and"Global Studies is

- most desirable. Language study and International Studies go hand in hand, an

both are intimately tied to our nation’s interests abroad.

Recommendation.'s -

The Secretary of Education should encourage other educational funding programs
to add foreign language as a priority. State flow-through funding programs should
similarly place an emphasis on funding foreign language programs. In our own
state, Ohio, we have been particularly pleased by the support shown our language
programs. This is evidenced by the monies we have received through Ohio's ESEA
IV C Teacher Grant Program and from Voluntary Desegregation Program funds. .

Recommendation 6 ° . .
Emergency School AssistancelAct funds have been used by many districts to assist
school desegregation using a magnet school approach. The Secretary of Education
should encourage districts using federal desegregation funds to establish magnet
foreign language programs. Such a requirement would have two highly positive
outcomes: enrollment in foreign language study would increase dramatically, as

would the percentzge of minority students involved in such study.
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Appendix C.
GROWTH IN STUDENT ENROLLMENT N CINCINMAT! PUBLIC SCHOOLS'
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL FOREIGN LANGUAGE PROGRAMS, . 197480
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- Appendix D. :

- EFFECT OF FOREIGN LANGUAGE PROGRAM IN REDUCING RACIAL
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Appendix E.

Start-Up Cost Analysis: E1ementary School Foreign Language Program
(approximate 1981 costs

Personnel: )
. §18,000. plus fringes s, 21,600,

Teacher
Secretary (.5 time) ] o 4,750,
Instructional Materials' 2,000,
Equtpment? ) : ' 500.
Inservice Training / .
25 hours per teacher [d 510 /hour 250,
Curriculum Development iy
300 hours @ $ 10./hour ‘ 3,000.
« : .$ 32,100,
Estimated COST per student ' S 321,

Maintenance Cost Analysis: Elementary School Foreian Language Program*

Personnel:

. T e N [
Teacher s 18 000 plus fringes - $° 21,6C0,
secretary (.5 time) .« 4,750,
V'Instructional Materdals! ’ B ; " 1,000,

Inservice fraining

15 hours @ $ 10./hour . - 150,

(per teacher)
Curricu1um Development " ‘ I /o
300. hours @ $10./hour . . ; ,3]060.
, ' o ’ s 30,500,
EéTIHATED COST per student ‘ ' H 305,

* oer 100 students
. ]These costs are modest projections, Until program sequence is complete (1i.e. those
entering at first grade and exiting at sixth grade), new materials and curriculum
. appropriate to each new level of the prqgram must be added each ‘year,

s 2ﬁssumes basic A-V equipmeat, such as cassette playér. phonograph, etc, Coes -
not include high ticket items such as language lab, TV, etc,

s . ¢
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STATEMENTS OF JAMES N. JACOBS, SUPERINTENDENT, CINCIN-
NATI PUBLIC SCHOOLS; NANCY LEVY, PROFESSOR, WELLES-.
LEY COLLEGE; AND JULIA B. LAROCHE, SUPERVISING DI-
RECTOR, FOREIGN LANGUAGE, ACCOMPANIED BY DELORES
STEVENS, DIRECTOR, INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS, DISTRICT
OF COLUMBIA PUBLIC SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF JAMES N. JACOBS, SUPERINTENDEN’I‘
CINCINNATI PUBLIC SCHOOLS

.Mr. Jacoss. Thank you, Mr. Simon, meémbers of the subcommit-
tee. We welcome the Foreign Language Assistance Act and com-
mend the authors and the supporters of the legislation for their
efforts.

- The goal of increasing foreign language enrollments in our Na-
tion’s schools is one which' the Cincinnati public schools has
worked to implement at the local level for several years. ' -

- In that regard we, like the sponsors of this legislation, believe
that innovative approaches to instruction in foreign languages are
essential, if we are to achieve the goal of a nation conversant with
its ne1ghbors .

Further, since language is a thread which weaves and. b1nds
members of 'a cultural group, it is imperative that the language
study includes study of the culture of the people.

The Cincinnati schools initiated a Magnet foreign language pro-
gram at the elementary level in 1974. In beginning our program at
the primary grades, we recognized several advantages:

First: It 1s sunfly commonsense that-the longer students spend
mastering a skill, the better they become. Students who begin
foreign language in kindergarten have the 12 years of their aca-
demic career to become fluent in that language and knowledgeable
of the culture of another people.

Those who begin in grade seven have only 5 years, and those
who begin in grade 9 obviously have fewer.

Second: If the foreign language program begins in the elemen-
tary school, students may build uron their languvage skill at the

_secondary and postsecondary levels. Students interested in com-
merce, diplomacy, or some other field in which foreign language is
an ancillary skill, may branch out in later grades, requiring the
specific language skills which will facilitate and enhance their
performancs in the world of work.-

Last: The enthusiasm and attitude with which young children
attack language makes learning at'the elementary age an ideal
time to begin. In Cincinnati we have developed a unique form of
bilingual education. Cincinnati’s bilingual programs are unique be-
cause all our students are already fluent in English, and want to
learn French, German, or Spanish. :

We begin language instruction in kindergarten, I might point out
all-day kindergarten, by the third grade, and on through the grades

" - students receive content area instruction bilingually. From then on

we employ bilingual classroom -teachers to teach the content areas
bilingually.  All new concepts are introduced in the child’s strong
language which, of course, is English, and then re1nforced and
. preached and practlced in the second language. . -
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In addition, since our classroom teachers are bilingual, they are
able to use the second language throughout the schoolday This
helps to reinforce the notion that the foreign language isn’t simply
" another subject during the school day, but it’s truly a tool of our
communication.

The elementary bilingual program articulates with a bilingual
program for the middle school years, that is, grades §, 7, and 8, and
here I would point out a special feature of this middle school,
which we call Language Plus, which is an emphasis on the careers °
that students may pursue upon completion of foreign language
studies. A. high- school level and international studies academy,
which is now in the planning stages will.be established. An impor-
tant component of this‘program will be the implementation of the
second language program, with application to areas in which we
already offer the international baccalaureate degree program..

The IB program, incidentally, is a rigorous academic. program
based in Geneva, which leads to an internationally recogmzed high
school diploma.

Let me state a few of the concerns we have. Qur pritmary concern

iis the level of funding proposed for elementary schoo! foreign lan-
guage programs. Let me address the issue of incentive funding.

Both the President’s Commission report, and the legislation

_-before you place primary financial emphasis on postsecondary pro-
- grams. While the capitation formula is $20 per elementary schools, .
it is $30 to $60 at the postsecondary level. We believe thlS is a

misplaced priority.

Quite simply, elementary-school foreign language programs cost
more. The financial burden of initiating and maintaining an ele-
mentary school foreign language program far exceeds that at the
college level.

In contrast to colleges, elementary schools are orgamzed on a
different basis. Each teacher is responsible for teaching all the
required subjects to her 30 students. Most elementary school teach-
ers are not fluent in nor certificated to teach a foreign language.

Therefore, school districts with elementary school foreign lan-
guage programs must hire a forelgn language teacher,.an addrtxon-

-al teacher, over and above their regular teacher arlocatlon, in order
to implement such a program. The greatest single cost in elemeén-
tary school foreign-language programs is, therefore, personnel. °

Postsecondary foreign languages have many decades of curricu-
lum and ‘materials development 'behind them. Elementary school
intensive language programs have merely one decade. School dis-
tricts are, therefore, forced to bear the cost of curriculum and new
materials development at a time when most urban districts are in
dire financial straits.

More significantly, even when commercially produced texts exist,
‘many school districts must provide texts for students from thelr
own funds, whxle college students are expected to pay for their own
texts.

Clearly, the 320 per pupil is 1nadequate as an incentive to begin
an elementary school foreign language program, especially in light
of the fact the funding period is for only 2 years. -

Our own estimate as startup costs are approximately $320 per
pupil, and program maintenance costs remain high because of the
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personnel and the graduated nature of the program. We estimate
those at $300 per pupil.

The moneys targeted for elementary schools might more wisely
be invested in a model or demonstration site projects in selected
school districts across the Nation. Such projects would serve as
lighthouses for the Nation, both attracting from afar those interest-
ed in developing new programs and lighting their way. .

We further recommend that urban districts be given priority
funding. Large city school districts are fighting for their lives. It is
simply not enough for them to be as good as suburban or rural
districts. We must be better. .

Innovative foreign language programs, K-12, carry with them a
prestige and aura sorely needed by larger school districts. -

- 'Equally important, minority.and low income students will have.
increased opportunities’to participate in foreign language study, if
~such programs are placed where the students are; that is, in large
cities. : .

The second concern is the great discrepancy- which exists be-
tween the positive effects of this legislation and the postsecondary
institutions, and the burdens it places on secondary schocls. While
there are powerful incentives' for colleges and: universities to
~ strengthen foreign language entrance requirements, neither incen-
tives nor assistance are provided to high schools, which must pre-
pare students for college entry. :

It is imperative that in improving the foreign language entrance
requirements-at the university level not result in an elitist system,
where only.a small -proportion of high school graduates will be able
to enter universities without. being required to do remedial work.
~ The alternative-is to run the risk-that urban districts, already
strapped for funds, will be unable to assist students to meet the
new requirements, effectively shutting out large numbers of urban
youth, ‘many of them minority and economically disadvantaged,
from a college education. , )

Returning once agdin to the concept of innovative elementary
schools, it stands to reason that improved programs in grades K-6
will have implications for the instructional programs in grades 7-
12. It will be the kiss of death to elementary school programs if
students who complete the K-6 'sequence are placed in a traditional
‘beginning foreign language class in grade 7. New or revised cur-
riculum for grades 7-12 will ‘be needed to articulate the elementary
school program. : ‘

Another of our concerns is that the lion’s share of the funds
would go to colleges and universities. As an example, an analysis of
the University of Cincinnati’s foreign language enrollment for 1975
indicated the university would receive approximately $75,000,
based on section 4 of the legislation. ' .

The University of Cincinnati is not atypical inits language pro- ..

gram, and such grant awards would not have to be repeated many
times to completely consume the resources available.
. One solution to the problem is to apportion the funds in such a
way' as to insure adequate funding of the elementary program
priority. ) .

A few other concerns: i
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" Additional legislation to address the area of international and
global studies is most desirable. Language study and international
studies go hand in hand, and both are intimately tied to our
Nation's interests abroad. C o '

The Secretary of Education should encourage other educational
funding programs to add foreign language as a priority. State flow-
through funding programs should similarly place an emphasis on
funding foreign language programs. : : '

In our own State, Ohio, we have been particularly pleased by the
support shown our language programs. This is evidenced by the
moneys we received through Ohio’s ESEA - 4(c)(8) "funds, and
through the voluntary desegregation program funds. o '

That ends my testimony, and I would like to say that I am very
privileged to be here, and thank you for the opportunity.

‘Mr. SiMoN. We thank you. And if the other two witnesses again

ill forgive us, we will toss just a few questions in your direction.

I think the one point you make about dividing the appropriations-
into section 8 is something that ought to be.considered. In deter-
minipg what should be paid per student,. it becomes very difficult.
You have already heard one witness testify against paying any-

Frankly, as a compromise, this bill was introduced, leaving the
high-schogl out, grades 7-12, and .putting it at the elementary level.
joned a cost of $320 per pupil. I talked to an Immersion -
istrator outside of Cincinnati, who told me that the
costs were simply some additional costs for textbooks, which tend
to be more expensive and the additional administrative costs of
finding the right teacher or teachers. Then they must also- go
through the process of having parents volunteer. But he did not
come up with a cost anywhere near that high. :
Is that figure youzhave, $320 per pupil for the language immer-
sion, a pretty solid ﬁ}ur._e? ‘ : ‘
Mr. Jacoss. I don’t ‘know how generalizable that cost is. These
were estimated by our\supervisory staff for the Cincinnati pro-.
gram. Certainly as the movement to train more teachers in foreign
. language gets churncd up,\and as more and more people are com-.
petent in doing that, then\the need to employ an extra foreign
language specialist in a school diminishes. j '
. In other words, if each of the teachersin a school can do the job,
and teach the other subjects at\the same time, the costs obviously
are reduced. But I don’t think we are anywhere near that point, .
certainly now, and probably will not be in the near future. .« .
Mr. Smvon. If you had no-program at all and a bill like this
passéd, what level of funding—per student—would be enough of a
carrot to tempt you to move in what\{;ve consider the right direc-
tion. ' :
Mr. Jacoss. If you're speaking to me éls a large city superintend-
ent, Mr. Simon, very frankly; the carrot, would have to 'be very,
very large, if I had no program now. And the reason is very simple:
Our budgets are so tight that we cannot \a\fford to add anything
extra, especially when we have a segment of qur ‘population—and I
think this is true nationally—who still do not\believe that foreign
language in elementary schools is the right way to expend public
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money. This is that cultural drag that I think good testimony has
been given on here today. :

Some people believe what you ought to be ‘teaching those young-
sters is English, never mind French, or Sraiish, or what-have-you.
So the public sentiment is not terribly strung in support of foreign
language in elementary schools. ' '

That factor, plus the very, very ¢ight budgeis, would lead me to
believe the carrot would have to b vely ciose to full funding before
we would take a new program su:’: as this on.

Mr. SiMoN. Now in Takoma Park, Md.—in fact, there is not an
increment of teachers, I don’t believe. It may be that the classes
are somewhat smaller, but what they do is they get teachers who
are genuinely bilingual in French and English. They have one
teacher for the second grade, or maybe it's two teachers for two
rooms of second grade, or whatever it is, I'm-not sure. But there
apparently you are not talking about an increment in numbers of
teachers.

Mr. Jacoss. Well, that is an entirely different situation, where

- you are blessed in an area of the country where there are sufficient

numbers of bilingual teachers, and that is a rarity, I might say.

- But where you are so blessed the costs obviously are very seriously
reduced. - ‘ :

Mr. SiMoN. Our difficulty, frankly, is the more we raise that
number, the more Adifficult it is going to be to pass the legislation. .
So we want to find that happy compromise that makes the legisla-
tion passable and still is of significant help to school districts like

yours. : _
Mr. Jacoss [ understand.
Mr. Sim iy Rrdahl? . -

- Mr. ERD.. ", “#i:.:0ic you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Mr. Jacobs,

for your testimony and the specificity of it. In the example you
bring out, the question as a followup fo Mr. Simon’s would be how
did this program get going in Cincinnati, anyway? ‘ -

Mr. Jacoss. Cincinnati launched a program of establishing
educational alternatives back in about 1970, We did so for two
basic purposes: One was to give honest options to an urban popula-.
tion of parents and students. We.didn’t feel running a monolithic
system of education was really the way to go, especially in an -
urban area where the needs are so diverse. . i )

Second, we did so in order to racially balance our schdols on a
voluntary basis through this alternative schools approach.

Those are the two basic thrusts for the establishment of alterna-
tives. We have 19 of them, our bilingual programs being 3. of the
19, and they have done extremely well. }

Mr. SimeN.'If my colleague would yield—and correct me if I'm
wrong, you were under court order to integrate? '

Mr. Jacoss. No; we were not. :

Mr. SmmoN. Oh, I misunderstood that. I understocd you were
under court order. Lo

Mr. Jacoss. No; we are presently in litigation, but we are not
under court order.- ~ :

Mr. SiMoN. But you have a school population that is roughly half
black, half white; is that correct? :

Mr. Jacoss. Correct. s

Is
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Mr. Simon. The interesting thing in ‘these schools—these magnet
schools—is that these schools were those people. formerly- were -
fleeing from. Now you have a Qg:f people who want to get into |
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those schools; is that correct?. . .

Mr. Jacoss. That's correct. ' . i

Mr. SimoN. Excuse me. Thank you for yielding. -

Mr. ErpanL. So at that point, maybe the financial situation in o
education was different, but you really had no incentive, fihancial -
incentive to go on? You had maybe an incentive to try to integrate

. the schools? - o L ‘ " '

Mr. Jacops. That is correct. That is a- powerful incentive. .

Mr. ErpaHL. But you say now the situation is changed in your
school, and I suppose in every school in-the country, and if there
woren’t some financial incentive or help from Congress, you just
couldn’t do it? Is that what I heard you tell Mr. Simon a few
minutes ago? . . ' . '

Mr. Jacops. Mr. Simon asked the question, if we had no such
program at this point, what would I do, and I gave the answer that
we probably wouldn’t do anything unless it was full funding, but of
course that's not the position we’re in. We've had foreign language -
alternatives now for several years, and we have no intintion of
giving them up. Legislation would help us. It would produce some:
thing in the neighborhood of $40,000, which would help ‘us a great
deal. But from the viewpoint of a school district, just starting,.
having no past experience with this, and if this is a typical school i
system in this country that is fighting for every dollar it can get,
this incentive is not that great, in my opinion. -

Mr. ErpanL. How do you get qualified bilingual teachers?

Mr. Jacoss. It was very,-very difficult to do that in Cincinnati.
Most of our—well, in the large urban area you are bound to find
some people who are born outside: of our country, and we got
special certification for those people to teach. In one case last year,.
we reached down in Argentina. We were lucky enough to get four
elementary teachers from Argentina to teach in our program. B

- That was a real treat, and they're doing an excellent job for us.
We get them from anywhere and everywhere. IR :

Mr. ErpanL. Thank you very much for being with us today. No -
further questions, Mr. Chairman. '

'Mr. Simon. Thank you very much, Mr. Jacobs: ! .

Now I would like to ask Narcy Levy, the professor at Wellesley
College, to testify, and if I may just add one word here, Wellesley
College is-just getting a brand new director of the Wellesley Col-
lege Press, Jeanette Hopkins. Jeanette Hopkins happeis to be very
interested in this whole area of foreign languages. So you have an
ally who is going to be'on your campus shortly. -

[The prepared statement of Nancy Levy follows:]

e
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF NANCY RutH ‘LEvY, PROFESSOR, WELLESLEY COLLEGE

_There is no doubt that among the politically and economically potent countries of

_ the world, the United States is the most restricted regarding the ability to commu-
‘nicate in a language other than its native tongue. I have found in my travels that
most Americans feel that English is the most widely spoken language; and that
therefore,,there is no reason to léarn any other. This assumption is quite incorrect;
for, "according to statistics Chingse is spoken by more people, English is second

followed by Hindi and Spanish.
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This, however, is of secondary importance when one congiders the more serious
repercussions of North Americans’ inability to communicate\in a foreign language.
In order to achieve intercultural awareness, be it for comme cial, political, artistic
or educational purposes, I believe that it is necegsary to speak the language of the
target culture. 1 also believe that in order to speak-a foreig language well, one
must be aware of the cultural traditions of the target population) "

To cite an example of the importance of understanding another culture, I would
like to quote from “The Losers” by Richard J. Margolis. In this hook Mr. Margolis
emphasizes the importance of recognizing the cultural differenc ‘between Puerto
Rican-American and North Ametican school children, and the harmful effects that
ignorance of these differences can have on the children. “A Puerto Rican junior

- high school student was‘accused-by his teacher of lying because he agerted his eyes

when she was speaking to him. This, however, is a sign of respect the island”.
A tragic example of this lack of communication took. place last mo th in Boston,
when a Puert6 Rican man who could not speak English was stopped by\a policeman

- for making an illegal left-hand turn. The man whs frantically searching}J or his son .,

g the man '
resisting
an man.

who had not returned home the night before. The %oliceman, upon hearin
desperately try to explain the situation in Spanish, thought that he w.
arrest. A fight ensued, ‘which resulted in the death of the Puerto Ri

There are countless examples of the necesgity of understanding the
culture within the Spanish languaﬁe itself. Many Spanish expressions ‘refer to
death, religion and ‘bullfighting, alt| ough_their connotative meanings are\ totally

differeniy . )
To mia}ua in, I have noted that in my six years of teaching on the university
level at Wellesley College and Boston College, students enrolled in our foreign\

languaﬁe programs entering directly from public high schools are, for.the most_part,—— .-
u

ainfully ignorant of the culture of the &eqple whose language they are learning.
me students in my language classes have inadverten y made racial slurs or
eneralizations reiarding ispanics, either out of habit, r.petition or ignorance.
is gap seems to have widened over the years as students come to us less prepared
to relate effectively to the target culfure. .
Another serious problem I have witnessed deals with the issue of inadequate
greparation in terms of basic language skills, specifically verbal communication.
tudents entering college level foreign languafge classes who have had up to six
years of public school language training very often_are totally unprepared to speak
the language. Although they may perform well on paper, their verbal communica-
tion is glar’in]gly inadequate. The major complaint among students is that their
teachers rarely spoke the language in the cFassroom, and that they were never
encouraged to speak it. As a result of this poor foundation and lack of enthusiasm
on the part of the students, enrollment .in foreign language classes between 1974
and 1977 had dropped considerab : ;

ly. , )
In response to this, we of the “/'Velleqley College Spanish Departmeént initiated a .
" campaign to attract more students to the department and to maintain enrollment

because we feel that Spanish is a critical languagé in our national bilingual context.

In 1978, with the su&port of the Spanish Department at Wellesley College, I

e “A Spanish Practicum,” designed to give students the

opportunity of combining their academic study of S(fanish With' real-life:bilingual

situations, while learning about the culture and traditions of Puerto Rican-Ameri-
cans (see attached article). v N i . .

In the same year I.designéd a Career Day at Wellesley, at which time I invite

professionals in jthe fields of law, communications, politics, medicine, education,

" social woprk and business, and who use their Spanish skills 'in their work, to speak to
the students on;the importance of having .a languagp/ skill in order to secure a

better job (see attached information). .. p

. /- . .
My colleague, Joy Renjilian-Burgy and I have incorporated into all curricula the

use of videotape in the Spanish language classroom £o promote’lang-uage acquisition,
to enhance the teaching of literature, art, history and politics, an most important-

- ly, to foster an appreciation of the vitality and versatility of the cultural contribu-

tions of the Hispanic population, to, eliminate - minority “group isolation and to
eradicate ethnic stereotyping of minority groups. L :

Students have responded very well to all of these innovations. Our enrollment has
increased by 53 percent over the past two years. ’

Ms. Renjilian-Burgy and I give national workshops to train teachers to implement

- techniques which will respond to our nation’s need for quality language proficiency.

Many public school systems, community colleges and universities across the nation

have requested that we train their faculty in the utilization of these methods and

the implementation of these courses. Unfortunately, because of mutual lack of funds
we have been unablé to respond to many of these invitations.’ -

\ ~ » o
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It is a tragedy that because of restricted monies we are unable to share this
important and _effective methodology with our colleagues in other parts of the
country. It is projected that Hispanics will be the largest minority.group in the
United States in this decade, therefore underscoring the necessity of acting now in
order to meet the obvious and increasing linguistic demands. LT
I salute Congressman Paul Simon for his .cisive comprehension of the foreign
language needs of our country, and I enth .siastically support the passing of his

roposed bill to provide per capita grants to reimburse elementary schools and
institutions of higher education for part of the costs of providing foreign language

instruction. ‘
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A SPANISH PRACTICUM TAKING THE LA[»GUAGE

OUTSIDE THE CLASSROOM

A MAIJOR prohlem in college-level foreign lan-
guage curricula is the failure to use the target lan-

* guage as a communicative skili rather than as a

textbook exercise. M:my teachers have found. in-
lating real-life sit

in an effort to give the use of the target language
verisimilitude. but as close to reality as these.tech.
niques may come. they are nevertheless simulations,
as the students well know..In response to this prob-
lem l created » course entitled A Spanish Practi-

cum.” which is designed to give students the oppor- .

seh

tunity to bine their demic study of Sp
with real.life bilingual situations.

To increase their fluency through personal and
continued contact with the target langungc. stir-
dents are placed with various Hispanic organiza-
tions in the Boston-arca. They get a firsthand view
and an cvcmual understanding of the Hispani
commumms in their city whxlc they dlscovcr the
importance of combining their chosen field with
fluency in Spanish, The placements | offer are di-

" verse enough 5o that most students can find posi-
. tions appropriate to their major, past experience,

general knowledge. and interests. A sampling of

these placements is: - . . "

‘ Psychology: Casa Myrta Home for Batiered

Women S e BN
Medicine: Children'’s- Hospnnl Boston City
Hospital ..
" Education: Bilingual-cducation depar ts of

Cambridge, Boston. and Framingham public
schools ’

Social work: Mnssnon Hill ‘Community Youth
Group:

Communications: WGBH-T-V La ,Plaza' La

Semana (newspaper)
Government and urban . planning: Inqunlmos
Boricuas cn Accién; SEPAC ( housmg agencyb

The students work as volumecxs:a minimum of
six hours per wcck Since no pay is mvolvcd. most
agencies seem cngcr to participate in the pmgr:lm
and provide an orientation and close supervision for

the students. To complement the students' m&‘m-'

" ship experiences, the following curriculum has

arranged for a series of seminars: N
1 Introductary lecture
2. Films, videotapes, music sessions
3. Guest lecturers -, o>
4. Diary of internship c\pcncnqcs written in!
Spanish

e
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Nancy Rurth levy
5. Tcrm paper wnncn in Spanish
6. Evaluation of student by agency supervisor,

7. Required rcadmg Piri Thomas, Down Thesé =~

Mean Streets; sclections from Oscar Lewis, La
Vida; sclected poktry of Julia de Burgos; Maria
Theresa' Babin, sélections from The Puerto Rican
Spirit. ¢ h

The seminars /mcct once a week for an hour to
an hour and a half. They are conducted in Spanish
and louch ona Wldc variety of topics relating to the
Hi ity in B Since most His-
pnmc peoplei xq Boston are Pucrto Rican, I chose te
focus the curriculum on Puerto Rico—its ‘histdry, .
politics, lxlcmturc. and music—and on the problems
facing PucHO/Rlc:ms hvmg on the mainland.

The first ,sEmmar. an introductory lecture on
Puerto Rico, covers lbc development of the island
from its former position as a Spanish colony 1o its
present status as “Free Associated State.” This lece
ture- frcqur?‘nly evolves into meaningful discussions
among lh students, who by this time have become
well ncqudmtcd with "barrios” lhrough theirintern-
ship experience.

During the next two class n‘cclinss 1 show two
films; a radical, political, pro-independista film e~
titled Puma Rico—paraiso invadido and R anti-
thesis, a nghllsl Blm entitied Puerto Rico— Past,
Present, Promise.. :

“Two more wesks 21~ reserved for music appreci-
ation. I introdmce the students to the ipusic of
Dnnny Rivera through & videotape of one ‘of his
performances, and we discover the roots of salsa
and Puerto Rican protest music.

An additional. week is set aside for the postry of -
Julia de Burgos. 1 show the studesnts a videotape of
her life set against a backdrop of her postry, and
we discuss the status of the Puerto Rican woman as
expressed in contemporary literature. :

The next four classes e conducted by guest lec-
luicrs from the agencies participating in the practi-
cum. In exchange for the students’ volunteer werk,
cach agency is asked to send a rep(eseNtative onre
seminar to speak in Spanish on the funcuon of the

!
* The author is a member of the Depariment of Spanish
aff Wellesley College. )
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agency, the needs of the Hipanic communitics. and
the adequacy of legislation it Muassachuseits w0
meet these negds, :

During the remaining classes we read and discuss
the texts listed above, read the students’ d‘unu«., and
exchange ideas and experiences. - o

Research papers are duc at the last clay meeting.
The students choose topics subject to my [approval,
desliag with a sociopolitical, linguistic, lerary. or
historscal aspect of Puerto Rico. The lopic! may also
be related to a project the student has done at the
agency. Examples of subjects are: )

1. El Puertorriquenio comipleto en Nueva York

3. Una entrevista con tres amigas hispdnicas

3. Inquilinos Boricuas en Accion—inds que ¢l
alopuniente \ '

&, Imperialismo norteamericano en la America
Lating '
5. La poeria ¥ la nuisica de protesta en Puerto

Rico . .

A multipurponse course of this sort will lend itself
to whitever objectives the individual instructor con-
siders important. { initiated the course with the goal
of infproving language skills, keeping in mind that
understanding the culture and customs of u people
is an integral part of learning the language. It has
become apparent 16 me that 4t student may show
excellent sk'ls in the classroom but be totally un-
prepared for ‘the way the langnage is spoken in
common day-to-day use. Placed in a controlled -
bilingual work setting. however, the 'student be-
comes familiar with various speech patterns, ac-
cents. and colloquialisms that cannot be learned in
the classroom. By translating a theoretical knowl-
edge of Spanish into practical communication. the
student will be much better prepared to speak the
language with the various, Hispanic peoples in the
United States. '

I devised the following method of testing the

s

L . :52 ,

changes in the level of aural comprchension of the
Judents 1n the program. After recording several
interviews with Hispanic people  on various topics,
including descriptions of the life of the Puerto
Rican on the mainland and medern-day politics in
Pucrto Rico, 1 played the tape to my students in
“Intermediate Spanish” and then to the students
who had éxchanged the intermediate course for the
practicum in February. I played the five-minute
tape three times and had the students write down as
much information as they could. They were al-

" Juwed to take notes while listening to-the recordings.

The two groups of students did not differ notice-
ably from cach other™in their performance on the
first test, givenyat the outset of the semester. But
when 1 orepeated the experiment in April, using a
diffcrent tape, the practicum students recorded fifty

percent more information than did the students

~who had remained in the classroom grammar

course. (Although for the purpose of the experi-
ment 1 allowed the intermediate students to take the
practicum, [ feel that the course has greater benefit
for students who have completed three years of
classroom Spanish. ) .

I found that the course not only improved lan-
guage skills but also had several other advantages.
The students enjoyed getting away from the i‘dcal-
jzed atmosphere of the college campus and into the
wreal world” for six hours a weck. A few students
remained at their placements over the suminer {0
continue their volunteer work. and some students
securcd salaried jobs as a result of their experience
working in Hispanic agencies. :

I feel that a former student of the practicum
expressed the need for the coirse well when she
sdid, “It offers students who are truly interested in
the Spanish language and Hispanic culture contact
with a Hispanic community to learn to appreciate
the culture and see the problems in the culture in
Boston. It also is an excellent way for students-to
test out the job market.” -,
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Depastiment of Spanish

Wellesley College

Wellesley. Massachusctts 02181 .
(617) 235-0320 Y i

Vancy Ruth Tevy
In the lnnt half of the trentieth cnntur/, cdncntion hag cxperienced
many gignificant chanres te enhance the learning ‘process. One exciting
compronent in- this pedapopicnl evolution has been the use of videotape
in the classroom. OQur ctar-warred, star-trelied students of today respond
very positively to the vibrance of audio~-visual instrunments such as
television., Utilized a2z one =eans to ntimulate interest and comnunication,
| video has flourirhed as -n educational tool, - .,
iAs inntructors vho h .e taucht in the foreign lansuapge and bilingual
setting on the elemontary, hish school and college levels, my collea-ue,
Joy Renjilian-furry and T have vitnersed the ntimulating and successful
apnlication of videotare ‘to teach lancunre acquisition and to foster
an a“rrec11t10n of the vitolity and versntility of U'ispanic cultures.
e use videothre as one component in the Syhaninh lansuare clacsroom
crecitic111yjr. .

1. To erroct bettvr and more ncnnlnvrul connunicwt‘on in the roreign
idion B

- 2. To drill forms, "trucmrc'-
2. To -ractire rronunciation and correct it
4. To acquirn fluency; to hear different Vinranic accents
5. To buile confident nelf-exrression on,tte nart of the students
6. To recrond to the system that enslaves us, the vid-kid generation
7. To .enhance literature -
A% To learn history and rolitics

N //6. To apnreclate art B w
,/ -10, To enjoj music:
' 11. To eliminate mirority rrour irnlation and to eradicate ethnic
7 nterenstyring of minority rrouvs’ L
o 12. To underscore the imrogtanco of arpreciatine all. cultures - .o
1
' 15
N
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STA’I‘EMENT OF NANCY LEVY, PROFESSOR, WELLESLEY
COLLEGE

‘Ms. LEVY I will look forward to meeting her.-

First of all, I want to say, Mr. Chairman, it's a pleasure to meet

ou after.our correspondence ‘finally, and then on behalf of Welles- -

ey College and myself, it's an honor to appear before you to
discuss issues that are not only important to us, the educators, but

- . also of national interest.

. I will be addressing myself to the Spanish language, although the
problems and solutions I will be, dlscussmg I think are apphcable to
all languages.

Si hubiese un encendio aqui y yo quisiera 1nformarles de yo. En

. espanol, creo que la mayoria de ustedes ho se salvarian.

' What I said was, if, for examiple, there were a fire here and I
were unable to communicate this to you in English, I think the
majority of the people here would be unable to save themselves. |,
~ I think it is important o underscore the necessnty of being able -~
to communicate in a language other than our native tongue.

.I feel theére is no doubt that among.the politically and economi-
cally potent countries of the world, the United States is the most '
restricted regardlng the ability to commumcate in a language other
than its native tongue.

I have found in my travels that most Aniericans feel Engllsh is .
the most widely spoken language, and that therefore there is no
reason to learn any other. This assumptlon is quite incerrect, for
according to statistics, Chinese is spoken by more people than -
English, which is second followed by. Hindi and Spanish.

This, however, is of secondary importance when one esnsiders
the more serious repercussions of North Americans’ mablhty to.”
communicate in & foreign language In order to achieve interculiur- -
al awareness, be it for commerclax, political, artisfic,-ox educaticnal
purposes, I' belleve it is necessary to speak the langung of ths}t
target culture.

I believe also that in order to soeak a forexgn language well, onz .
must be aware of the cultural traditions of that target’ "‘“)ul’\t]on

I feel that recently we seem to be falling irack into the ;.enopho-
bic area of the forties, when all of our horror movies that came out”
had for antagonists Bela Lugosi and Boris Karloff. They weve'
horrible because they spoke in a language and had an accent 2ot
EnglisH. ’ .
. There seems to be a fear among Americans of learmng ‘the ...t
language-and the culture of those people. g

""" To cite an example of the importance of understandmg another
culture, I would like tu quote from a book, “The Losers,” by Rich- * |
‘ard J. Margolls In this book. Mr, Margclxs etuphasizes the impor-
tance of recognizing the cultural differences between Puerts Rican .
American .and North American schoolchildren, and the harmful -

.. effects that ignorarce of these differences can have upon the chil--
dren, and I quote: v

A Puerto Rican junior high school student was accused by his teacher of lymg
because he averted his eyes when she was speaking to him. This, howewr, is a sign +
of respect on the island. .

A tragic example of this iack of communicapion took place last
month in Boston, when a Puerto Rican man whe could not speak

Y
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English was stopped by a policeman for making an illegal left-hand
turn. The man was frantically searching for his son who had not.
returned home the night before. The policeman, upon hearing the
man desperately try to explain the situation in Spanish, thought
that he was resisting arrest. A fight. ensued, which resulted in the
_ death of the Puerto Rican man. '

There are &lso countless examples of the necessity of understand-
ing the Hispanic culture within the Hispanic language itself. Many
Spanish’ expressions refer to death, religion and bullfighting, al-
though their connotative meanings are totally different. And I’
think if a non-Spanish speaker were to fully understand and com-
municate weil in the language, he or she would have to be aware 6f
" these cultural differences. : L : :

. To my chagrin, I have noted that in my 6 years of teaching on
the university level at Wellesley College and Boston College, stu-
.dents enrolled in our foreign language programs entering directly
- from public schools are, for the most part, painfully ignorant of the
culture of the people whose language they are learning.
~ Some students in my language classes have inadvertently made
racial siurs or generalizations regarding Hispanics, either cut of -
habit, repetition, or ignorance. This gap seems to have widened
‘over the years as students come to us less prepared to relate
effectively to the target culture. : . ' _

" Another serious problem I have witnessed deals witk the issue of
- inadequate preparation in terms of basic language skills, specifical-
ly verbal communication. Students entering college level foreign
language classes who have had 6 years or more at times of public
language school training, .are very often totally unprepared to
speak the language.” Although they may perform well on paper,
their verbal communication is glaringly inadequate. .

The major complaint among students is their teachers rarely
spoke the language in the classroom, and that they were never
encouraged to speak it, either. . . .
" Now, it’s a shock for them when they come to Wellesley, and
from day 1, whether.it be elementary, intermediate or third year,
they hear no English."We act out, we speak in the language and we |
get results that way. Apparently this is not happening in most
cases in-the public schools. : . :
" As a result of this poor foundation and lack of enthusiasm on the
part of the students, enrollment in foreign language classes be-
twe=n 1974 and 1977 had dropped considerably. In response to this,
. we of the Wellesley College Spanish department initiated a-cam-.
paign to attract more students to_the department and to maintain
" enrollment, because we feel that Spanish is a critical language in
our national bilingual context. . '
. In 1978, with the support of the Spanish department at Wellesley
College, -1 -created a course entitled “A Spanish Practicum,” de-
signed to give students the opportunity of combining their aca-
demic study of Spanish with real-life bilingual situations, while.
learning about the culture and traditions.of the Puerto Rican.
‘Americans. : o o

I placed my students in internships where they worked for 6 .
- hours a week using only Spanish. and combining their other skills.
If they're pre-law, they worked for bilingual lawyers; if pre-med,
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they worked in a hospital, homes for;battered women. I also work
at a.TV station with a Hispanic show. If they're in communica-
tions, I take someone with me on our local program. ] '

No matter what their major might be; if they have Spanish,.I
find them an internship in Boston, where they will be using the
language. . :

In the same year I designed a career day at Wellesley, at which
time I invite professionals in the fields of law, communications,
politics, medicine, education, social work, ‘and. business, and who
use their Spanish skills in their work to speak to the students on
importance of having a language skill in order to secure a better
Job. I insist to mny students that just because you study a language
does not mean you will become a professor, as I have chosen to do.
I, before I became a professor, I explained "to themy have done
many things, such as teaching bilingual education, working for
importing countries, teaching.English in Spain, at which time I
needed my language skills and another skill. ! '

I try to stress to my students to emphasize the necessity of being
a lawyer, for instance, and speaking Spanish; being a doctor- and
speaking Spanish. D :

My colleague, Joy Renjilian-Burgy, and I have incorporated into
all of our curricula the use of videotape in the Spanishlanguage
classroom to promote language acquisition, to enhance the teaching .
of literature, art, history and.politics, and most importantly, to
foster an appreciation of the vitality and versatility of the cultural
contributions of the Hispanic population, to eliminate minority -
group isolation, and to eradicate ethnic stereotyping of minority
groups. . , ‘

1 find we are living in the Star Trek-Star Wars generation. Our’ .
students are vid kids, and normally if you mention to them a
Mexican, the idea that they might have of a Mexican is either the
Frito Bandito, unfortunately, with ‘a sombrero and pancho and
bullets over his shoulder, or Cantinflas-from the comic movie. They
saw this at a young age and on television, and I think if I sat there
- and lold them tl.is {s not necessarily true, or had them read about

-it, it would not im,ress'upon them the'importance and the truth of
Ehis matter, as much as if I shgwed-them a videotape of Mexico
City. . e )

Therefore, the image they have had about Hispanics will immedi-
" ately be replaced by a mcre valid and realistic image. ,

Students have responded very well to all of these innovations.
Our enrollment has increased by 53 percent over the past 2 years.

Ms: Renjilian-Burgy and I give national. workshops ‘to "train
teachers to implement- techniques which will respond to our Na-=.
tion’s ‘need for quality language proficiency. Many public school
systems, community colleges and universities across the Nation
haye requested that we train their faculty in the utilization of
these methods and the implementation of these courses. :

Unfortunately, because of mutual lack of funds, we have beén
unable to respond to these invitations. .

Mr. SimoN. May I interrupt you for just one moment? I regret to -
say we have a vote on the floor, and so we are going to have to
take a 10-minute recess at this point. We will be back shortly.

Th_apk. you.
6 P
~
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[Recess;]

-Mr. SiMoN. The subcommittee will resume its hearing. We were "
hearing from Ms. Levy from Wellesley College, and we interrupted

- her testimony here. We are ready for the climax of those remarks.

Ms. LeEvy. The climax will be in English.

Mr. Sivon. OK. . .7 , : :

Ms. Levy. I was discussing the difficulties that we do have in
getting funding for teacher training. I think that the most impor-
tant use of any moneys that might be available would not be
grammar books, would not be paper or pencils. However, it would
be teacher training. If you have a good teacher in a classroom, you
don’t need a book. I have been teaching for 6 years. I have not
found a grammar book that I have found adequate. I have made
my own units with a number of different books, and find that with
the proper skills and methodology, the class can be most effective.

I have also found from the students that come to us that their
high school training for the most part'is very inadequate. They
have had_teachers who do not know how to communicate in: the
foreign language, who are not bilingual, who are teaching out-of

- the book, studying the night before perhaps, that do not feel com-
fortable in the foreign language. :

" As a result, they don’t use it in the classroom and the students
lose out because of this. I feel it is a tragedy that because of
restricted moneys, we are not able to share this important and
effective methodology with our .colleagues in other parts of the
country. - S T

Wellesley and Boston College have sent us to the AATSP in

Puerto Rico this summer, will be sending us to the MLA in Hous-

ton. Beirig professors, we do ndt have the funds to send ourselves.
The universities for which we work cannot send us to as many -
places as we would like to go, to train teachers, and the schools

‘that want us to come see them unfortunatély do not have the funds

for this, either. - .
It is projected that Hispanics will be the largest minority group

in the United-States in this decade. Therefore, underscoring the = - -

necessity of acting now in order.to meet the obvious and increasing ,

» linguistic demands, I salute you,” Mr. Chairman,:for your incisive

comprehension of the foreign language needs of our country, and I
enthusiastically support the passing of the proposed bill to-provide -
per capita grants’to reimburse elementary schools and institutions

. for higher education, for part of-the ‘costs of providing foreign
" ‘language instruction. - R o ' ‘

Might I just add that along with getting proficiency in the lan-
guage, I again want to emphasize the importance ‘of learning the
culture which is why I did initiate my practicum. Students are
working in Boston with Puerto Ricans, also with Cubans and Do-
minicans, since that is the majority of Hispanics in Boston.

I give seminars on Puerto Rico. They learn how to make Puerto
Rican cuisine, they learn how to dance salsa and meringue. They .
learn the politics, the histpry, the culture of the people. As a result,
they are stimulated to continue and to want to be able to communi-
cate on a more proficient level with the people whose target lan-
guage they are learning. i
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Mr. SimMoN. Does Wellesley have a foreign language requirement
for either graduation or entrance at this point? ' o

Ms. Levy. Yes, we do. You can, however, take tests and if- you
pass or if you have some sort of proficiency in the language, I
believe you can waive the requirement. However, ‘since we have -
initiated all these programs, we have found that students who 4 or
5 years ago might have taken the required 2 years of college level
Spanish and then dropped it, are staying on. Our third year classes
are so full that we are going to have to create new sections, and
they then continue after that. It is truly a joy to.see. : '

I wish again there were more fund);ng-available to-be-able-to-—
meet the growing needs of our students. r ’

Mr. SmMon. One of my observations—and it’s being reinforced
right here in front of me—is that wherever you find that trend
going down in foreign language instruction, you find a Nancy Levy.
or some spark plug there who.comes along with an idea who's"
really willing to fight foy it, and it just makes all the difference in
the world. : : o . ’

Ms. Levy. Thank you. _ ;

Mr. StMON. I commend you. Let me ask you this: In the case of
Wellesley now, in fact, you already have that requirement. I com-
mend your college, for it is a distinguished college, for your pro-
gram. . . .

What would they use that additional money for, do you think?
Would they invest it in language programs? _ .

: Ms. LEvy. Exactly. S .

Mr. SiMon. What would they be doing? S o

Ms. Levy. For example, on a national lével, my colleague.and I
have tried through HEW—we continue trying—to get funding, to
be able to give teacher workshops on a national level. We would
like to be able to train more teachers, not just at our university. T
find our system—and we have been complimented often on ‘all of
our new courses and our implementations .and methodologies. We
would, however, like to"be able to share this with other school
sylstems, with. community colleges, withjn the department our-
selves. = . : - o

I mentioned our implementation of videotape in the classroom.
The students heve overwhelmingly responded favorably to this. It
breaks cultural stereotyping and it gives the students an under- e

- standing of the people they are dealing with; and it also gives them

a language skill acquisition at a higher level. If we use videotape,
we can put on a soap opera in English and turn the sound down
-and teach Spanish by’means of that. We do not have the funding
"-for videotapes. This comes out of my colleague’s pocket and my
pocket. As far as Wellesley’s department, we really have used up. -
all the funding moneys that have been available, and we do sq each
year.. That would be one thing that we would like to do with it.

We would like more sections. I have 28 students in my intermedi-
ate class. To learn a foreign language, we are talking about three
70-minute classes per week, 28 students. Each student gets approxi--
mately 6 minutes of speaking per week. That is not enough, as
good as wé are—and we are quite good at what we do, I believe—
unless the students are speaking miore—now, of course, we have
extra-curricular activities every week, office hours for them to
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" come in and speak with us. But had wg 12 to 18 students in our ,

classes, had we the money for more sections, the students would be
using the”language much more than they are. I could offer my
practicum more often than I do, and take more students into it, so
they would be in bilingual situations every week, speaking 6 hours
per week. ' :
~Unless you use the language, it is pointless, as far as I am

concerned,. to sit in.a classroom and learn rote memory words and
grammar rules that you are not going to apply.

Mr. SimoN. You also teach at Boston College; right?

Ms. Levy. Yes. Correct. '

. Mr. Simon. Does Boston College have any such requirement fo#-_

language? .
Ms. Levy. They have done away. with their language require-
ment. They are in the process of reinstating it. I believe you are

- allowed language requirement, this would come under electives.

You are allowed or you have to take so many course} in human-
ities, and some students would opt for. foreign languages. But I
believe no longer is that requirement in effect, although they are
trying to bring it back. .
Mr. SimoN. And in the case of Boston College, that carrot, that
per capita assistance might be enough to really help them make
the decision to move in that direction?
Ms. Levy. Hopefully, yes. o : - :
Mr. Simon. All right. Thank you. If you don’t mind staying until
Ms. Laroche is finished,” we may have questions for both of you.
[The prepared statement of Julia Laroche follows:]

. PrePaRen STATEMENT OF JuLia B. LarocHk, SUPERVISING DIRECTOR, FORRIGN .
LaNcuaces, PusLic ScHooLs :0F THE District OF COLUMBIA

FOREIGN LANGUAGE EDUCATION“IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

_ Permit me to express my appreciation to the.select education sub-committee for
its invitation to participate in this hearing and especially to express my own
endorsement and that of the public schools of the District of Columbia of H.R. 7580

. and of House Concurrent Resolution 301 regarding foreign language and interna-

tional studies.

As_a-former teacher of English and of Frénch, an assistant director in the

department of foreign languages and presently supervising director of the depart-

~ment, [ 'am pledsed to have this opportunity to share some- of my ideas with the

committee. ' .
[ know firsthand: the value of second or third language learning as a result of
having lived for six years in South America and for three years in Europe. I have

experienced firsthand the advantages of being able to communicate- with: persons in-

languages othrr *han English.and the disadvantages of not being able to do so. And

" as important as the ability to communicate orally with others, I found, was the

ability to understand others, to recognize and appreciate the similarities and differ-
ences between ourselves and others. ’ ’

Until recent years, the public schools of the District of Columbia enjoyed an )

enviable reputation in the field of foreign languages. In one area especially—FLES
(Foreign Langua%:es in the Elementary Schools)—that reputation received national
and international acclaim. :

THE FLES PROGRAM OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

The FLES Program of the District of Columbia was begun as a pilot program in
September 1959 with the allocation of nine teachers to give French and Spanish
instruction to 2,047 pupils in 67 classes in 49 schools throughout the city. Instruc-
tion was begun in grade 3.

Yearly expansion to accommodate grades 4 to 6 and to extend the number of

*schools continued until the school year 1968-69, when the peak of 69 teachers was

5
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: attai:;éd, with 15,135 students receiving ins'tructioh in French and Spanish (grades
. 3-6) and in'Latin (grade 6). : .

In order to expand the Latin Program, which had been begun in 1966, grade 3
il?)%t{%cgion in French and Spanish was dropped in 196]9-70 and 1970-71; grade 4 in

‘In 1971, under a court-ordered equalization plan, schools were allotted funds to
pukchase both classroom teachers and special services, |including art, music, foreign
language and physical education:

Equalization meant equalization of per/pupil expenditures, not equalization of
resources. er the local school budgeting that resulted from the court order,
many, special services were reduced or curtailed in schools throughout the city.

Foréed to choose between classroom teachers’and special services, small schools
found themselves generally able to purchase only classroom teachers and possibly a
reading| or physical education teacher. Larger schoolsislowly found themselves in

similar ‘situations. If they could afford special services, they chose basic services .

such as reading and mathematics resource teachers. Language, art or music were
dropped. Gradually all special subjects were eliminated from the curriculum.

Schools in more affluent neighborhoods in the city frequently supplemented the
regular scnool program.by funding special activities in art, miusic or foreign lan-
guage. Students in less affluent neighborhoods lost benefits accrued from such
activities. : ) .

That reduction of services has continued throughont lhe years tothe extent that
during the last school year there were only eight FLES teachers, four for French
and four for Spanishiin the entire school sgstem. And with the current budget
constraints the future is dismal. It is likely that there will\bé no traditional FLES
program in the District' of Columbia, The international capita
the Congress takes some drastic action. . il

The FLES program was not a “frill”. Many students who began their study of
language in grade 3 continued throughout the intermediate; and secondary grades,
many completing advanced placement courses and ‘many achieving top awards in

iof the world; unless

the national language contests. Many majored in language in colleges and universi-

ties as a result ofithat early exposure to la:guage study. | {
" Those who did not go so far still acquir cornpetencies, kxiowledge and attitudes
and understandings so vital to successful participation in today's world. ..
The objectives for the teaching of foreign language here inithe District of Colum-
bia have been and still are: . R " ‘
Acquisition of competencies, skills and knowledge| in the areas of listening,
speaking, reading and writing in the target language,land -
Development of an appreciation of and an understanding of the peoples of the
world, their similarities and their differences. U R
The loss of a highly structured, well-articulated FLES program has taken its toll.
Because language-study was not considered a necessity lin ithe total education of
public school students of the District of Columbia secondary: language enrollments
also dropped drastically. - [

3
il

< - :
OUTLOOK FOR THE FUTURE

. The public school system of the District of Columbia points with pride to two
actions realized by the superintendent and the board of education during the school
year 1979-80. o ! :

First, in an effort to bring about-a revival of elementary language instruction in
the city, the superintendent in April of 1979 authorized the development of a video-
taped language program for use in the public schools of the District. ’

!
i
|
\
!

ond, the system established a year of foreign language study as a requiréement ™

of all regular students prior to-graduation. - :
The video-taped FLEg program is designed to offer French or Spanish instruction
to grade 4 students in three schools in each of ‘the city’s four regions beginning in

October, 1980. The video-taped lessons concentrate on the development of the feur

language skills: listening, speaking, reading and writing. In addition,the lessons -
include instruction in the history and culture of countries and peoples speaking the
N §

language studied. . o .

The lessons are taught by language teachers selected for jtheir language and
pedagogical expertise, as well as for their stage preserice and acting ability. The
scripts for the program were developed by the teachers, curriculum and lan age
specialists. The lessons themselves, of 30 minutes duration, provide for choral and
individual repetition and classroom discussion. While the claksroom teachers in the

schools will manage the program, all instruction is include;i"in the tapes themseves.

. /,
d/
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Current plans call for the continuation and e)_(pansion of the progrqm‘in the 5t_h
and 6th grades to the end that more students will continue language instruction in

- the secondary schools.

The second language achiévement of this administration—the establishment of
foreign language requirement for graduation—is believed to be the first by a public
school system in the area. By this.action, the District of Columbia public school.
system is already implementing one of the recommendations of the President’s
Commission on Foreign Language and International Studies; that is, that “schools, -
colleges and universities should reinstate foreign language requirements”.

Local governments cannot meet the challenge alone. Forced to meet the basic.
needs of all students, local governments and school boards require assistance to

_enablé them to provide those services which lend to the development of a complete

adult. one capable of competing effectively in the years ahead.
We do not begrudge ‘he strangers to our shores the possibility of becoming truly

bilingual. We do ask, even demand, that native-born Americans be accorded the

opportunity to become bilingual or even trilingual. It is not right that a child be
penalized for being born in the United States. It is not fair that he or she be denied

the opportunity to serve the country in areas where knowledge of a second language -

is-imperative. [t"is our studied belief that any studernt desirous of achieving profi-

ciency in a second language should be accorded the opportunity to do so. It is an

acknowledged fact that the earlier the student begins language learning the greater
the degree of proficiency.

If our video-taped FLES program is successful and if assistance is provided to
permit expansion, the secondary schools will have a challenge to meet—that of
continuing foreign language instruction. Regrettably, the secondary schools are the
stepchildren in FL planning. The gap between assistance to elementary schools and
assistance to post-secondary schools as stated in H.R. 7580 is regrettable.

SECONDARY. SCHOOLS

During the sixties when FLES instruction peaked in the District of Columbia,
language instruction on the secondary level also peaked.. A comparison of the
figures of 1969 and today points up the need for federal assistance. In 1969, there
were 203 teachers of French, Spanish, German, Russian, Italian and Latin serving
mor(e) than 23,000 students. Today, there are fewer than 100 serving fewer than
10,000.

Much of the success of secondary language instruction of the sixties and the early
seventies can be attributed to assistance afforded under N.D.E.A. title III, which
provided two vital services. Monies received under N.D.E.A enabled teachers to

-develop techniques and capabilities which led to more effective teaching. Those

monies also enabled secondary schools-to purchase needed audio-visual equipment

and suppli'es.which made language teaching .and language learning much more . )

- " vital.

We agree that total immersion is the ideal means of assuring the highest degree

“of proficiency in a second language. Certainly the Oyster School here in Washington

attests to the desirability of fostering such programs. However, I feel strongly that
consideration and help should and must be given to the thousands of D.C. public
school students who are enrolled in other ‘‘qualified elementary foreign language
programs . : . C _ i
_The District of Columbia Public School System wholeheartedly endorses H.R. 7580
and House Concurrent Resolution 301. :

By reimbursing elementary schools for part of the costs of providing foreign
fanguage instruction. this-bill will enable the public schools of the District of
Columbia to assure expansion of its video-taped FL™" sogram from the 12 pilot

~schools with 700-odd students to all schools eager t. puar''vipate in the program.

And, I assure you, the desire for elementary languag. inst:uction is strongon the
part of parents, teachers and students themselves. :
. The funding will permit the use of supplementary materials—cassettes, record
players and other audic-visual aids—materials which enhance language learning.
Public school systems all over the country have experienced decreased enroll-
ments, due in great part to the fact that they are not able to provide the subjects
which lead to humanistic development. Such has begn and is the case in Washing-
ton.
The Nation's Capital is the capital of the world. students should and must be

‘given the opportunities to develop the capabilitiés and competencies which will

permit them to make vital contributions to the wotld of the future.

\ . | 67’ !’ l"\ ‘Q‘

/



"~ 68 S y
STATEMENT OF JULIA B. LAROCHE, SUPERVISING DIRECTOR,
'FOREIGN LANGUAGE, ‘ACCOMPANIED BY DELORES STEVENS, -
DIRECTOR, - INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS, DISTRICT OF CO-
LUMBIA PUBLIC SCHOOLS - . -

Ms. LarocHE. I think we are two different spectrums:
, Mr. SiMoN. That’s why you were both invited, but they interre-
ate.. C T, o S
- Ms. LarocHE. Well, Tirst of all, let me thank you for the opportu-
nity to speak before this subcommittee, and to express my own-
endorsement and that of the public. schools of the District of Co-
. - lumbia of H.R. 7580 and of House Concurrent Resolution 301. -
. I always hate personal references, but I wonld like to make
: these, because I think they are significant, having lived in Latin
America for 6 years, and lived in Europe for 8 years. I recognize
the need of a linguistic American society. I have been in situations
+ which were embarrassing to me with my modicum’ of Spanish,
‘when I was in Venezuela, and people have been in Maracaibo in
the oilfields for 25 years and didn’t know how to go about, renting
an apartment on the Spanish market. . - - - .

Until recent years, the public schools of the District of Columbia
had a very, very enviable reputation in the field of foreign lan-
guages, especially in the area of foreign languages in the elemen-

, tary schools. ' _ ' o

That program was begun in 1952, with 9 teachers, and reached a
gevak in 1968-69 with a peak of 69 teachers, teaching French, .

panish, and Latin. Latin was added in 1966, at a time when the
English capabilities of the students were ¥failing, and it was felt
Latin would help them in understanding better their own lan-
guage. CoL ) T . .

We went through a period of budgetary diminution of funding
and slowly, slowly, slowly our program was‘done away with. Last
year, we had four French teachers, four Spanish teachers in the.
elementary school. This year we have none. - oo .

Mr. ?SIM(_)N. And this goes from 69 down to none is what you are

" saying? ‘) o .

Ms. LarocHE. That’s right. From 69 to zero. There are hopes that
‘we will get back some teachers. I.am sure you are familiar with
the school- situation. here.. So many of the teachers have been .
dismissed. Some, hopefully, will be rehired, but the outlook for the
foreign language program is very dismal. .~ | .

The’ program was not a frill: I enjoye/d ‘hearing Mr. Panetta
speak, and he kept emphasizing that it was not a frill at all. Many
of the students who _beﬁan their study of language in the third
grade, continued through the elementary, secondary schools, went

- onto win prizes. They went on to major in college. Those who-did -
not go on nonetheless reached certain competencies, knowledge,
attitudes and understanding, which are so vital to successful par-
ticipation in today’s world. . '

. We see language in the elementary schools and secondary

- schools in Washington as having two objectives, language learning,.
the acquisition of those competencies, and skills, in the four areas,
of language learning; listening, speaking, reading, and writing. And
equally important, we feel, is the development and’ appreciation_ -
and an understanding of the peoples-of the world, their similarities
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and their differences. And I use the word “‘peoples of the world”
advisedly, because whether one be studying Spanish or French or
~ German or whatever, we hope that knowledge that is gleaned lends
to an understanding of the whole world, not just of the Spanish-
speaking peoples or of the French or of the German. .

We .are very excited. At the moment the outlook is dismal, as I
sdid. We ¢un’t have the teachers, but our®system has taken two

\_ . actions recently that we feel are very important! In April 1979, our

\' superintendent, Dr. Vincent Reed, said we had to come up with a

_ plan of 'action for affording language instruction to elementary

‘. school students. And we looked into various alternatives,. and we

‘rejected most of them, because_we said the cnly way to teachis --

with teachers. He sent us back to the drawing board and he said
come up with-an alternative. , T . '

So we came up with the alternative of ‘videotaped-lessons, which
will be begun in Washington in 12 pilot schools in October. October
6, to be exact. N S

The lessons are taught by veteran teachers, using videotape pro-
cedures. The lessons are in color. They will be contained classes.
And we have not only the videotaped teacher, one of French and
one of Spanish, but also the classroom teacher who will monitor
and manage the program. Everybody involved in the program is
expected to continue because this is not a one-shot thing. We want
it to go on. We intend to continue in grades 5 and 6, and that will
put a burden on our secondary schools, our junior high schools.

We have teachers who will then have to articulate an articula- |
.tion that will lead to either advanced placement courses or what-
ever. .

The second achievement—and we feel very, very proud of this
one. is that the D.C. public school system has mandated 1 year of
foreign language instruction prior to graduation from high school.
This is going to be somewhat difficult, because we do know that
every child is not linguistically oriented, and so it will be our
responsibility not only to provide the straight language course, the
traditional ones, but also the other kind that will accommodate the
student who is going into the field, into career education, who is
interested perhaps in cooking, what-have-you, where language
needs are also very valuable.

' The local government, everyone has said ‘this, cannot meet the
_challenge alone. We need help. We need help from the Congress.
We fee] that—I thirtk it.was Senator Fulbright who said if someone
on high says that’s worthwhile, it helps. : ,

We feel the moneys certainly that have been mentioned . are not
sufficient to create programs, but they certainly can assist in the
development of programs we have undertaken.

-~ -We-feel very strongly here in Washington, where we have a
multilingual, multicultural, multiethnic population, that it is mar¢
velous to afford the stranger the right to a bilingual education. Rut
we think it is somewhat unfair to-pepalize the person born in this
country and not permit him or her fo develop that same kind of
education. , s

There has been reference to' the fact that a child may begin
education early in life, and there may he 1 lapse or gap in between

the continuation. He may have that education during the first 6 .

\,
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years, may not get it again until later on, maybe in college. I think
it has beeri proved that langdage learning 1s a strong discipline,
and exposure to it helps one/ when he goes back into it.

You cannot have studied French for 2 years, but when you go
back into the French environment, you suddenly recall, there is a
recall, because of the discipline| ‘

I must say that I think we ‘h:ave permitted ourselves—I'm think-
ing about the language specialists—permitted something of this
decline, because we have thought too much of it as an-elitist
program. -~ - ' E :

- I have found as a teacher jmyself that some of the strongest
. language students were students who ‘were not: particularly high
1Q, just students who loved something different and, you know, we
often look at people and d‘on’tTmow what they’re going to jbe later
on, and that same child wh‘o] is exposed today may noi be the
language teacher of the future; but he may be something else that
needs that language. And so ilt is my feeling that—well, it is my
. hope that the Congress will be able to do something to /help ele-
meuntary and language education. - - ) o

Secondary—and I know thatf you know the need for the second-
ary, because we need that articulation, especially in the area of
staff development. No one has mentioned the word NDEA today,
but so many of us went thr(#ugh NDEA, when there were .the
summer institutes, in which proficiency was really the target. You
were not just put in an institu e and taught. You were divided into
segments according to your owr‘x needs. )

One thing I would like to say also, that if moneys are afforded—
and certainly it’s not enough money to provide teachers, we can see
that carrot would not do that, but we can see that with moneys, we
can set up perhaps summer camps, which I know that.is done in -
Minnesota quite frequently. I g'pt regular bulletins from Minnesota.
They have marvelous camps out there, and we also see the possibil-
ity of working with the private school sector in'the development of
. programs. , ! A

Mr. SiMON. Thank you very, very much. You have some amazing
statistics and also, as you mentioned, the Washington, D.C. public
school system is the first school system in this area|to have this
type of program-—— % 4

Ms. Larocse. I did say, I believe, we have tried ‘to find if there is
another large school system, but we have not found it} I believe it
is the first. ‘& , ‘

Mr. SimoN. My guess is youmay be the first in the Nation. I
d}clm't know of another anywhere else in the Nation that has done
this. ' ' i o ‘ '

Ms. LARrOcHE. .For all \studenﬂ_ts graduating as of 1984, we in-
creased oup Carnegie units from 17% to 20% -~nd one was a
language \requirement. b :

Mr. Simoen. I think that’s marvelous. It is g of lifting the
quality of\ the D.C. school system, and it’s a g - contribution.
I also at going to steal a line| from you, too, when you say it's

!

marvelous| to have bilingual education for a foreign-born perso.,,
but why not give bilingual education to someone born in\ this
country? You are absolutely right."\
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The summer camp programs you mentioned, I don’t know how
they fit into this legislation, but they are very important—not only
summer camps, but the\ weekend programs some schools have.
Many schools use them. And, you know, they charge the students
enough so that they pay for themselves. Right now, this $20 figure
we have it the elementary level, is that enough to be meaningful
to the D.C. school systems? How would that change your program?

Ms. LAROCHE. It would mean, if we think in terms of 4,000-odd
students, that runs—elementary students—4,000-odd elementary
students, that's——

Mr. SimoN. About $80,000.

- Ms. LarocHE. That would permit the purchase of equipment,
particularly in connection with our televised program. It would
permit also the development of workshops and other development
activities. .

Mr. Simon. Can we ask your colleague to join us here at the
witness table? Please identify yourself for the record.

Ms. STevENs. I'm Dorothy C. Stevens, director of instructional
service of the D.C. public schools.

Ms. LarocHE. And Dr. Stevens was just correcting me. I gave you
the figure of 4,000. 4,000 is the number of teachers. The number of
students is approximately 45,000-50,000 who would be involved.

Mr. Simon. But all of them would not be involved in foreign
language at the elementary level?

Ms. LarocuE. Let’s take half of those. I think we want to expose
all. We want to offer to all the students. Qur problem has been
that we have offered to. selected students. We don’t feel that’s the
right way to go. We know some students will not survive the
program. '

I will say I can see a.good 30,000 students in the program.

Mr. SiMON. One other point you make, and I will yield to my
colleague here—it is not just the teacher we want to prepare. I was
in Chicago recently. I noticed the man who was picking up luggage
at the curb from cars. Some Japanese visitors arrived, and he
spoke a few sentences in Japanese to these visitors and, you know,
they smiled. They were appreciative. I have an idea he got a little
more of a tip than he would have received otherwise. [Laughter.]

You know, I think it was a very practical thing for that man to
have a few sentences of Japanese that he could use:

Ms. LAROCHE. You know, Representative Simon, when we were
preparing for the bicentennial 7 years ago, we were in a very
serious situation. We did not have the personnel to greet those
myriads of visitors we were anticipating. And they are still going to
come, and our people are going to go. So I believe we must start
early. I think we can do it, with staff development and with equip-
ment. I know the funding is not—but we have begun a new proc-
ess, and I think it is going to help.

Mr. Simon. Mr. Erdahl?

Mr. ErpanL. Thank you, Mr. Simon. Just a question from Ms. .
Larcche's last comment. Is it specified in this legislation that the
funding would not be for teachers?

Mr. Simon. No: it is simply per capita assistance, but it is based
on student numbers rather than teacher numbers.

Mr. Erpant. So, i fact, it could be used to hire teachers, I hope?

‘i
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Mr. SiMoN. There are no restrictions whatsoever. It could be
used to hire teachers, for camps, for equipment;.any variety of
things. : ! , }

Mr. ErpaHL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I also want to thank Ms.
Levy and Ms. Laroche for being'with us today. I have just a couple
of questions. - ~~ .

You mentioned, I think, the‘commendable goal of the program in
the District schools of having at least 1 year of language, but I
" guess I'm somewhat - disturbed about getting to that goal from
where you are now.

We have seen the elementary foreign language program really
being dissipated over a period of about a decade, evidently, and just
to rlnandate you have 1 year to get there, how do you get to that
goal? .

Ms. LarocHE. We will have 4. years. This requirement is as ‘of
thie year, but it applies to the graduates of 1984, which means then
that many of the students in the ninth grade can take that 1 year
of language now, and they will have fulfilled that requirement.

Mr, ErDAHL. I understand, and I think that’s good and commend-
able, but it seems to me this is not going to happen abra-cadabra
because somebody mandates it. It's going to take money for teach-
ers, and all that. I trust that the money is forthcoming, along with
the mandate. As a new member of Congress, I'm somewhat dis-
turbed that we mandate certain programs and don’t provide the
funding for it. So I trust in addition to saying high school gradu-
ates shall have a year of foreign language, there is also the funding
to make it possible. , :

Ms. LAroCcHE. We do have secondary schoolteachers. I made a
reference to the fact that we lost quite a number of ours when we
went from a level of one to advanced placement courses. That was
in 1969 and 1972. But our’secondary schools still have approximate-
ly 100-odd teachers of foreign language who could accommodate
those students, and we feel also that as the interest in language
increases, there will be a demand that teachers be hired as needed.
There are new courses in other subjects, in math and in science,
and we know that if those courses are deemed necessary, the
money will have to be found. ' o

Mr. ErpaHL. I trust it will be.

Question for Ms. Levy: You mentioned as your students come
into Wellesley, many of them are not equipped to participate in the
spoken language. Do you find any areas of the country where this
Is stronger or some experiences from the high schobl. level where
they are dping some things you would deem to be better than they
are doing 1n other places? e :

Ms. Levy. I have not been able to localize it; no. It seems to be
rampant throughout,the country. One thing I would like to say in
support of elementary school teaching of foreign languages. I was
fortunate enough to have participated in a program in Newton,
Mass.—I won’t mention how long ago—when 1 was in elementary
school. They started me in the fourth grade in French, and I would
-say that by high school I was close to fluent in French, when I
entered college here in Washington, the courses, the ‘classes they
put me in, which were advanced classes, were the books I had used
in junior high school.
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I feel that if you start out at a very early age, when your mind is
a little sponge, certainly you will be a lot more prepared and it’s
painless also to become fluent and to have a command of the
language by the time you reach the college level. ,

It's a shame that I have students in elementary Spanish who
have had 3 and 4 years of Spanish, and they walk intc my class
and are in shock that not a word of English is.spoken, and I would
think they could understand and pick up a few words. Nothing.

And. you know, after a few weeks of course, it’s total immersion
fr them, they start picking up rapidly. But what I want to know is
why hasn’t this been done earlier? Because by then, they cculd
nave been at the level I was in French, and then later quickly
picked up Spanish by the time they came into college. ‘

Mr. ErpaHL. Our son who is in college had a similar problem,
starting in French in grade school. He has a foreign language
requirement in college, so he tested out as a freshman and passed
the test. Now he is takin%a"couple of other languages. Maybe he

.-should have kept on with French, but he wanted to do that. I think
that’s an example of getting a good background early.

Ms. Levy. Harvard University was backing this program, and
years ago they realized the importance of starting out early. Unfor-
tunately it’s not done in many other places. I'm not sure if it has
continued in the Boston area as it was then with as much emphasis
on it.

Mr. ErpanL. No further questions. Thanks for being with us. I
think that we have started off in something that should be empha-
sized through the Congress and in other areas of preparing people
with a second or third language. I think as Americans we are
foolish politically. economically, and socially if we don’t do that.

" So, thanks, Mr. Chairman, for your leadership. ‘

Mr. Smvon. Thank you. Let me toss one final question to Ms.
Levy. It’s kind of a general question. Here you have people working
with grade schools and high schools. You mentioned going to
groups around the country, talking about teaching. If you were to
speak to a-group of grade school or high school teachers or admin-
istrators, are there any particular words of wisdom you would
copve‘;' as to what they ought to do to get an effective program
going? . _

Ms. LEvy. In the workshops that we give, we emphasize cultural
aspects, first of -all, of teaching in the language, knowing the
people. We emphasize speaking only in the target language. We
emphasize—what we do; and when we decided that we had--to-do— -
lsomething"’drast'ic"t’o“iﬁcrease our enrollment, we thought about
‘what are the main concerns of, in.this context, college students - .
which you would have to identify on any level,-elementary school,
junior high school-children. What are their concerns at this time in
their life? At Wellesley and Boston Collége, it's careers. So know-

»ing they are looking for jobs, you put the little carrot in front of . .
their noses and say: “You' will have a better job if you have a
language skill,” and then you get people toK%ome and talk about

. what they have done with their languages. And when they see us—
because all of us on the faculty have had many jobs, nonacademic,
that required the use of Spanish—they are more encouraged to
continue. If you tell them: “When you get out of here, you will
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- have less difficulty finding a job because among your other skills,
! you can communicate-in a foreign language.”
You mentionrd the womar who will be working on the Wellesley
"~ " News. She will soon see the full-page ad we are putting in the
Wellesley News, “Spanish: The Language of the 1980's.” /ind thsi's
all it wi{l say. Students, incoming freshmen, “Gee, I want to find
out about this,” and they’ll be knocking down our doors to find out
e what this ad is about, and why it’s important for them to know it -
in the eighties. ’

I think, like anything else, you have to be a good salesman. You
have to find out what your market is,-and you have to make a good
ad campaign, and that’s what we have done over the last 4 years,
and that’s why we have such a marked increase in our enrollment.

Mr. SimoN. One other point that you just touched on, and that
you too mentioned, Ms. Laroche, that I think is important, Some of
the earlier witnesses say you learn a foreign language and you

. don’t use it, then it is completely forgotten. In fact, it is not
forgotten, it is very rapidly recalled. ' .

Ms. LarocHE. It is my feeling it i8 not forgotten. And the other
thing, if I may, ‘proficiency in language is an inverted pyramid.
You know, you ‘start down here, and we talk about mastery, we
want the child to know, to understand, to be able to do this so well.
But he’s a little one here, and it is with practice that he develops
that true proficiency, and once he has—his ear has been attuned to
something, it is recalled. ’ ' ‘ -

Language recall is very simple. But he has to be in that environ-
-nent. - :

Mr. Simon. We thank you very,’very much for your testimony.
Your inverted pyramid here in Congress, we hope, has commenced,
and we are grateful to all of you. | ) :

Our final witness, Mr. G. Stephen Crane, vice president of
American Field Services International/Intercultural. Thank you
for being here, and for your patience in listening to the witnesses
and going through our recesses here. -

[The prepared testimony of Stephen Crane follows:] . -.

. ‘ PrePARED, TeSTIMONY BY G. STEPHEN CRANE, VICE PRESIDENT, AFS
INTERNATIONAL/INTERCULTURAL PROGRAMS

I am G. Stephen Crane, Vice President of AFS International/Intercultural Pro-
grams. AFS is.a private, non-profit organization which exchanges over 7,000 stu-
dents of high school ‘age among 55 nations and 2,300 U.S. communities. Our stu-
dents live with a family, attend high school and take full part in the life of their

4 host communities. In each U.S. AFS community, local chapters of volunteers partici-
- - pate in activities around the hosting of foreign students and sending members of
their own community on the summer or year abroad program. Hundresds of thou-
sands of people world-wide have been involved in AFS sinte its inception in 1947. .
I appreciate the opportunity to appear before you today and on behalf of AFS,
would like to commend the committee on the attention you are giving to the report
of the President’s Commission on Foreign Language and International Studies. We
agree with the findings of the Commission that the need is urgent to increase the
capacity of our educational system at all levels to offer stimulating foreign language
and international studies training. Accordingly, we endorse the purposes of HR 7580

and House Concurrent Resolution 301. °
As our experience at AFS is primarily at the secondary level, our testimony will
be limited to the applicable provisions of HR 758;. We welcome the study zalled for
in Section 3(c) as a first step toward improving the quality, extent and effectiveness.
of foreign language training in grades 7 through 12. The unique, importance of the
growth and learning which occurs in these grades warrants a comprehensive
survey. We feel this survey presents an inportant opportunity to not only gauge the
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effectiveness of current foreign language training but also the stimulus through the
_study of nations and cultures to acquire language facility. To Tully reflect the

purposes of the bill and respond to the Commission’s report, the survey must- be

nfore comprehensive than the emphasis called for in the bill's current language.

Specifically, we recommend that the survey include a profile and evaluation of
‘current and planned instruction in:international aspects of history, economics,
politics, and culture and of participation in exchange programs like AFS. With thi’s .
amendment, the bill would then address the finding in Section 2 (8) that our
nation’s schools “should provide their students with an understanding on the histo-

- ry and culture which influence the perspectives, values, and attitudes of the people -

of other countries.” , )

The importance of the secondary school level in shaping student interest in . .
foreign language and international studies should not be underestimated. The open- T
ness, curiosity, flexibility and energy of students in grades 7-12 make this period ‘
critical to the development of their international awareness and understanding. ,
College and post-graduate study and career decisions are greatly influenced by the
training and experience students have during these years. The degree to which
language training is effective at the secondary school level and pursued seriously at .~
the university level will depend on ‘the quality and extent of secondary school
of-erings in other areas. The international aspects of the history, economics, politics '
and cultural units in the curriculum need to be strengthened in concert with the
language offerings. Teaching our children to cope with an increasingly complex,
demanding and interdependent world requires far more than facility in another
_language. . .

Together with added emphasis on the study of nations and cultures, the survey
should cover .international exchanges at the secondary school level. Our experience
at AFS with international exchanges leaves no doubt about their value in providing
participants with the understanding called for in the bill. In addressing their value,
the report of the President's Commission states that “‘exchanges have a far reaching .
impact on every major topic dealt with by the Commission. Yet, despite their
manifest importance to the.national security, to the vigor of our educational system
and to the international competence of Americans, our participation in these ex- .
changes is declining.” (p.101) :

While it is not our purpose here to make the case for increased funding of
exchange programs, we believe that their role, within the context of the bill and =~ -
resolution now before you deserves careful attention. The impetus to acquiré a
strong facility in a language by living with a host family where it is spoken, going
to school in anhother country, and taking part in the life of a host community is
clear. The personal growth, inter-personal skills, cross’ cultural perspectives, new
knowledge, global aAwareness and personal friendships which are part of an ex-
change experience reinforce one another as incentives to pursue foreign .language
and international studies after it is over. Many students have told us they were so
influenced by the excitement, growth and challenge of an AFS experience that they
credit it with directing them into internatignal careers. The presence of an ex-
change student in U.S. high schools is also valuable as a catalyst for stimulating the
interest of the entire student body in foreign language and international studies.

Many of the high schools hosting our studeats have AFS clubs. These clubs extend
»the benefits of attending class with someone with a totally different background and

perspective to everyone who wants to come together after school to discuss interna-

tional differences, or converse.in another language, and share_in. their exchange . . _

students’s experience. : .

For these reasons, we urge this committeé to include experience with exchange -
students and international or AFS clubs as a pertinent section of the secondary ' *
school survey called for in HR 7580. Once the survey is complete, we urge prompt
action by this committee to recommend legislation which will respond to the full
range of secondary school recommendations in the commission’s report.

We also believe the value of intgrnational exchange programs warrants their -
encouragement in House Concurrefit Resolution 301.. Specifically, we recommend Co
the addition of “the encouragement of internationak.exchange programs throughout
the school system” between ‘‘education” and “the” on line 11. This addition would
recognize the importance of exchange experiences for students, teachers, school
administrators and others as part of their “work to prepare our society for the
international demands of the 21st centurys *

Thank you. ‘
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STATEMENT OF.G. STEPHEN CRANE, VICE PRESIDENT, AFS
INTERNATIONAL/INTERCULTURAL" PROGRAMS

Mr. CraNE. It’s a genuine pleasure to be here, and I appreciate
very much the opportunity to appear before you this afternoon.

First, a word of introduction as to what AFS is. AFS'is a private, °

nonprofit organization. Each year we exchange over 7,000 students
among 55 nations and 2,300 U.S. communities. Qur students live
with a family, attend high school, and take full part in the life of

the community which hosts them in each country where they visit.

Each community has a group of volunteers to support their visiting -

student during the year or the summer that student is there, and
also select and support the sending of students from that communi-
ty to the other countries which participate. ,

Since 1947, 106,000 students have participated in our program
and have been supported by‘hundreds of thousands of people world-
wide who are involved with AFS. , -

On behalf of AFS, I would like to commend the committee on the
attention that you are giving to the report of the President's Com-
mission on Foreign Language and International Studies.

AFS agrees with the findings of the Commission, that the need is
urgent to increase the capacity of our educational system at all
- levels to offer stimulating foreign language and international stud-

“- ies training. Accordingly, we endorse the purposes of H.K. 7580 and-

House Concurrent Resolution 301. o -

As our experience at AFS is primarily at the secondary level, our
testimony will be limited to those provisions of H.R. 7580. We
welcome the study called for in section 3(c) as a first step toward
improving the quality, extent, and effectiveness of foreign language
training in grades 7 through 12. I ' o

The unique’importance of the growth aud learning which occurs

in these grades warrants -a comprehénsive survey. We feel this .

survey is a signal in itself of the scope of leadership you want to
encourage, and which you mentioned earlier, Mr. Chairman, and
presents an important opportunity to.gage not only the effective-.
ness of current foreign language training, but also the stimulus
provided through the study of nations and cultures; and to acquire
language facility. . , : .

To fully reflect the purpose§ of the bill and respond to the
Commission’s report, the survey must be more comprehensive than
the emphasis called for in the bill’s-current language. o

Specifically, we recommend that the survey iriclude a profile and
evaluation of current and planned instruction in international as-
pects of history, economics, politics, and culture, and of participa-
tion in exchange programs like AFS. e ,

. With this amendment, the bill would then address the finding in
section 2(3) that our Nation’s schools “should provide their stu-
dents with an understanding on the history and culture. which

influence the perspectives, values and attitudes of the people of -

other countries.” , . )

The importance of the secondary school level in shaping student
interest in foreign language in international studies should not be
underestimated. The openness, curiosity, flexibility, and energy of
students in grades 7-12 make this. period: critical to the develop-
ment of their internati8nal awareness and understanding.
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-~ College and postgraduate study anld,career decisions are greatly
influenced by the training and experience students have during
these years. : . .

The degree to which language training is effective at the secorid-
ary school level and pursued seriously at the postsecondary level
“ will depend on the quality and extent of secondary school offerings
in other areas. T

The international aspects of history, economics,: politics, and cul-
tural units in the curriculum need to be strengthened in concert

*  with language offerings. o

Teaching our children tp cope with an increasingly complex,
demanding, and interdependent world requires far more than
simple facility it 10ther language. : .

Together with «ne added emphasis on the study of nations and .
cultures, the survey should cover international exchanges at the .
secondary level as well. Our experience at AFS with international
exchanges leaves no doubt about their value in providing partici-
pants with the understanding called for in the bill.

In addressing their Value, the report of the President’s Commis-
sion states that: “‘exchanges have a far-reaching impact on every
major-topic dealt with by the Comnuission. Yet, despite their mani-

. fest importance to the national security, to the vigor of our. educa-
tional system, and to the international competence of Americans,
our participation in the - exchanges is declining.” :

While # is not our purpose here to make the case for increased
funding of exchange programs, we believe that their role within
the context of the bill and the resolution now before the committee

_ deserves careful attention. The impetus to acquire a strong facility

"in a language by living with a host family, where it is spoken, by
attending high school in another country, and by taking a full part
ih. the li.. of another community is clear. The personal growth,
interpersonal skills, cross-cultural perspectives, new knowledge,

~ global awareness, and personal friendships which are part of an
exchange experience reinforce one another as incentives to pursue
foreign language and international studies after the exchange ex-

" perience is over. ‘ .

Many students have told us that they were so influenced by the

. excitement, growth, and challenge of an AFS experience, that they
credit it with directing them into international careers. The pres-
erice of an exchange student in U.S. high schools is also valuable as
a catalyst for stimulating the interest of the entire student body in

. foreign language and international studies. 4 e

‘Many of the high-schools-hosting-ourstudents-have AFS clubs. .
These clubs extend the benefits of attending class with someone

with a totally different background and perspective to everyone
who wants to come together after school to discuss international
differences, or converse in another language, or share in the ex-
change student’s experience. i I

For these reasons, we urge this committee to include experience
with éxchange students and international or AFS-clubs as a perti-
nent section of the secondary school 'survey called for in H.R. 7580.
Once the survey is completed, we-urge prompt action to recom-
mend legislation which will respond to the full range of secondary
school recommendations in the Commission’s report.
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We: also believe the value of international ,exchange programs
warrants their encouragement in House Concurrent Resolution
301. Specifically, we recommend the adoption of “the encourage- -
ment of international exchange programs throughout the school. .
system” between education and those sections calling for the im- .
provement of international studies and the curriculum at all levels
of education, and the offering of.a wider variety of languages at the
gecondary school level, among the actiona called for in the resolu-
tion., . : o
' This addition would recognize the importance of exchange expe-
riences for students, teachers, and school administrators and others’
as part of their work to prepare our society for the international
demands of the 21st century. ' - ; :

ol Thank you very much. ' : :

' Mr. SimoN. Thank you very much. If I can ask Nick on our staff,
let’s work on some language in the resolution in line with the final
paragraph of his suggestion. On the suggestion in the previous
paragraph about the survey are you not talking about depth of,
experience rather than numbers? Or are you talking about both?

Mr. CraNE. Well, in the context of seeing the'sutvey as a first
indication of the broad interest you have, Mr. Chairman, and this+,
committee has, in strengthening both the international studies as.
well as the foreign language training aspects of the secondary
school offerings, and our feeling that the exchange experience is an
important complement to those objectives,-that the committee
could learn, and I think benefit extremely by having more depth to
the ls;uzl'vey than the emphasis called for in the current language of
the bill. - ' ‘ ‘

Mr. Simon. All right. We'll take a look at that. Let me just add
my own strong belief that these exchanges are healthy, and par-
ticularly at the level the AFS serves. I didn’t happen to be in an
AFS program, but last year we had an exchange student’in our
home, and- it was a great experience for us. Former ‘Ambassador
Rochard, who teaches at Harvard now, believes exchanges at the
high school level are much: more meaningful than those that take
place at the undérgraduate or graduate level of our universities,
because people live in homes, they really get a chance to absorb
the culturs. '

~ Mr. CRANE. That’s the time when the pressure on them from an
academic perspective is not nearly as great as it is at the post-
seconddry level, and where the real objective of the experienceis'
as much in .acquiring cultural and language facility and general
understanding of themselves, as well as the people, and the cul-
ture, and the society in which they are living, and where that

objective can take the predominant role it deservesin terms of the
experience’s potential. ’ ‘ -
Mr. Simon. Mr. Erdahl? '
- Mr. ErpasL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My experience and un-
derstanding of the AI'S program also is a very positive one. You
mentioned, I think. or maybe it came out.in one of the quotes that -
participation is deciining, Did I read that correctly? R
Mr. CRANE. The President’s Comniission, in canvassing the entire
field of exchange at all levels; found it has declined. . 4
Mr. ErpaHL: Do you know why that is?

i
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Mr. CRANE "Well, I can t speak with authorlty to the nonsecond-
ary school areas, but I think within our area of endeavor, our
programs continue to increase, but.at a very modest level in terms
of the rate of growth compared to the growth that we experienced
a few years ago, and that is in part a reflection of the increase in.
“costs of moving a student halfway around the world and back, and
of the capacity of parents to meet those costs, and therefore our
" capacity as an organization to bridge the gap between their ability
to pay and the full’cost of the experience, which is to say that the
program is not as'easily entered now as it ‘was a few years ago,
- from the cost pomt of view. And there also seems to be really for
‘the first time in our.ekperience a declining interest of Americans
'in applying for-this program, and we have a very, very challenglng
job in finding 3,400 or 3,700 families to h\ouse this each yéar in this

' country, and that is probably a combination of economic circum- =

“stances and perhaps, to some extent, a| reflection of a comment
made by an earlier witness. The constituency for this kind of
activity is not growing in the same kind of way it did in the sixties,
and that speaks to the priorities people feel about 1nﬂatlon and
other issues around the homefront.
. Mt. Erpanr. Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Chalrman.
Mr. SimoN. Yes; if I can just comment on your last questlon
What you are talking about really does reflect our culture. I'm not
sure what it says about‘where we are, but it indicates a problem.
At the Fulbright level, for example, in real dollar terms, we are’

" about 30 percent.of where we were 10 years ago, for exchanges, at

the very time when we need it more and more.

~~One other problem in all the exchange programs, and, I under-,
stand this applies at the-secondary school level also, is the cost
factor. Also we are not getting the spectrum of students that we
once did. Increasingly they are middle- or upper-middle and high-
income students, rather than a cross section of people in our coun-
try and other countries, and that is not a healthy thing.

Mr. Crane. Well, this is something that our volunteers who
obviously set the standards by which the few of us are employed by
the organization work are dedicated to trying-to prevent. AFS is
and will continue to beccme a program that reaches middle and
lower. income people, and that is a reflection not only of our objec-
tive to achleve diversity within a country, but to maintain the 55°
countrie§ that we operate with, which includes some very low-
income ‘countries, where the cost of'the program far exceeds the
_capacity of any student who applies to come.

But, of course, to come back to your point, Mr. Chalrman, the.
complementary nature of the incentive, the signal that you are

. seeking to send to all levels of education in this country, and

certainly the secondary level, would, I think perhaps reverse the
kind of trend that is reﬂected in only one sense by the number of
students we now find applying. The more that secondary schools
are able to offer stimiulating programs, in not only language study,
but international studies in general, the more there, will be interest
in pursuing this kind of experience as part of that level.

Mr. SiMoN. We thank you very much.

. Mr. CraNe~Thank you, sir.

Mr. SmmoN. Our hearing will be adjourned. We will mark up the
resolution on’September 17

[Whereupon, at 4 p.m,, the hear1ng was adjourned.]
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\ HEARINGS ON FOREIGN LANGUAGE AND
e INTERNA’AI_‘IONEAL STUDIES -

\ —— -

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 17 1980

House OF REPRESENTATIVES
SUBCOMMITTEE ON SELECT EDUCATION
COMMI’I'I‘EE oN EpucaTioN AND LABOR,
Washington, D.C.

The s upcommlttee met, at 9 a.m., in room 2257, Rayburn House |
Ofﬁc((?l Bujlding, Hon. Paul Slmon (chairman of the subcommittee) '
-presidin .
B \’Iemb%r present: Representatlves Simon, Stack, and Erdahl.
-~ Staff prs\aent Judith L. Wagner, staff dlrectm, Nick Penning,
- staff assistant; Cheryl Kmsey, research “assistant; Dianna Faye
-Cregger, exe ecutive secretary; William Clohan, minority counsel for
education; and Terri Sneider, minority leglslatlve associate.

Mr. Smoxsl The Subcommittee on Select Education of the Com-
mittee on Education and Labor will come to order for our second
gg{ of hearings on H.R. 7580 and House Concurrent Resolution

We are very pleased to have as our ﬁrst witness, James A—-—
Perkins, Chauy an of the International Council for Educatlonal
- Development, but he is also known for many other things.

He is the former president of Cornell University, and perhaps
most significant'of all, at' least in the minds of some of us, for being
Chairman of the President’s Commission on Fo oreign Language and
International Studies, where he provided exemplary leadership. It
was my privilege to serve under his tutelage and it is great finally to
have thtlevlgavel instead of his having it so I can get revenge. .

Now, Chairinan, we welcome you. We will enter your formal
statement in the record and you may proceed as you wish.

STATEMENT OF bR. JAMES PERKINS, CHAIRMAN, INTERNA-
TIONAL COUNCIL' FOR EDUCATION DEVELOPMENT, AND.
CHAIRMAN OF THE PRESIDENT’S .COMMISSION ON FOREIGN
LANGUAGE AND INTERNATIONAL STUDIES -

Dr. PERKINS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. \
I only want youto use your gavel with the same restraint that I
—did'in dealing w1th‘you—or*t}-e€omnnssxon—sxr“‘ S
Mr. SiMoN. You were very.restrained;.I have to give you credlt
D{PERKINS With some members.
k you, Mr. Chairman:
I have ‘filed a brief statement about my interest in your very
- important legislation around which these. hearings have been orga-
ngzed ,
j ’ (75) ' '

, . r‘

f
|
|
|

st

§0




1

76

Let me just make some quick comments that may take some-
where around 5 to 10 minutes, which I gather is the time allotted
to me. ‘

First: I know I do not need to indulge in my usual opening
paragraphg about the importance of foreign language in the United
States, their connection with international studies, the role they
play with our national security programs, with our international
economic and export programs, and with respect to our domestic
pluralistic ethnic society. ' '

All of these factors together have raised in the recent half

decade the attention of the United States to the disjunction be-
tween the rises in the importance of foreign language capability on
the part of the United States, on the one hand, and the decline in
the attention given to foreign languages in our school.systems
running from kindergarten through grade 8. .
- It is this disjunction that led to the formation of the President’s
Commission, and was the key, if there was a keyiiote to our studies
and our report, it was to sharpen the understanding of this disjunc-
tion, to indicate the dangers if this growing gap were not closed
that led to a whole series of recommendations in.the President’s
Commission report. - : .

Speaking to that gap and that disjunction, let me say a few
words about the importance of foreign language and its difficulties
in our country. v '

There are four points I want to mention. One, any study requires
a minimal of understanding to what purpose the study is being put,
and we- have extreme difficulties in this country in developing
appropriate motives for young people coming through the school to
develop either a written or a spoken knowledge of a foreign lan-
guage for two reasons. . ' o

Up until recently, with the increase in ethnic minorities, they
never heard the foreign language on the streets. We now hear it in.
all the taxicabs in New York, mostly Spanish, so that is one diffi-
culty that they don’t hear it at home, and when we go abroad, they
are told, and I think largely incorrectly, that everybody speaks
- English. - . .

- By everybody, I mean the importers, the people in the foreign
taxicabs, in the hotel lobbies, at the desk, but beyond that, there is’
"a huge population. ‘ T .

". Perhaps 80 percent of the world has no understanding of English
at all. Co- .

- The first point 1 would make is that the foreign language pro-
‘gram has to recognize and deal directly with the disadvantage we-
have in not having a society like the European ¢ ~tries;  where
one can hear and indeed one must use a foreign lz..guage z\ah\part
of one’s daily activities. i S

The second point I would make about our language requirement
is that it must have an early start, and 1 don’t know the figures,
even my great colleague, Barbara Burn, has not supplied them for
me, about what percentage of primary schools offer a foreign lan-
guage at all. ‘ ’ .

I.am told that it is as low as 1 percent. -
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It may be that a higher number should be used, and if that
becomes important, Richard Brod would know, and if he does not,
we will address a letter to the Modern Language Association.

The third part of a language program, aside from the necessity
for an early start, there must be good teaching, and the Commis-
sion, as you know, Mr. Chairman, ran across the track .that our
'~ tegching of foreign language is going downhill. People are dealing
more and more routinely with-a subject that can be made interest-
ing, and surely, this nust be part of the total reorganization or

reorientation program. : _

" Our teaching is in a state of disrepair. Only a small fraction: of
those ' who are teaching a foreign language in primary or secondary
schools have had any training in the teaching of a foreign language.
beyond high school. i ’

No wonder they are not able to inspire youngsters and they
: become all important for the first reason I mentioned; namely, that
we have to take extraordinary measures to overcome the basic
difficulties we have due to our geography and our Anglo-Saxon
" ethnic-dominance. , N ' .

The fourth ‘point was made vividly by the Minister of Education
in Romania some years ago, who said after 4 years of study they
decided that their foreign language program had to have a continu-
ity starting with third grade and running right straight through.to
college _ : - . o

Al of any importance between 3d and 12th grade was to
lose a i e part of the investment, so now every youngster in
Romania at third grade must select one of four foreign languages.

Incidentally, English is chosen by 80 percent of the youngsters
and Russian 2 percent, a- matter that has provided some individual -
consternation between the Romanians and Moscow.-
. About 2 years after that at fifth grade, they must select a second -
foreign language and they must continue both of these right

straight through high school. Continuity is not part of the Ameri-
can picture. - ) '
Some people who start their language in primary school drop it*
in high school. Most of them do not start, and if they take it at all
through high school, they drop it in college. There is no continuity
. that is needed for the development of linguistic ability which mus®
start early, and cannot be interrupted. It can only be intétrupted if
you go to a foreign country and live in a foreign culture but that is
only a’ very tiny fraction of students who have that advantage.
Let me turn specifically to the two areas mentioned in this very
. important legislation, the Foreign Language Assistance Act.

The first point, well, the general point I would make is, and I
have already made it, thht the absence of teaching of a foreign
language at a primary school level is an extremely damaging omis-
sion, because it is at this level that we all know, parents and even
children know, a foreign language is most easily absorbed.

I can remember when I first.took ‘Spanish with the Berlitz School
at’the young age of 51 ¢.- 52, I.was-told by my teachers, Senior, the
charices are 9 out of 10 that I'was much too old to startlearning a
‘oreign language; I had too many disadvantages on' my mind, and
. couldn’t concentrate on what he was saying, and he was right.

o 'S
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A third grader doesn’t have to worry about \;\//Imether his wife’s

_ relatives are coming to dinner and to remember to take that pack-
age-home with him, so he absorbs it very quickly,

The primary exposure to foreign language and the omission
thereof is a very damaging omission. Learning is high but the
visible incentive is low. This is the 'agonizing disjunction we have
at the primary school level. High capability of learning a foreign
language, low visible normal incentive, so at the start we have to

take some extraordinary steps at the primary schoo] lgvel to turn
around that imbalance. . : T

This has led to a variety of suggestions, all' of them good, in- .

creased use of foreign students who are increasingly flooding our:.

‘ schools, and they have children who are now coming up through

the primary and secondary school grades, and this is true of almost’
every country, certainly true of us, and we have to develop, the
word synthetic is wrong,.but we have to develop alternate environ-

" ments which we can create here at home, to the disadvantage of

N

not being able to cross a border iz an hour as they san in Europe

-and be in angther cult ure.

I think th4t a'second point is the point to which this legfélation

i addresses itself; namely, that schools need an incentive. They need

to be encouraged to hire foreign language teachers, improve the
training of those they already have, und to encourage legislation
which speaks directly-to the notio:t of Federal support through
grants based on the mumber of students who come into these lan-

£uage programs. ¢

Knowing you as I do, Mr. Chairman, I know you know that you
are dealing with a key part of a total picture. This alone will not

“turn it around but without it a key incentive will be missing, and

but your legislation provides a very key piecs.

this to me is the importance of this legiskation. P

Teacher training has to be improved. We have tq deal with the
problem of creating alternate environments that adfik}ealism to the
study of Toreigti language and we .have to connect foreign lan-
guage in..ruction with social studies tc make it more meaningful,

It is by financially encouraging schools to take on language
instruction. so I say categorically that as part of @ total picture it is
an extremely important, extremely important matter, and I would
say one other thing, that qu..e apart from the money involved or °
from the procedure which will have to be set up io see to it the
money gets into the right hands, the very fact that a Federa!
legislation recognizes the priority of language teaching at the pri-
mary level will have its impact. N

We frequently think money is the oiily thing that moves people,
and it is not. Money helps, but the notion tha! people in the U.S. "
Congress think that teaching of foréign language at a primary
school is important .enough to warrant this kind of legislation,:and
that notion of priority will seep its way into the primary schools
and into the families with, I hope, relatively high speed.. o

The other area you address yourself to, higher education; there
the problem is, as we all know, and we agenized with this in the

Commission. is.the decline in the requirementg for entry -or for
graduation from our colleges and universities with respect to for-

eign languages. [

i
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There has been a decline in that steadily over recent. years, and
it has to be reversed. We were not wnanimous on feeling whetner
the requirement ought to be placed:at the entry for the freshman
year or for exit to get a degree. Some argued for either, or some
argued for both. Lo .

I would say that I would settle. for what may sound like a *
compromise; namely, th..t if the colleges set this requirement at
entry to their colleges, universities, and in granting of their de-
grees, it will be a very substantial édvantage in both admissions
and graduation for stusznts to come with an uchievement capabili-
ty in a foreign language. \

I think a case can be made that a flat requivement for anterine
college will probably be discriminatory, buth in terms of ra«
geography. : :

Second: Everybody really can get by without it. ;

There is a large number who would be embracad by the 5" ..
ment of preference that I have just described, and I think your !
action with respéct to the higher education part of your bill is I

f

important.

With respect to the middle range, the secendary school, the
suggestion in your bili that this'be exam:ned ratker than be includ- |
ed in the first instance, is a very sensible suggestior:, because we |
know that both the expense and the romplexity ef puttigg in this |

program intc the secondary schinol, as well as primary and colle- /
¢ giate, wouid be a Horrendous uncertaking iu the first instance, and’
it may weil be after yuur secondary school study ig completed, you
may wish to recognize what I have said earlier; namely, that there
ought 'to be a continuity of lanzuage speaking running from 1st
grade through 12th. o ? ’ ‘

- I wouldn’t wani the implicatidn to be read into this legislation,
because' I know vou well ei:ought to khow it i¥'not yours, that the
‘'secondary education level can bé ignored. ) ‘

You are jast saying that it ought to be studied more carefully

" before you decide how it can bacome part «f a continuous language

change. Ii I am wrong about that, perhaps you wiil tell me.

Fina]ly, I have two smal! points to mentica. .

We were extreinely concerned and interested in the notion that
language ability not be measured by the number of years you may
tike a language. Unfurtunately, one negative comment I have
about the bill as I now. read it is that it refers again to a 2-year
capability, as if that measured capability.: ‘ i

it is my very firm belief, Mr. Chairman, that 2 years of exposure
to a foreign language, 1 year is insufficient and, 2 years does not
address whether or not you are talking about speaking and read-
ing, and it’s the absence of the spoken language that is one of our
greatest deficiencies. '

I'would say that the 2-year time served is no way in which we
deal with, let’s say, mathematics. Nobody passes a language re-
quirement by saying I had 2 years of mathematics; you have to say
geometry or trigonometry or whatever. ‘

Fortunately, partly under the Commission’s inspiration but not
our initiation, the Foreign Services Institute, { ~onjunction with a
good many colleges and the Educational Testing Service, have de-
veloped fairly sophisticated. measuring routes now for determining

“
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what the achievement level is of a foreign language as opposed to :
the time served, and I would hope if this bill is to be rewritten or .

modified in any way that some attention would be given to the
need for developing measures of achievement rather than just the
number of times or years you served. o

My final comment, Mr. Chairman, is a reflection of what I said

“in the Beginning; namely, that I think one of the greatest services

performed by your committee and by this legislation, and if I may
embarrass you, Mr. Chairman, about your g/pod self, has been the
fact that you are interested. - .

You have no idea what water on the desert has been to the
foreign language community to find that a group of leading Con-
gressmen, now added by the Senate too, are really taking an effec-
tive leadership in telling the country this-is iinportant, you.intend
to do something about it, and you ought to croperate. .

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, o

[The prepared statement of James Perkins follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF JAMES A. PERKINS, CHAIRMAN, INTERNATIONAL CQUNCIL

FOR EDUCATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

I am pleased to testify before the Select Education *:ibcommittee with respect to
the Foreign Language istance Act, H.R. 7580, and House Concurrent Resolution
301. Paul Simon, a father of the President’s Commission on Foreign Language and
International Studies, was a colleague and friend in that enterprise. The impact of
the Commission on foreign language and international studies in this country will
depend greatly on his continuing efforts and those of his many colleagues within
Congress and outside who support this crucial field. :

The President’s Commission called attention to “Ameérica’s scandalous incompe-
tence in foreign languages.” The current state of foreign language and international
studies in the Uniteu States presents grave proklems. As the Comnmission stated:

“Our schools graduate a large majority of students whose knowledge and vision
stop at the American shoreline, whose approach to international affairs is provin-
cial, and whose heads.have been filled with astonishing misi::Zsrmation.”-

In the ten months since we reported to the Presidznt, the situation-hss begun to
improve, but a much greater effort is needed. The ¥oreign Language Assistance Act
will help significantly in meeting this need..Its objectives, namely, to encourage
expanded enrollments and”improved teaching in foreign languages at all levels,
have my wholehearted endorsement. - R

Although comprehensive and exact statistics on language enrollments in our
elementary schools are hard to come by, we know that'a great many of these,
schools teach no foreign languages at all. At many of those which do the teaching is
8o limited and ineffective that the pupils gain little from it. But as people learn =
foreign language most readily as young children when the learning comes carily
and is even a game, our failure to terzh foreign langitages in the elementars =7:-o0ls
i8 an enormous waste of an opportun:ty.~This is all the more true because . iztics
show that students who have studied a foreign language at school are more iy to

ursue language study at college. That the federally funded Foreign Language in
lementary Schools (FLES) program.of the early 19605 which attempted early
language training failed to live up to expectations d‘;d not’invalidate the goals of the
prog=am. It underscored the importance of matching the goals with effective means.

The handful of international schools in the Wnited States and, the larger number
in Europe set up for the children of, staff working for the European Economic
Community in Paris, Geneva and elsewhere dramaticall demonstrate the impres-
sive language learning possible when it is an important part of the curriculum.
Here in the nation’s capital the Washington International School is a notablé
example of the foreign lunguage skilis children can acquire ai a ySuug uge.

In general, however, the motivation for foreign language study in kindergarten
through sixth grade is limited, The enhanced job prospects-that knowing a forei
language offers have little reality’'to young children. For example, the fact that the
beflnnmg salary for college graduates in agricultural economics is several thousand
dollars higher if they know a foreign language is hardly likely to register with
college or high school students, let alone grade school children. For these reasons it
is important that federal funding energize foreign language teaching at its weakest

. "
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point, namely our elementary schools, as is proposed in the Foreign Language
Asgistance Act. ; .

Having said this, | must emphadize that funging the-elementary schools to put
more children into foreign language classes is by no means the main or chief
solution to strengthening foreign languages in the schools: Federal funding is not
enough by itself. As the President’s Commission on Foreign Language and Interna-
tional Studies found, foreign langusge teaching requires dramatic improvement
(including more use of the techniques of drama). Foreign languages should be
taught so as to turn students on to foreign language learning rather than, as so
frequently occurs, to turn them off. On this point the President’s Commission

" identified as a persistent problem in foreign language instruction a “lack of imagi-
native language-training courses that touch, excite or motivate students.”

At the higher education level the proposed legislation would* provide concrete
encouragement to our colleges and universities to require foreign language for
admission or graduation. The President’s Commission urged the reinstatement of
such requirements. As was emphasized to. me at meetings with the Chief State
School Officers, if the colleges do not require foreign language for admission, the
schools zr2 not likely to feel impelled to teach them.

I lLave, however, some reservations with regard to the nature of the foreign
language requirement in the -proposed bill. Defining it in terms of two academic
years of foreign language credits perpetuates a major deficiency in fgréign language
teaching in our schools and colleges. It nerpetuates the notion that foreign language
learning should be measured by the nuiaber of hours sat in the classroom rather
than the actual proficiency achieved. 1 would therefore hope.that the legislation -
could be modified to define foreigh language requirements in terms not, of academic
credits but of proficiency, at least as a long range goal at such time as we have an
effective system for assessing proficiency.or competence in our schools and colleges.
The developmeént of such a system has been underway in the last year or so through
the collaborative efforts of the Foreign Service Institute cf the Department of State,
a dozewu or so colleges and universities, and the Educational Testing Service. The
President's Commission was impressed by this development and stressed the impor-
tance of competency assessment as a goal in our recommendations. :

Somewhat related to this point, Section 2(2) of the bill provides that “foreign
language teaching which is more than rote memorization should be encouraged.” As
this statement implies, foreign-language teaching should not concentrate chiefly on
reading and writing but on -speaking and understanding. In its study for the Presi-
dent's Commission the Rand Corporation found that American businesses involved
internationally give a low priority to foreign language in staff recruitment because
so few people consing out of our colleges and universities, even the foreign language
majors, have a working competence in foreign languages. T

is finding confirms the urgent necessity to survey the effectiveness of foreign
-language training, as provided in the proposed legislation with respect to grades 7-
12 and the community colleges. One way to inject more content and vitality into
_foreign language teaching is to use it more as a vehicle for teaching about other
|countries and cultures, as urged in H.R. 7580. In so doing we should avail ourselves
of tho rich resourcé which the more than a quarter million foreign student: in
American higher.education constitute. So tco do the returned Peace Corps volun-
teers and the thousands of foreign ‘visiiors coming to this country every year. And, -
as implied by both H.R. 7580 and House Concurrent Resolution 301, social studies
and foreign language programs -in our schools should work much more closely
together in strengthening this teaching about other countries. * .
he Foreign Language Assistange Act calls for extra funding for the léss common-
ly taught languages. Inattention to them iwas yet another persistent problem in
foreign language insttuction identified by the President’s Ccmmission. For some 80

“percent 5f theiworld’s population the uncommonly taught languages are their

comimuni-ate with these people as required for economic) political and cultural
PUrpOS. :

To ‘one! _de, the purposes to be served by the Foreign Language Assistance Act
are crucial and urgent. Although its provisions will need to bé complementad by
increasest offorte to-improve the uality of foreign language teaching and to moti-
vate students ro study foreign languages, H.R. 7580 is an extremely important step.
Most finportant. it is a concreteé acknowledgement of tMe responsibility of the
federal govermmnent for strengthening foreign language teaching in this country.

Mr. SimoN. We thank you, Dr. Perkins, for Jour testimony.
Just a comment or two. o .
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One: I have asked my staff to note your suggestion tiial somc
kind of reference to an emphasis-on the spoken language ought to
be included. : o

Dr. Perkins. Excuse me, Mr. Chairman; again a report on a
foreign experience; the Peking Foreign Language Institut has’five
departments in their foreign language institute; one for reading,
one for writing, one for speaking, one for listening, and one for
translation. ' .

They say they have discovered that those five needs address

themselves to different skills and different teaching arrangements;: -

and they also say that the way in which you enc urage people to
really get into the business of learning to read and write is to first
spend the whole first year on speaking and listening. ‘

Then they take dp reading .and writing, and then they.take up

" grammar. Mr. Brod will shoot me for entering into his field. Even
from the Chinese we may have something to learn on.the teaching
of a foreign language. :

Mr. Siaon. There may be a great deal to learn. One of. our
observer: m the Embassy of the Netherlands mentioned that
about 80 percent of the people in the Netherlands have a function-
al ability 1.. another language. : e '

Dir. Pexkins. And more than one.” - - :

My, Y1Mmon. Probably d very high percentage in more than one.

Dr. Perkins. I don’t know the gentleman, but he is probably too
n:cdast o sey, but I think I am correct; Holland and Denmark are

the ceuntries that bave the largest language proficiency on the’

part of their hizh: school graduates of any country in Europe.
" Mr. Smvon. | dun't think there is any question about that and

geography cert-iniy plays a role, but geography is not the reason
. for Japan or Chinu putting great stress on language. ’

D~ PerzINs. Yes.

~ Mr..Siyon. Any suggestions that you or anyone else here has on
“the guestion o the 2-year quéstion that you mentioned? In a bill

yoit have to put something conerete. As you reflect on this, can you

suggest any modifications? T '

.Dr. PErvins May I send you a paragraph on that.point?

‘Mr. SizioN. We would appreciate it."We can also put things in

.- the report of the ‘ccmumittee which do not have the same status as
law, Lut make clear to the Departmeut of Education or any other
dgency rhai the legislative intent iz. )

I'r. PERKiNS. Fart of the legislativi: bi:tery.

Mr. Simon. That is correct; o7 » +F *h v reasone we did not touch
civ the .igh b0l area, waz; tl < v eoliezgue ar ! mutual friend,
Mitlicent. & sk, felt very strong.y that this sFouid not be includ-
ec, but we . .o felt Ly pushing a’ the college-level we would

Jindirectly influence high schoo! rur;icalum. If vou have a rec ire-

+ must either for entrance or graduation in crder to get those } .der-
al fund- there would be a great push con the high schcols lo
‘ provide .ais instruction. _— "

Dr. Perxins. I thought by mentioning the high scher’ -« he
.priraary school, F meaa mentioning thie coliege and’cps primary
¢ ..»0l, but not mentivning the high school knowing your ingenious

4y of getting attention, this -vas your way of focusing on the high
see. 1 needs. . .

N P (¥
s
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Mr SIMON You glve r reater ‘wisdom than I have; I am
afraid. - —

A question; and then Vo ﬂeld to my colleague from Florida.

There are those whe.  * ve are in a period of inward movement.

We are looking inwerd cyustantly. You can see it in a variety of
ways, the rising pr: )tectiomsm, and the feeling, let’s keep: the :
Cubans out and a hest of ' ways. People are saying we don’t want to
" have anything to do with:the rest of the world. .
Dr. Perkins. The Cubans and the Toyotas. :° ' ‘
Mr. SimoN. Some people are saying, this is not the time, to be
moving toward more work in mternatlonal studxes and forelgn
language.
How would you respond to some of my colleagues in the House
or Senate who take this pgsition? ' -
Dr. Perkins! Well, L think I first°concede that this is the fact,
that there .is such a tendency, and I would describe its extreme
danger in allowing that to continue, and I would like to ask them if
they know what percentage. of the profits of American business
come from their overseas business and how they are rising. -
I believe it is now something like 30 percent of the profits of the ~
first 500 companies in the: United States is earned o\erseas and
that figure just 10 years ago was something under 20 percent, and
my ‘business commerce fnenas tell me that that percentage is
likely to rise.
| Ask théem how an mward-lookmg philosophy and capabihty is
going to deal with an.outward advantaga.
The second thing I would say to your colleagues would be, any
security, issue you wish to lgok at shows that ignorance of what is
\l‘u) . going on, what the intentions of people outside the United States
are with respect to us and our interests, is on the increase.
I dor’t think there is a time iz our life when in the history of the
. /. United States when it was so &mportant to know what. was going on
a in the minds of the tribal people in Afghanistan, the difficulties =«
going on between North and South Korea, the tribal dlfﬁculta,es in
making a country out of Nigeria, and -to say we ¢an be-ignorant
and secure is just sheer foolishness.

* You will hot call your colleagues foolish, but you. might want to
say that those who claim this mxght be. mdulgmg in not very .

straight thinking. ]

Mr. Simon. M. Stack? ' -

Mr. Stack. I want to certainly welcome our very distinguished .
witnes:: and thank him for his testimony.

I'don’t know that I have anything par'’~ular 6 add except thls,
that I find it aimost unbelievable that people can these days get
into college or gr- ~Juate from college not having had at leaat some
exposure to one ¢r .nore foreign languages. .

Dr P=rkins. Unbelievable but true.

Ar. Stack. Yes; and I think back to my own coliege days many, ,
‘many years ago, ant I recall at Columbia we had to have two
languages, but we were required to have only readmg nroficiency.
Even at that level, whether ‘you achieve proficiency in speaking a
foreign”language, some knowledge of a foreign language 1s almost
essential to get a degree from a umversxty

e
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I can’t quite believe that people can graduate from zolleges and
universities and not have any knowledge of foreign languages.

Dr. Perxins. That must.be particularly true in Florida. You have -
a large Spanish-speaking population. : R . ’

Mr: Stack. In our largest county 37 _percent of the total popula-
tionvof the county is Hispanic, and that, of course, is a rather
special circumstance, but beyohd that I do believe, you pointed out
certainly very well the differentiations of skills that may be
achieved, and I believe there is a need for all of those levels, and of
_ course, -definitely we would like to see some of our young people
. acquire a proficiency in speaking the languages. ' . .
+ The comments made.by the chairman, and you certainly made it
evident, instead of a turning in we should be doing just the reverse

at this time. We have to be conscious of our relationship to the world ,
and some of the things that we do here, this has become very clear,
that we canndt just retreat to isolationism, and one of the ways
obviously that we can help to improve our knowledge and uader-
standing of the world is through language training. I commend the
chairman for having brought this to the committee and we will
support his legislation. 3 ' : :
- Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. SimoN. Thank you, Mr. Stack.

Mr. Erdahl? " - ) ’ : :

Mr. ErpanL. I apologize for coming in tardy, but I heard the last
part of your comment to a quesi:on from Mr. Simon. Certainly we
join together-in seeing that thers siculd be more emphasis on not
only understanding other languages and other peoples and other
cultures, but it is something we really have no choice and we must
.do. P '

The incentives that come throizh thiz '."! are not quite as
forceful, as 'some of you may bew: viewed sy me, in the second
episode of “Shogun” last night, whawve the nuero is placed in .this
village in Japan and the people there e ko ¥ing and are very sad,
. because they are told if he densn’s leam: iv $pesk Japanese in 6
months tke village will be destre s -7 ¢ every single person in the
village wit’ he killed. . ' ; .

Mr. Ep + yuit have an amendment to my legisiation?

e, By Well. that is an idea. I think that w: can give
incentives = sk wr clier than penaities’and I would hope that
we can T »eentives for people to-go ahead and not only learn
but huve & wradigiency in another lauguage. Just in the world of
economi©s, I .xink. of the opportunities for young. people which

«

shouléd pe an wcentive. B ) .

‘A young lad who *vorks for one of my colleagues in the Congress
as an intern, is going to graduate school in Washington, rode in
with me this morning. I mentioned this hearing, and he said he
thought there was an undue.emphasis placed on language assist-
ance at the gradua:za jevel. : .

He felt that the incentive should be available at-an earlier level.
I will put that out #: you and I will transfer your answer to my

. young rider and frieiid ‘oday. ; i

What is your reactior: to that? I guess we should be talking every

level, elementary through graduate school? : z

1

)
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Dr. Perkins. That was precisely what [ said earlier. Not knowing

. that I was going to anticipate your far clearer and shorter com-

ment on this score, I did-argue, Mr. Erdahl, that language learning
was a continuous buslness It, starts at primary school: where you
can learn it fastest, but it must not be dropped. , ’

I quoted of all peopis, *he Rumanians who have long since dis-
covered that their program involves starting.at third grade and
runnmg right straizat through high school, so each level ought to

give some’ attention Lo this, and that it is at the earlier level where |

you can learn it the fastest,.at least the spoken language the
fastest, and one of the reasons I compliment the chairman and the

* rest of you who are supporting this legislation, that it does focus on

the first level, although he would be tke first to say-you can’t stop

.it at the primary school because by the time you get to college vou

will have forgotten what you learned.
I join with your colleague in saying certamly the younger age is
the age you can learn.

Mr. ErpaHL. Across the street from us hves a Vietnamese family. .

We have a little daughter who is 4 years ©ld, and their little

daughter is about the same age. I would dare 1, venture this little -
Vietnamese girl has learned more English in 6 months from our

little'daughter than she learned in school.

Dr. Perkins. That™is true. How much Vletnamese has she
learned"

Mr. ErpaHL. Very httle she speaks it with her mother. She has
learned very little. .

Dr. Perkins. One of the thmgs I mentioned too, I think our
schools should take more advantage of a large number of ethnic
minority children like this as- a way. of encouraging interest in
understanding Vietnam, because' »they have the kids right in the
neighborhood.

It is what we can learn from them as well as what fhey can
learn ‘from us.

. Mr. Erpanr . rhank you so much.

" Mr. SiMon.. Let me uuderi une once again a comment of my col:

‘league from Minnesota. "thax we talk about language, we are not

taiking about something i 1solat10n we are talking about learning
a culture and its ldnguar And, if I may say so, this is somewhat

‘different than foreign lai-. 1age when we studied it.

* It.was almost as thougn a foreign language was something that
would be used on the Moor: somewkeie, and you had no sense of

 the culture. Fortunately this has changed dramatically.

Dr. Perkins. If you want the dramatic nature of modern foreign
language,-you get our colleague, John Wassizs, to give you an
example of how he teaches his foreig. language at his school.

Mr. SimoN. It would not be a bad idea it mave a demonstration
class l.ere at some point. ,

Dr. PErxINs. You will come away with: a differant idea of how
foreign language should be taught really. You may have to seil
tickets at the door.

Mr. SiMoN. Well, we thank you, COr. Perkins, not cnly for vou:
testimony here, but for the very sxgnlﬁcant contnbutxon you have

. made to the Natlon . o

. 80
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Dr. Pérkins. May I tell Mr. Erdahl, can I congratulate you on
the acquisition of one of my oldest fr1ends, Harlan Cleveland, who
has gone to Minnesota.

Mr. SiMON. Our next:witnesses are a panel Dale Lange, presi-
_'dent, 1980, American Council of Teachers of Foreign Language;
* Peter A. Eddy, Center for Applied Linguistics.

. Mr. Lange is the president of the American Council of Teachers
of Foreign Language, and let me commend you and your executive
director.

We are very pleased to have you here. You may proceed as. you,
wish. ;

STATEMENTS OF DALE .LANGE, PRESX’DENT, 1980, #MERICAN
COUNCIL OF TEACHERS ' OF FOREIGN '~ LANGUAGE, AND
PETER A. EDDY\, CENTER FOR APPLIED LINGUISTICS .

\ "
STATEMENT OF DALE LANGE, PRESI_DENT, 1980, AMERICAN
COUNCIL OF TEACHERS OF FOREIGN LANGUAGE

Mr. Lance. I would like to read part of my statement the parts
which I think are most important. -

Let me, first of all take this opportunity, Mr. Chalrman, to thank
you for your generous support on behalf of forelgn language learn-
ing in the United States.

Your authorship of H.R. 7580 has given courage to the many

° language teachers in this country who have felt alone and discour-
aged, belicving that they were the only people concerned with the
. deteriorating foreign language ‘capability'of American citizens. .

' It is quite obv10us that without your persistence the inadequacies
of Americans in pursuing language study would have come to the
public’s -attention much later. Thus, this bill, as one of the first

-, pieces of legislation to be introduced in the Congress following the .
issuance of the report of the President’s Commission on Foreign
Language and International Studies, is hopefully .part of a total
legislative .package which picks up on other major priorities of that
document and which prowdea some consistent and long-range sup-
~porf(;:l to deal with thxs country’s language and 1nternat10na1 studies

Luds.

1 would also like to take this opportunity to thank Congressman
Erdahl! from the First Congressional-District-in' Minnesota for his

“- suppert in assurmg an opportunity to appear at this hearing. '
ﬁe remarks in my statement are essentially divided into four
categories, and I would like to deal with, first of all, efficiency of
language ‘training, and articulation. and proficiency standards.:

¢ Those are the two most 1mportant parts of the statement that P+’

have made.

As H.R. 7580 currently stands, xt recommends only a study of the
- effectiveness. of foreign language training in secondary schools and
--—community colleges. Without any-difficulty one can very- easily
make the.argument that effectlveness of language training needs
study not only in secondary schools and community coueges, but at

the elementary schocl and university level as well.
In fact, becausc of a serious lack of inattention to the prepara-
tlon of teachers ac the unlver51ty level, it would appear that a

. 95"
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study of effectiveness of language training might best be directed
toward that level. ' ) < , .

Lack of teacher prepareiion at the university level, as.at any
level, leads to a lack of ef“ectiveness because the curriculum is
poorly defined and articulated, teaching strategies are unevenly
applied, objectives are not met, all of which can lead to the devel’
opment of negative attitudes toward language learning on the part
of both students and teachers.

The same problem occurs in elementary programs of language.
- ‘learning, but certainly in different proportions. Ineffectiveness is
there contextual; it operates across all educational levels, rot just
‘at the secondary level alone. The education profession has ad-
dressed effectiveness ... language training over the. past 30 years,
and I mention, there is a biography at the end of my statement -
indicating what those studies are, those studies indicate in a very
general sense that time and expectations play important roles in :
language learning. | : :

Generally the longer the time available for learning, the more
language is learned; and students generally learn what teachers
expect from them. Since these studies have been completed at
various levels of learning and generally relate to the same conclu-
sions, we can argue that effectiveness, defined as the production of

results, in this case the &bility to use another language, operates ...

within these variables. e -

We also know that aptitude for language study and attitude
toward the language, the goals of language study and the learning
environment itself interface with 'time and expectations. Thus, the
Janguage teaching profession knows what the major variables that
relate to effectiveness of language learning. What we do not know
is how to manipulate these variables incluling learning strategies
to make language learning in all school levels even more effective
within current and desired amounts of time for instructions.

1t is in this light that we would recommend consideration of
incentive funding for a geographically disparate group of elemen-
- tary, secondary- schools and colleges or universities to serve as
model programs for differing alternatives in language learning.

These model programs colild then develop a defined curriculum,
defined strategies of instruction, appropriate materials, land train
teachers for the specific alternative. These programs could then be .
evaluated at all stages for dissemination to others for their consid-
eration and choice. " ,

I have also outlined six different alternatives which I will not go
into. They are in the statement, amd that can essentiglly suffice
except for perhaps mentioning them.

Incentive language learning training, immersior schools, poten-
tial use of bilingual programs, global education, +valuation and
examination of foreign language competence in higher education
and incentive funding in internsticnal studies combined, and an
opportunity to look at currently what we are doing in regular
school and collegiate offerings. . S

In each of these models, language learning and teaching strate-
gies, curriculum, materials, teacher preparatio: , and testing proce-
dures need to be defined and evaluated for their contgibution to the
effectiveness of each model. In turn, the models need to be evaluat-
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ed, ageinst proficiency "standards which could be developed from
current profic1ency statements such as the Foreign Service Insti-
tutg statements in order to know what can beexpected from each
model.. . .. -

I would like. to go on to articulation and proficiency standards

— ~—-Having-been--a.teacher of English and German in the schools for

over 10 years prior to entering a university teaching career, I wish
to express concern about the nature of section 5 of this bill.
. The encouragement of a 2-year foreign language program
through this bill is, in my perception, somewhat inappropriate
because it could negate gains in the awaren.us among teachers and
learners at the elementary and secondary school levels that lan-
guage learning cannot be effectively accomplished in that short
period; we'are talking about 300 hours at most.

Such encouragement will also tenhd to negatlvely force college
and university standards for ariounts learned onto the secondary
schools. There needs to be an understandmg at both the secondary
and college/university_levels‘of what students can learn of another:

— language in the amount of time available for learning.

But articulation between secondary schools and college programs
will not necessarily come about as a result of giving grants to IHEs
which require 2 academic years of language for each entering
student in the IHE.

Such requirements in the past forced college standards on sec-
ondary schools, standards which were not necessarily applicable to
secondary schdols. Much hard feeling existed in the fifties and
sixties between secondary school and college teachers of foreign
‘language as a result of this situation.

What is r.éede¢ tv resolve this problem is the examination:of the
kind of language proficiency that can be obtained in the various
language learning alternatives which have been mentioned above.
From that examination, reasonable minimal expectations of profi-
cieney in.oral and written commumcatlon could be estahlished for
each alternative. '

Colleges and umversmes would then know what to expect from
the different-program types and could then plan to place students
where they most appropriately belong in their'language courses or
excuse them entirelyNrom further basic study.

It is fy assumption that statements establishing mipimal profi-
ciencies and.-the evaluation of those proficiencies would be similar
to the statements and procedures used” by the Foreign Serv1ce
L.stitute and other Government agency language schools.

Havmg been through a recent workshop at the FSI language
school on the oral interview and having worked with graduate
studeris who have evaluated the feasibility of an FSI-type inter-
view in evaluating- elementary and ‘secondary school lunguage
teacher proficiencies for certification, I.find that it.is not too diffi-
cult to find agreement on the level of proficiency of nonnative
speakers. of the target language when a carefully written set of
criteria for each level has been written,

It would appear that this procedure, though useful within the ©

Government, needs modification for use outsir:' the Governrhent to
. help develop standards as well as the mea.: to evaluate those
T standards
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Assistancel-l/s needed to produce the statements and studies to
evaluate.the oral interview procedure against a revised set of profi-

ciency statements as they are used at different points in the learn- .

ing system; at the end of secondary school, after both 1 and 2 years
of college language learning, for teachers prior to certification or
at the graduate-school level. o

Lenguage learning is a complex problem. It is not resolved by
forcing standards with requirements at the coliege level which
limit the choice of alternatives at lower educational levels. :

.The definition of minimal proficiencies in oral ané written com-
munication and the mearns to evaluate those proiizizn.cies wili help’
the profession insure that efficient language lesrning is taking

hiring’as teaching assistants, and to'evaluate language proficiency

. place.

The Fore.ign Language Assistance Act might help in developing

_.an_awareness not only of the efficiency of alterratives, but also

how they Telate to standards of proficiency if moneys were devoted
to such development. , , LT
I think those are the two parts of the statement that I would like

to read into ihe record. :
[The prepared statement of Dale Lange follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT oF ProF. DALE L. LANGE, PRESIDENT, AMERICAN .COUNCIL
OF TEACHERS OF FOREIGN LANGUAGE, UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA -
' T

" TESTIMONY ON H.R. 7580 |

Let me first of all publicly thank you, CongPessman Simon, for your generous
support on behalf of foreign language learning in the United States. Your author-
ship of H.R. 7580 has given courage to the many language teachers in this country--
who have felt alone and discouraged, believing that they were the only people
concerned with the.deteriorating foreign language capability of American citizens.
It is quite obvious that without your persistence the inadequacies of -Americans in
pursuing language study would ‘have come to the public’s attention mucis later.

- Thus, this bill, as one of the first pieces of legislation to be introduced in the

Congress following the issuance of the report of the President’s Commission on
Foreign Lahguage and International Studies, is hopefully part of a total legislative
‘packirge which picks up on other major priorities of that document and which .
-provides some consistent and_ long-range support to deal with this country’s lan-
guage and international studies needs. - ‘

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank Congressman Erdahl from the
First Congressional District in Minnesota for his support in assuring an opportunity
to appear at this hearing. ’ .

As you are.probably already aware, the American Council on' the Tesching of

~-Foreign Languages has informed its Alert Network of the introduction of the

Foreign Language Assistance Act into the legislative process. We have also provided
the Networkers with a complete copy. of the hill a3 introduced to the House,

suggesting to them that their - 2sponses to the ” . sgent both to Mr. Simon and to
their own ccugressmen. We have urged the © - ..~  to request that the letters
reflect the opinions of the ACTFL constituen. . way, ACTFL is playing a *

supuortive role, giving the membership the opp.. ...y to give their opinions and
feedback directly to the bill's author and their own representatives. - - :

. . ]

Although AGTFL is playing, this supportive role, it still has some concerns aifoﬁ?

, the legislation which it wishes to share with this Sub-Conimittee. These concerns

have developed from discussions within the ACTFL leadership structure. They are
offered as a positive display of our desire to'make this billas helpful es it can be to
deal with language learning in American schools and colleges. T

My remarks are divided into the following categories: Efficiency of language
training, articulation-and proficiency standards, the concept, of capitation, and op-
portunity for educational.equality. o

- 69-903 r': - 81«7, o . - . L. ;
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EFFICIENCY OF LANGUAGE TRAINING

As H.R. 7550 currently stands, it recommends only a study of the effectiveness of
foreign language training in secondary schools and community colleges. Without
any difficulty one can very eusily make the ar, ument ‘that effectiveness of language
training needs study not only in secondary sc ools and community colleges, but at
she elementary school and university level as well. In fact, because of a serious lack
of inattention to the preparation of teachers at the universit{, level, it would appear
that o stud, of effectiveness of language training might best be directed toward that
level. Lack of teacher preparation at the university level, as at any level, leads.to a
lack of eifectiveness because the curriculum is poorly defined” and articulated,
teachiny strategies are unevenly applied, objectives are not met, all of which can
load to the development of negative attitudes toward language learning on the part
of both students and teachers. The same problem occurs in elementary pregrams of
language learnin,;. but certainly in different proportipns. Ineffectiveness is therefore
contextual; it operates across. all educational levels, notJust at the secondary level
alone. The language education profession has addresse effectiveness of language
training o.er the past thirty plus years with large scale studies (Angiolillo, 1947,
Agurd and Dunkel, 1948; Scherer and Wertheimer, 1964; Smith, 1970; and Carroll,
1995 which indicate in a very veneral sense that time and expectations play
important roles in language learning. Generally the longer the time available for
learning, the more language is learned: and students generally learn what teachers
expect from them. Since these studies have been completed at varicus levels of
learning and generally relate io the same conclusions, we can argue that effective-
ness. dofined as the production of results, in this case the ability to use anothor
anguaye, operates within these variables. We also know that aftimde for langua,:
study (Carroll. 1962 and attitude towerd the language, the goals of larguage stud
{Gardner and Lambert, 1972), and the iearning environment itself (Carroll, 1963)
interface with time and expectations. Thus, the language teaching profession knows
about the major variables that relate to efféctiveness of language learning. What we
do not know is how to manipulate these variables including learning strategies to
miike language learning in afl school levels even more effective within current and
desired amounts of time for instruction. ! - )

It is in this light that we would recommend consideration of incentive funding for
a geographically disparate group of elementary, secondary schools and colleges or
universities to serve as model programs for diftering alternatives in language learn-
ing. These model programs could then develop a defined curriculum;, defined strate-
gies of instruction,'appropriate materials, and train teachers for the specific alterna-
tive. These programs could then be evaluated at all, stages for dissemination to
;;t tlxers for their consideration and choice. Such alterg_ativfs may be those described

elow, . . .

1. Intensive language learning training.—This strategy in terms of time could be
defined as any amount of time used in” concen ed fashion -heyond one hour per
day, five days per week. Colleges and universitied and a few secondary schools, as
well ns sumimer language camping programs are currently involved with this idea.
However, their efforts on an individual program basis have not been systematically
evaluated; we are not certain of their ‘efiectiveness:. We do not know what they
teach, how they teach. how students learn in those conditions, or how and if
students are successtul in such progrims: L -

3. Immersion schools.—These schools are defined as 6ffering all instructicn in the
second langruage with one hour of the school day devoted to the study of the native
language 1 Englishi. This concept is being used by a handful of schools in the United
States. It basically comes from the Canadian experiment withs bilingual education
which may work in Canada, bu: the evaluation of which for U.S. schools is not yet
completed. It may be that this strategy céuld work best for French in Louisiana and
purts of New England where French is commonly used than in Colorado where the
lnnguage. of suzh a program might be Spanish or in Minnesota where the language
:2 belearned might best be-Germnan. In)spite of what appears a useful concept for
Armerican elementary schools, clear methodology, sufficient materials, a defined
curriculum and teachers trained to teach in such schools remain serious problems.

3. Incentive funding might also be used to support those scheols whe wish .to”
include forty percent of English-speaking mono-lingual children in their bilingual
programs # possibility under the Bilingual Education Act: Monies comhinza f{ur
bilingual educaticn and second language! learning could be used to offer and zvaiu-
ate the bilingual school: ~e*tiny as a model learning strategy for those students who

_are English monolinguals. it is my undprstanding that schools do not necessarily

take advantage o the 0 pevcent rule for monolingual English sneakers in bilingual
education programs. Such an opportunity.would, if givén incentive, also give foreign
language and bilingual educators a chance to get together in a common cause.
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‘ \ .
4. Globa! education, which intends to make students in schools aware of the
interrelatedness of ccuntries and cultures, iacludes foreign language study, at least
theoretically. Currently no programs exist to determine the effectivness of such a
‘model on a K-12 basis. Since the President’s Commissiuvi Repor: srgued for the
<vploration, development, and implantation of internstior alwtudies in K-12, incen-
tivewfunding might be used to develop a medel for glou:.. educatica which could be
implémented and evaluated not only for effectiveness of lu»‘».{g.-:.nge learning, but also
for the ability of students to operate in an interrelatad worl: '
. 5. In higher education, the development of foreign Linzuse ccmpetence within
~/ international education studies is certainly not clear if we inske the assumption as
"/ does the President’s Commission Report“that these two aréas need to be brought
/" together to serve each other. Incentive funding then ‘would be appropriate for the
/  creation of model foreign language and international-studies-programs in higher
/ education-which could be evaluated for their effectiveness in both areas. It appears
that current area studies programs do not include a strong language program which
i related to the study of the area. Monies could be givion as incentive to bring
o/ - language study more into focus in such programs. i
/ - 8. Carefully defined and articulated regular school and colleg&ate offerings can
/ also serve as models since all schools will not adopt any one sipgle model. Since
‘many schools in the United States still offer only a two or three year program and
four and six year programs are not uncommon, incentive funding{cou d be used tc
help locate such programs, evaluate their effectiveness, and relate this effectiveness
to other models. . ‘
In each of these models, language learning and teaching strategies, curriculum,
materials, teacher preparation, and testing procedures need to be defined and
. evaluated for their contributidn to the effectiveness of each model. In turn the
N - models need to be evaluated aghinst proficiency standards . which vould be develop::
\ from current proficiency statgments such es the "Foreign Service Institute stai:
)'/ ments in order to know what can be expected from each model. . .
- To conclude this section, I.sHould like to suggest that incentive funding should i
used as a, concept to c¢ramine,the effectiveness of lanﬁuage learning models 4f al.
levels. We must not | sidé-trac’ked by thinking that'a higher education model ¢ i
intensive learning | are ig themselves more effective than any other modcl. Yy
simply do.not know. B ) : o
Tﬁe research and development that must take place hefore we can know mcre
about the effectiveness of different models could be supported by this bill if it were
modified from its present form to deal with appropriate models for different -~ ..c «-
tional levels. evaluated against some standardized language proficiency «:ipecta:
tions. : . " '

)

{
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ARTICULATION ?' AND PROFICIENCY STANDARDS
)

..—-Having been a teacher of French and German in the schnols for ovér ten years
-~=""" prior to entering a_university teaching career, 1 wish to exp. “ss concern abeut the
nature of Section 5 of the bill. The encouragement of two ycar foreign language
Profram through this bill is, in my. perception, somewhat inappropriate because it
could negate gains in the awareness among teachers and learners at the elementary
and secondary school levels that language learning cannot be~effectively arcom-

plished in that short period (300 hrs. at most). Such encouragement will also tend to
negatively force college and university “standards” for amounts learned onto the.
secondary schools. There needs to be an understanding at both the.secondary and
college/unjversity levels of what students can learn of another “language in the

- amount of time available for learning. But articulation between secondary schools

and college prograrns will not necessarily - ne about as a result of giving grants to ™=,

" IHEs which require two academic years of language for each entering student in the
IHE. Such requirements in the past forced college standards on secondary schools,
standards which were not necessarily applicable to secondary schools. Much hard
feeling existed in *hr 503 and 60s between secondary school and coi. :ge teachers of

2. ___*..f'.m:eign\langu:lge 4s u . esult of this situation, ——-

’ What is needed to resolve this préblem is the examination of the kind of language .
proficiency that can be obtained in_the various language learning alternatives
which have been mentioned above. From that examination, reasonable minimal
expectations of proficiency in oral and written communication couid be established
for eacl: alternative. Colleges and universities would then know what to expect from
the different program ty and could then plan to place students where they most
appropriately belong in their language courses or excuse them entirely from axr:hcr
basic study. ) . . ] .

< It is' my assumption that statements establishing minimal proficiencies and the
evaluation of those proficiencies would be similar 10 the statements and procedures

96
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used by the Foreign Service Institute and other government agenc language
schools.- Having been through a recent worksi.op as tﬁe FSI lan%;.lage school on the
oral interview-and having worked with graduate students who have evdluated the
feasibility of an FSI-type interview in evaluating elementary and secondary school
language teacher proficiency for certification, I find that it is not too difficult to find

eement on the level of proficiency of non-native speakers of the target language
when a carefully written set of criteria for each level has been written. It would
appear that this procedure though“-useful within the government needs modification
for use outside the government to help develop standards as well as the means to
evaluate those standards. Assistance is needed to produce the statements and stud-
ies to evaluate the oral interview procedure against a revised set of proficiency
statements as they are used at different points in the leaminF system: at the end of
secondary school, after both one and two years of college language learning, for
teachers prior to certification or hiring as teaching assistants, and to evaluate
language proficiency at the graduate school leval.

Language iearning is a cqmrle:é rroblem.-lt is not resolved by forcing standards
with requirements at the college® level which limit the choice of alternatives at
lower educational levels. The definition of minimal proficiencies in oral and written
communication and the means to evaluate those proficiencies will help the profes-
sion ensure that efficient language learning is taking place. The Foreign Language
Assistance Act might help in developing an awareness not only of the efficiency of
alternatives, but also how they relate to standards of proficiency if monies were
devoted to such development. .

THE CONCEPT OF CAPITATION s

While we know that capitation could be a very useful concept in granting monies .-
to support foreign language training in’schools and colleges, we are also concerned
abott our perception that the monies granted may not be used to address the real
problems of language learning. Whil: it may be that regulations for the administra-
tion of this legislation will suggest controls over the use of the money, it is not as
yet clear what they will be. Section 4(3) suggests that the Secretary establish
standards for instructional programs and require evaluation of such programs in-

. cluding student progress. Yet there is a lack of speciﬁ_c’il%\l' as to how the money will

spent. Let me use an example ih higher education. The University of Minnesota
has a requirement for graduation from its College of Liberal Arts; in theory at least
it has approximately 1500 French, 1000 German, and 1500 student studying lan-
age per student year in the first year alone and in theory 500 students.of French,
00 of German and 500 of Spanish })er student year in the second year. Since there
is a language requirement, the University would receive $159,000 for its 5300
French, German, and Spanish students.if it applied for the money. What is impor-
tant in this instance is not my mathematics or my interpretation, of the bill, but
rather how this money is to be used. Is it to be spent on the preparation and
continuing in-service preparation of teachers at this level? Is it to be devoted to the-
coordination sad continuing development of the language learning curriculum? Is it
to be used to purchase new equipment (computer terminals, language laboratories,
tare recorders)? How does the institution determine how it uses the money in -
relation to its needs? Can it be used to support the teaching: of literature? Who
judges the appropriateness of the application and according to what criteria?

On another issue, YL.R. 7580 gives  incentive funding essentially for foreign lan-
guafe study. It does not address the totslity of foreign language and international
studies. The ACTFL leadership has discussed the one-sided nature of the legislation
and find it lacking in support for a cvalition of foreign language and international
studies. I have spoken about this coalition in another-section of this paper. Foreign
language instruction in our minds is not .very well separated from global and
international education. That these two areas seem to work together in a theoretical
framework requires support for a practical coalition in the classroom. We had hoped

. to see support for this concept in this bill.

-Finally, we are concerned about the use of capitation for the.distribution of

limited funds over a large number of institutions. Perhaps capitation should be-used"

only to extend language learning programs such as third or fourth year secondary

school or college programs; 6r to support the establishment of consortia of LEAs,

g:ad }{HE, and the state education agency to determine realistic in-service needs of
chers. .

In givin[f1 this list of suggestions for the use of capitation, we hope not to have
confused the issue. We hope that in further consideration of this legislation the
author and the committee would give further clarification to the use of capitation in
providing incentives for the support of foreign language training to American-
sehcols and colleges.

37
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OPPORTUNITY FOR EDUCATIONAL EQUALITY

While I am sure it is difficult to address, the equality of educational opf)ortunity

districts
and large universities with foreign language programs will aprly for the monies
appropriategd, for this legislation. Students in those programs will have the opportu-
nity to confinue their language study. Yet there 'will be those students who will not
have the opgortunity to study and language because such programs do not currently
exist in rural areas and small colleges. I have recently heard of a foreign language
development project of a consortium of schools in the small rural districts of
northwestern Minnesota where language programs are too costly for any single
school. In this project, the schools which are 25-35 miles apart are attempting to
locate funds for a single teacher who will provide foreign language instruction. to
the students in the schools of the consortium via closed-circuit television. This
example points out the necessity to provide suﬂpnrt for those schcols and colleges
who do not have language instruction, but who would like to offer it for their
students. In the current bill, it appears that such schools are ineligible to =pply for
incentive funds. How can such schools get into the formula?

Perhaps a more generous formula for small schools and colleges could be effected
to help establish such programs. Or perhaps matching funds to hire a teacher in
such situations for a three year period with the institution picking up the responsi-
bility thereafter might also be a possibility. The opportunity to study a forei
language does not always exist. Incentive funding might be directed toward the
establishment of such opportunity.

These are some of our concerns. Some suggested resolutions have also been
offered. Both have been shared in a positive spirit so thatl{ou know what they are:
Yeth we sugport the effort of the bill’s author in writing H.R. 7580. We hope to work
withthe bi

Thank you. N
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Mr. Stmon. We thank you very, very much, and we will now
hear the next witness and then ask questions.

Our next witness is Mr. Peter Eddy, who has done some pioneer-
ing and also done the most exhaustive work in the area of public
opinion in this area. R : :

[The prepared’testimony of Peter Eddy follows:]

PreParRep TESTIMONY BY PETER A. EpDY, CENTER FOR APPLIED LINGUISTICS

Congressman Simon and Congressman Panetta are to be applauded for H.R. 7580,
a bill which I believe has the potential to do a great good for foreign language
instruction in the United States. While I recognize the need for legislative initia-
tives and financial support in other areas of international education, the critical
neglect of foreign language instisiction in this country over the past 15 years has
become kighly visible to the public over the past 18 months. Foreign languages thus
are a,,good place to begin a program of support to the broad spectrum of internation-

1

-~ 9g !

Foreign Language Insti'uction.’Pii)hiladelphia: Center for Curriculum Development, ‘
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al education. Initiatives that will encourage larger numbers of Americans to study
foreign languages; encourage them to develop greater competence in the language(s)
they stucy (i.e. study them for a longer period of time), and encourage also the
foreign language profession to do a better job, are sorely needed ai this time. I
thank Congressman Simon for the opportunity to voice strong support for the
“Foreign Language Assistance Act.” H.R. 7580, which has the potential to be the
most beneficial piece of legislation for language instruction in this country since the
National Defense Edugation Act more than twenty years ago. I will comment briefly
on each <f.the three major parts of the bill: funding for elementary school foreign
language study: tunding for studies of foreign language instruction in secondary
schools and community colleges; and funding for language :study in higher educa-
tion. . .

I feel that the proposed legislation is correct in seeking to reward and encourage
the deve'opment of foreign language “‘immersion’’ programs at the elementary level.

" Several recent surveys of foreign language study in elementary school would have

us believe that such study is dead in the United States. We at the Center for

" Applied ,Linguistics believe, to the contrary, that a considerable degree of interest

.’;

- those who
‘the committee may know from personal experience or from other testimony, many

.school districts-in this nation attempted t6 launch elementary school foreign lan-

exists in elementary school foreign language instruction, and that the time is right
to provide the support for program development’ that the Foreiga Language Assist-
ance Act would furnish. We cite the following evidence: .

1. In a nation-wide poll conducted for the President's Commission on Foreign
Language and Internatiorial Studies, 76 percent of the respondents indicated that
they believe that foreign ianguage instruction should be offered in the elementary
school; 12 percent believed that such instruction should be required. .

2. A recent survey of the membership of the Northeast Conference (a large
professional organization of language teachers in the Northeastern States), shows
that elementary school foreign language instruction is taking place in.approximate-
ly 35 percent of private schools, in 29 percent of church-run schools, yet in only 16
percent of puklic schools. - i .

3. The foreign language immersion movement in.the United-States is still very
smatl, but we.have compiled at the Center for Applied Linguistics a list of a dozen
programs engaging in foreign langauge immersion in one form or another, and the

list is growing. We will be launching an Education Departmeni-funded study of

elementary school language instruction (to include all types of such study) in
October of this gear. At the conclusion of this study, one vear hence, we expect to
know considerably more about the status of elementary school foreign language

instruction than we do today. '
"4. Research shows that, other things being equal, children who begin their lan-
guage studgeeglrlv and who pursue it for an extended period will learn more than
gin late. But, ot ier things are too frequently not equal. As members of

guage instructibn twenty yenrs ago. An enrollment survey done in 1959 reported
that there were over 1.5 million American elementary school children studying
foreign language. The vast majority of these nrograms have long since been aban-
doned in a sad chapter for American foreign language education chronicled by
Theodore -Anderson in the book “Foreign Languages in the Elementary School, A
Struggle Against Mediocrity." . g

In order to aveid some of the pitfalls that prior experience has shown us, let me
list some principal caveats: -

1. 1 assume that the.purpose of Foreign Language Assistance Act grants for
elementary school language prograins would be to provide startup money for pro-
grams tnat would eventually function on their own, with funding from local sources.
The language of the Act might specify that the Secretary determine what an
appropriate term’ might be. ] :

2. Certain program characteristics are known to contribute to the long-term
viability of language instruction programs. While these are probably more appropri-
ately incorporated into regulations rather than into the Act itself, let me simply
enumerate several here: :

A. Adequately trained teachers. There is not currently a large supply of well-
trained elementary school foreisn language teachers. A school district applying for
funds umder this Act should be able to show that it has access’to a,suppr o
adequately-treinad instructors, or can credibly re-train staff already employed by
the school district. - N
B. Institutional commitment. The amount of funding likely to emanate from the
Foreign Languagé Assistance Act grant will not likely be adequate to support fully
an elementary immersion progra.n. Ways might be suggested for the use of grant—-
funds that would make it difficult for a school district to hire a part-time instructor
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who weculd be let go at grant termination. This suggests that the best use of grant
funds might be for,costs associated with the startup of such programs: materials of
instructiori, the training of purent.or college/university aides, inservice training of
teachers, and the like. '

"C. Necessity of attention to articulation. (By ‘*‘articulation™ here, I mean the
coordination of the content and methndologﬁ of language courses following elenijen-
tary school languuge instruction. so that the benefits of such instruction ure not
.diluted or lost.) it is the failure of many school districts to_plan carefully enough for
articulation that killed many elementary school language programs in the past.
*This is not a trivial problem; it means that a school system must $lari for a separate
track to accommodate the children who leave elementary school with a degree of
language competence. - ; .7

3. Finally,-although there is considerable evidence that fereign language immer-
sion programs provide the greatest amount of language competence of any curricu- .
lum we have seen in elementary school language instruction, I wonder whether
2ligibility for assistance under the Act should be limited.to -such immersion, pro-
grams. There are numerous types of iitnmersion programs practiced in the United

tates and Canada; all are not equally effective. And it must be remembered that
the total immersion approach is a radical one and probably not capable of being
adopted in many American elementary schools. I believe that any elementary school
foreign language program should be e]";gible for funding under the Act provided if it
nieets certain criteria. The points I have just mentioned are suggestive of such
criteria. Thus, increasing the range of fundable language instruction programs
would not prevent regulations from assigning thk« highest priority to immersion

rograms, but would make Foreign Language Assisiance Act funds accessible to a
arge number of districts that simply could not consider launchirig foreign language
Imrmersion programs. B

My interpretation of°'the portion of the Act dealing with secondary schools and
community colleges (Section 3, (c), p. 3 line 8) is that more must be found out about
the status of language instruction at these levels in order to determine the best
metlod for support. While I agree with this approach, I helieve that there.1s, one
weil-defined area that needs support right now: proficiency test developmerit and a
national assessment program. This is an area identified by the President’s Commis-—
sion and by MLA/ACLS task forces to be of the very highest priority. con

There is a very great need for standardized proficiercy tests at all levels in this
country, even in the most commonly taught languages. ﬁ]e MLA Cooperative Tests
are now twenty years old and no longer reflect. what is-being taught in today’s high
school language classroom. (These tests were developed, primarily with NDEA sup-
port, to measure performance in the early stages of langlage learning.) Some recent
experience will illustrate this point. The foreign language coordinators of a large
school district decided that the time had come for a district-wide.assessment of
foreign language achievemeiit. The MLA Cooperative Tests were administered to
students zt certain levels of instruction on a system-wide basis, with the oral
proficiency test being administered to a small sub-sample of the whole. When the
teachers and their leaders assembled in order to discuss what sort of analysis might
be appropriate for the test data, it became clear that the teachers, after seeing what °
the MLA Cooperative Tests were testing, believed almost unanimously that any
discussion of these results would be totally meaningless, since it: was their impres-
sion that the tests no longer reflected what they were teaching in their classrooms.

I submit that a program of test development and-a project to use these in a
national assessment program should be a major component of Section 3 (c) of the’

roposed Act. The first tests-to be developed would be in the most commonly taught

anguages: French, German, and Spanish. As a part of the norming procedure, a
national sam(gle of secondary students would be selected, and would be administered
these tests. On the basis of this testing program, in addition to getking current
norms for the test, we would also obtain extremely valuable information to be used
both in school districts and in commercial publishing houses that publish foreign
.language instructional materials. This ‘information would describe what, level of
achievement we can expect from today’s high school foreign la’c\guage «lassrooms.
There is nationwide movement afoot, spearheaded by Dr. Helen Warriner-Burke, to
attract attention to what many foreign language professionals believe to be unreal-
istic expectations of language mastery in the secondary school. A test devélopment
and implementation program such as the one®l have just sketched would furnish
our profession with the kind of hard data we nekd in order to make intelligent
decisions about curriculum reform in this area.

I believe that the initiatives recommended by the proposed legislation regarding
college and university instruction, most specifizally those dealing with the imple: -
mentation of a foreign language requirement in college (Section 5(A), P. 6 line 9),

-
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-have great potential to cause rapid change on the American language instructional
scepe. I am extremely gratified to rote that the authors of this:bill recognize the
importance of increased contac}, hours in language instruction, as evidenced by the
stipulation that support be limited to institutions whiclr provide five contact hours

" per week. A comparison of contact hours provided in the t:spical university situdtion

_ered in this lig|

with those in a language school where real proficiency, 15 obtained (the Forei
Service Institute’s (FSI) School of Language Studies} is instructive here. In the
typical university two-year language uence, a student might gain a ‘total 180
hours of clussroom contact time: 3 class hours per week, 15 weeks per semester, 4
semesters. At FSI the student of average language learning ability will take 480
hours of intensive lztzerlfgage instruction in very small classes in order to obtain what
the FSI calls “limited working competence.” We should notgpe surprised that our
college languaie'instruction leaves us with so little real competence, when consid-
t! . ) © L

The foreign requirement in colleges and universities is a major force in determin-
ing tke amount of foreign language study not only in higher education but in
secondar, education as well. Foreign language study 1s-an accepted part of the basic
curricu’ -1 of Becondary ‘and highel education in virtuaily al‘l) civilized nations of
this globe ex.ept our own. We as a-nation have been unconscionably lax in letting
the position oi language study in our schools and college curriculum erode over the
rasf. decade a1-d a half, and it is gretifying to see the authors of this propesed
egislation provide some incentive for, reinstituting a language requirement.

While I support strongly the two aspects of this legislation just alluded to, let me
voice a concern about the language of the proposed legislation relating to each.

The proposed” legislation defines a “qualified postsécondary foreign language
course” as a “course of foreign language instruction which is scheduled to meet at
least five days each week” (page 8 line 20). I am concerned that the Act is being too

restrictive about the mode of furnishing increased exposure time_ in foreign lan--- -

gueﬁe classes. Further, by a schedule which-imposes a class meeting each day of the
week;_the -Act is"stipulating an arrangement that would not fit into the overall

“"scheduling plan of many American institutions of higher educaticn. I feel that the

.

-

-language of the bill should stipulate only that, to.qualify for grant support, courses

should meet a certain number of hours per week. There might be several categories
of courses here with various hourly.stipulations. The establishment of the exact
numbers could be left to the Secretary of Education. Such an arrangement would be
flexible enough to accommodate courses that might meet three times a week for two
hours each, and “intensive” courses where students spend even"more tilnc in con-
tact wit" the language. - .

With ..espect to the foreign.language requirement, 1, like many in our profession,
would like to see the day,when foreign language requirements were phrased in
terms of what the student can do at the end of language training, not how long he
or she had spent in a classroom. In this regard, the Committee is no doubt aware of
the initiatives currently being taken to adapt FSI's oral proficiency measure to the
academic environment. In the meantime, though, it appears to me that a language
requiremT]nt expressed in terms of years of language study is certainly better than
none at all. -

With’ respect to the Act’s language addressing the language require:sent, I am
concerned that the Education Department would be faced with a difficulv nroblem

-indeed: How to determine whether an institution has a bona fide foreign language

requirement so as to.receive the subsidy. Foreign language requirements tend to be
complicated things on a unjversity campt:s; some schools and-colleges on the campus
are subject to it, some degrees require’it, while others do not. Only in the smallest
-insgtutions will there be the possibility of a “blanket” lanjtuage requirement for all
students.” " : ¢

In order to make the program that would result fron the proposed legislation
more workable, and to encourage the application of the foreign language require-
ment to the largest proportion possible of the.student body, I would suggest that the
“headcount” to determine the amount an institution might receive not be conducted
of the total student body, but (as stipulated in Sectién 5(aX2), p. 6 line 21) rather of
.the number of students who would be affected by the requirement, i.e., the number
of students enrolied in ‘degree programs and academic units that require foreign
language study. In addition, in order to encourage institutions to implement compe-
tency-based requirements the legislation might include a bonus for programs where
requirements could be demonstrated to be competency-based. -

In. conclusion, one should not infer from my comments that the:proposed legisla-
tion has less than my full support. My suggestions have been motivated by my
desire to see the Iprograms thaf ensue from this legislation function optimally in view
of the hard fiscal realities in America’s current educational situation. -
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- STATEMENT OF PETER A. EDDY, CENTER FOR APPLIED
: LINGUISTICS - A

Mr. Eppy. My name is Peter Eddy, and I am from the Center for .
Applied Linguistics. ~

. The center is a nonprofit enterprise and was established by the"
Modern Language Association of America in the late 1950’s:, :

The center has focused on a number of language issues, particu-
larly as they relate to social «.oncerns. They include, however, a

' heavy interest in ‘foreign language instruction at all levels, and -
' particularly in English as a second language, most recently, in -
English as a second language for refugees from Southeast Asia and
from elsewhere. *© : Co. ' )

I am not going to read from the testimony that you have copies
of, I believe. - '

Mr. Sivon. We will enter that in the record at this point. :

Mr. Eppy. I wonld like to highlight, however,- several of the.. . .-
points that I have made and perhaps make a couple of supplemen-
tary comments. Loe . .

‘My written comments focus on three areas, the three areas-cov-———"

. ered by thHe Foreign Language Assistance Act, elementary school
foreign language stuay, second school foreign language study, and
foreign language in the colleges and universities.

’ With respect to the teaching of foreign language in elementary
- schools, the time is right to help! this movement along. i

Mr. Perkins, in his comment a few moments ago, was expressing
some concern about the amount of such instruction that is taking
place. Actually there is-quite a bit of interest across this country. It
is nof nearly what it was 20 years ago at which ‘point a survey

~ concluded tnere were 1% million elementary 'school children study-
ing foreifn languages. . : ,

Curreritly, there are 70,000 students studying foreign languages
in the State of Texas. I am. talking about elementary school .stu-
dents and they are understandably studying Spanish. .

In a survey I conducted of the membership of the Northeast
Conference of the Launguage Association, 35 percent of the people
who taught in" private schools indicated that there was some ele-
mentary school foreign language instruction in their institutions.
© Of the people teaching in church-related schools 29- percent indi-
-cated there was some foreign language being taught in the elemen-
tary schools of their Institute. Only 16 percent of the péople teach- *
ing in public. schools indicated there was some elementary school
language instruction in their school systems.

~I'am not trying to say, by any. means, it is a widespread phenom-
enon across the country, but i does exist. The interest is not zero.

'Finalhy{', with respect to elementary school foreign language, I
would like to state that I believe that the eligibility for fun ing the
Foreign Language Assistance Act ought to be brought so as not to
limit it just to immersion programs only.

. For the people present here, we might explain, foreign language
~ immersion is a program conducted at the elementary school level

~ whereby the children receive their instruction also in geography in

. a foreign language. ‘ '

I would make the plea that eligiblity for funding not be limited

-~ to the so-called immersion programs. Immersion is a radical ap- |
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proach to the question. It is probably the most effective means of
teaching “foreign language skills in an academic setting that we
“have seen yet. o o
I;;owever. it seems to me that given the wide variety of educa-
tiodal situations in thi§ country, that there is probably a consider-
able percentage of those sthool -districts not ready to take that
~ particular leap, and they should be eligible to institute high quality
programs that would be somewhat less radical or ambitious than
the immersion approdch.: : N ‘
With regard to secondary school foreign language instruction, I
would like to express support for the Imeasures that you have
outlined which basically involve a study of the situation. L
I would like to mention some of the recommendations of the
President’s Commission_and make a plea that the testing devices

for language skills not only in the secondary schools but also, in -

higher education simply don’t exist. -
They exist but they are 20 years old and no longer really rtgzct

what is going on, so what is really needed is a development .of &set

of tests, and ‘we can’t really do any of the things that Profedsor
Lange was referring to before we have a valid set of tests, so we
have to develop such a set of tests, first of all and, second, with
those tests, conduct a national assessment of the proficiency of
students in the foreign language classrooms in"this country, so that
we can get an up-to-date realistic idea of what we can expect a
child to know once he or she gets to the end of the high sck.al
language learning experience. ' ’

“With respect to college and university foreign language instruc-
tion, I would like to express support for the provision of incentives
to increase classroom contact hours: I am' delighted to see the fact
that the necessity of providing a larger amount of instructiona¥
time is recognized by the authors of this legislation.

—- —=Twould ljke to caution about stipulating that 5 days a week be the

primary cfiterion for funding; it might exempt a lot of institutions
across the land that simply couldn’t fit a- 5-day requirement into
their academic instructions. . " ,
Perhaps a better way wouid be to stipulate a certain nuinber of
- classroom contact hours a week and most ins*itutions are flexible
enough so they could accommodate that kind of guideline rather

" than stipulating a number of days per week the classes ought to

meet. - .
“I'would like to support also your initiative in.providing monetary

reward, if you will, for the reinstituting of foreign language re--

quirements.

It seems to me, however, that the current language of the bill, in
addition to being extremely expensive, might lead to some confu-
sion about what constituted qualifying foreign language require-
ment. In its place I might suggest the capitation.grant be based on

a

the number of students enrolled in degree programs to which a

. foreign language requirement applies rather than to the total -

‘number of students enrolled at & particular institution.

That might be a most cost-effective way’ to go about it, and also
given the complexity of some multiversities in today’s educational
scene, it might be an easier thing for the people in the department
of education-to administer. S o
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I would like to say in conclusion, we at the center want to voice
our strong support for this legislation. LF '
Second, we want to thank you for providing us the opportunity to _ .
comment on it, and simply.to say that we stand ready to help you
in any appropriate way to assure.its passage. . L
~-=s - " Thank you. T .
Mr. SimoN. We thank both of you very, very much. e

) If I may comment on one of the last points that you mentioned—
. the applicability of this to, all schools. ) .

i I frankly purposely.drafted it so that it would have to be across
.the board in a university or college simply on the premise that:
today you can’t be an engineer or a physician or-anything really

v without some kind of a language, or you should not be. R

Mr. Eppy. We certainly agree with that. '

Mr. SimonN. Both of you touched on a problem I wrestled with
unsuccessfully in putting this together, and that is the area of
testing proficlency. - . ‘ ' .

I am very reluctant to put something in legislation for fear of
what that will do to the legislation. The Federal Government has
been very reluctant.to get into the field, as we have found jn other
areas as we have pushed, for éxample, education for the handi-
capped. : - - :

One of the great arguments against having it was we are not
going to'have qur.iity teachers but, in fact, once we started pushing
we found the quality started to improve because there was more
aventjon on’it.. We could, however, mandate the Secretary to meet
with the various associations to discuss che problem. ’

There may be-other ways to handle it. I think you understand
the problem from my perspective. - N .
. I would be interested in any comments either one of you might -

ave. 4 ) L
Mr. Eppy. I certainly am ‘not qualified to speak about what
_might be the appropriate ways within the l=gislative "environment

and given the sensitivities that there are to try to organize this,
but perhaps it might be, as you just mentioned, perhaps the Secre- T
tary might be charged with exploring the various optionswith~
respect to assessment of foreign language skills.— - .
Mr. LaNGE. I guess. I would-feel the same way in the sense that -
> —What-my-ifitent was essentially to bring this issue up front and say
that I think it is something that needs to be handled, perhaps net
in the .bill itself, but certainly as a measure that the Secretary
might deal with in some way if, however, instructions were to be
given, but I think inorder for us to deal with the issue of efficien-
¢y, which is a word that is used in the bill, we can’t know, that
unless we do have the appropriate measures to examine language -
learning and what students actually do learn in programs. Ll
Mr. Eppy. The tests that do exist now, the old tests that éxist
. Row were developed in large part with Federal funds at the end of .
~the fifties. . - A
*Of course, ‘we are faced with an ‘entirely different world than
that of the late fifties but, nonetheless, those tests were developed
at that time, and maybe it would be possible to review and find out
, what happened, how that came about. ; . '
‘. ‘Richard Brod may know how that happened.

.
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Mr. SmMoN. Maybe the answer is that we put it in the report
language—get some strong recommendations to the Department to
explore-this area. ) . o .
- When we get ‘to the point of drafting a committee report, we

" might send a rough draft to the two of you, and to Richard Brod,
and 4 few others to get your feelings on whether we are moving in
the right direction. L

Mr. LanGE. Well, Jim Perkins did mention the Foreign Se_vice
Institute procedure, and it is currently being examined in higher
education. o . :

.*.-~ 1 participated in a recent workshop at the Institute, as a matter,
" of fact, last week, and one of my assignments.as’'a result of that .
* workshop is to begin to-examine the usefulness and the use of that °

orocedure,in the secondary. schools. T e
" That is an assignment that I am carrying out because we are

going to have another meeting of the workshop in-early December,

so we will begin to look "at that issue as a possibility for or to

. examine proficiency of students a$ they learn a foreign language.

Mr. SiMoN. Yoa mentioned in your statement, Dale, part of the;
total legislative package. I know you are aware of this; but some of
the others may not be.. . : >

We adopted an amendment last week on the Foreign Service Act
which says that the Secretary of State raust designate as of October
1 of next year to be effective by 1983 at least for two 'Em'bassies,*
where everyone there must speak the language of that country,
which will be kind of an interesting experiment.

You also mention the bilingual.programs. I couldn’t agree more.- |
In fact, our bilingual programs are monolingual generally. We are -
_not really using that potential resource.

I gather what you are:suggesting also is that maybe we ought to
set aside a few milliorr dollars for ‘some experimental demonstra-
tion program. . . : T

Mr. LANGE. That is correct;-~do_pot say that specifically. I am
concerned that we-don’t know very much about different learning
environments, and that is why I did indicate that perhaps we need’
to examine in a careful way the different learning environments.

"To deal with the issue of efficiency, we need to know what each -
program can do, and that also then relates to, I think, the ability to
know what students are capable of when they do enter higher
education, and that is, as' Mr. Perkins has rightfully indicated, we
do need to have along sequence of language learning; and it’is
only by having evaluated the different learning environments that.’
we are going to be able to know how everything fits together, so !
that continual language learning can take place. 4 ‘

Mr. SiMon. You also mentioned a 2-year problem and I récognize ;
it is a problem: As you reflect on this, any concrete language that

- you would recommend I would be happy to listen to. - :

Mr. Eppy. I am wondering whether the bill itself is the appropri- *
ate place for that. It could be that the legislative history could
indicate a preference for performance-based or proficiency-type re-
quirements and also regulations for the implementation of the -
legislation certaix;ll}"' could, as I say, give a higher priority even to
institutions that &vant that next step or try to take that next step.

o
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" Mr. SimoN. That is kind of my presentation. It is very difficult
once you try and put something into the statute. ‘o
. .Mr. Stack? : b . : : :
. " Mr. Srack. I would simply like to thank the witnesses for their
very pravocative and helpful testimony. They have given us much
.- to reffect upon. L '
Mr. SimMon. We thank both of you. -
: Unfortunately, we have a rnllcall over on the floor right now, so,
) - we will take a 10-minute recess before we hear from our next twg
v witnesses, ' S : »
[A short recess was taken.] - . ) : / o
Mr. SiMoN. The subcommittee will restime. K7 )

. Our next panel is composed of Robert Wallace éilmqw;"Global
K Perspectives, Inc,, and Joharna Mendelson, Joint National Com- -
mittee for Languages. . ‘ ' '

- If the two of you can take the witness stand please? .

'STATEMENTS OF ROBERT WALLACE GILMORE, CHAIRMAN, EX-
\ECUTIVE COMMITTEE, GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES INC.’ ACCOM.
PANIED BY ANDREW SMITH, DIRECTOR OF PROGRAM DE-
VELOPMENT; JOHANNA MENDELSON, JOINT NATIONAL COM.
MITTEE FOR LANGUAGES . -

STATEMENT OF ROBERT WALLACE CILMORE, .CHAIRMAN, EX- -
ECUTIVE COMMITTEE, GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES INC., ACCOM-

) - PANIED BY ANDREW SMITH, DIRECTOR OF PROGRAM DE. .

VELOPMENT—"

) Ml:’ GILMORE. Can we get our project director, Andrew Smith, up
ere? . - :
Mr. Simon. If you will identify yourself for the record.
Mr. Swrth. Andrew -Smith, "director of program development.
Mr. SimonN. We do not have you listed as a witness,.but you may
wish to respond to questions. : : T :
Mr. Gilmore, we welcome you. This is one of those days where I
am welcoming old friends and it is good 40 welcome another.
, Mr. GILMORE. Maybe you live in too narrow a circle. - -
. Mr. SiMON. That may be true. » .
®  We will enfer,your statement in the. record and proceed however;
you wish. . ) ' e . . @5
Mr. Grumore. I will read it. It is quite short. _ '
My name is Robert Wallace Gilmore, past president of Global
Perspectives in Education, Ific, GPE, and currently chairman of its
‘executive committee. : oo :
‘GPE is a, private, nonprofit organization which seeks to encour-
" age democratic values and national citizenship competence through
_ improving our people’s knowledge of and abilities to cope with an
"'~ increasingly interdependent and conflict-prone world. e
John Richardson, Clark Kerr, Harlan Cleveland;- Steven Rhine-
smith and most of those people have worked in the past in interna-
.. tional fields. : : ' S o v
‘.. 7 Our programs-focus mainly on elementary and secondary educa-
’ tion, but we work closely with key ~ducators and community lead-
ers at all levels. They include the publication of a quarterly jour-
nal, Intercom, leadership conferences, a national. clearinghouse,
reaching educators in all States, and cooperative efforts such as the

v
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Washington/@lobal/International Coalition, engaging 40 national
8 educational organizations and assoeiations.
. ” 1 appreciate the opportunity to appear before you today and on
behalf of GPE, I would like to commend the subcommittee for its
" interest and efforts in foreign language and global/international
education. . ' . ,

We, too, are convinced that the meed is urgent to increase the
capacity of educators at all levels to improve citizen competence in
a global age. Foreign language studies clearly remains an impor-
tant aspect of this and therefore we endorse the purpose of the

. H.R. 7580 and House Concurrent Resolution 301. - .

-1 would like to concentrate my testimony on the elementary and
secondary sections of H.R. 7530. _ .

We strongly concur in the need for improyéd teaching/learning
&f foreign languages in elementary and secondary educational in-
sstitutions. Two important:elements in meeting-this -national educa-
tional need are an increase in the number of students éxposed to
foreign language instruction and, perhaps more. important, an im-
provement in the quality of instruction. - ,

" H.R. 7580 seeks to encourage the broad implementation: of pro-
grams in elementary and secondary schools through the capitation
section 3(b)1), which provides for funds distributed on-the basis of
the number of students involved in qualified elementary foreign
. language courses. T . .
" While the intent of this-section is laudable, it raises several -
“concerns. The amount of money requested for this provision is
considerable, presuming for the moment that it will be fully
funded, but we feel that its impact, if divided among all the, ele-
mentary schools in' America, would be minimal. _ ‘

We believe appropriations ‘#ould have to be increased consider-
ably if we seek a siiniﬁcant impact on every American elementary
school. We do-not challenge oal, but we feel that, especially in
this time of fiscal concerp’and belt tightening;.the capitation for-
mula is not the optimunf method through which to reach all the
schools in our country.- . .

A second concern is related to the nature of the capitation. We
feel that the limited funds available should go to those schools that .
wish to improve the quality of their foreign language instruction,
~ Furthermore, allocation on a simple head count of students en-

X rolled in programs can easily lead- to abuse. While consensus on
criteria for quality control are difficult to achieve, it is only b

a

confronting this difficulty that we can improve programs:
We .do not feel that any one particular type of foreign language
_teaching program,‘that is, immersion, should be set up as a nation-
al norm at this time. We are not against immersion. Indeed, -we
,oe feel that the act should be revised to encourage diversity of ap-
_proach and experimentation, and should particularly encourage °.
*  %interdisciplinary programs. . o
. Without some attempt to set standards whereby funds would be
_dwarded based on schools’ willingness to promote instructional
quality, the funds provided here may not promote the purposes set

.. forth in the act. _ -
One element which we feel is essential to a ‘quality program is
the inclusion of a global/international perspective. Through such

. o
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However, studies have already been conducted and the need for.
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programs students can learn not only a specific language and some
aspects of a specific culture, but can also gain an understanding of

the deeper value of recognizing human cc')mmonalities;and respect-

-ing human differences. .
- Our small planet is inhabited by individuals who speak hun-
dreds, if not thousands, of languages and dialects and who do not
share our American culture. Yet what they do as individuals and
in-the aggregate affects the way we live, and what we do has a
profound impact on them, : :
Learning how to cope with this increasing interaction will not
necessarily be comfortable but it is essential if we are to preserve
and expand American democratic values. '
For those reasons we recommend the elimination of the capita-
tion formula and its replacement with: (1) The encouragement of
~exemplary programs throughout the’country through grants de-

signed to maintain an appropriate balance between urban, subur-

ban, and rural schools; (2) the encouragement of a global/interna-
tional elément within'all programs funded under the act. .
Section 3¢c) provides for a survey-of the effectiveness of foreign
Janguage trdining at the secondary level. Improved information
out the status of-different aspects of education is always wel-

y
* Y

improved instruction at the secondary level has been clearly dem-
onstrated, We feel strongly that action to correct'this state of
affairs need not wait for a‘survey to tell us again that we need

corrective measures. If the study is to be conducted, we urge that it

be broadened to include a shrvey of international/glo}?al studies
programs at the setondary level. - . .
We .heartily endorsesHouse Concurrent Resolution 301 and are

particularly pleased with- it§ approach, which brings together for-

eign language study and-international studies. We feel that H.R.
7580 }vlvould be greatly improved by the addition” of this joint ap-
proach. . = . : -

* Again, I would like to thank the subcommitte€ for its interest in
foreign language and international studies. We are convinced that
this and future legislation can help us build on our American
democratic traditions and prepare our .youth for the challenges of

" national citizenship in’a global age,

Thank you." : - .

Mr. SiMON. We thank you very much for your testimony.

Johanna Mendelson, who has heen interested in providing lead-
ership in this area. S o : ;

STATEMENT OF JOHANNA MENDELSON, JOINT NATIONAL
: COMMITTEE FOR LANGUAGES .

Ms. MENDELSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members of this
subcommittee, for inviting me to appear before you today and to
' discuss HL.R. 7580, the Foreign Language Assistance Act and.the
House Concurrent Resolution 301. T .

. Tam Johanna Mendelson, a representative of the Joint National
Committee for Languages, JNCL, a consortium to 10 professional

organizations of foreign language educators. N
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_Represented on the JNCL are the Modern Language Associaticn,
the American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Languages, the
American Association of Teachers of French, the American Associ<
ation of Spanish and Portuguese, the American Association of

Teachers of German, the American Association of Teachers of
“ Slavic and East European Languages, the American Associations of

Teachers of Italian, Teachers of English to Speakers of Other Lan-

. guages, the.National Association of Bilingual Educators, the Na-

tional Federation of Modern Language Teachers Association, and
the Latin American Studies Association, whose members have been
supportive of the JNCL. .

It gives me great pleasure to tell that on behalf of the more than
50,000 foreign language teachers represented through the JNCL
that we are grateful to you for your unflagging support of foreign
language education in this country. '

We appreciate the time and effort of you and your staff in
preparing legislation which will mark a new beginning for foreign’
language education after a dry decade characterized by declining

enrollments in foreign language classes, and decreased ‘Federal

funding for all areas of international education. _

We share with you your vision of an America linked to the rest
of the global community through an ability to communicate in
other languages and to comprehend different cultural values.
Beyond the platitudes of global interdependence, beyond the empty

rhetoric of some of our leaders who seek greater security in a

- ‘narrow perspective, your hational leadership in international edu-.

cation, your special regard for the Helsinki Accords of 1975, are a
source of inspiration to the educators of this Nation. e
Such commitment to.a foreign language study being in the na-

. tional interest is evident today as we discuss the merits of ‘H.R.

7580 and House Concurrent Resolution 301. ~ v .

‘The Joint National Committee for Languages believes that the
study of foreign languages facilitates communication among lan-
guage groups, lays the foundation for an understanding and appre-
ciation of cultures and contributes to basic linguistic skills. Foiicu-
ing the statement of goals set down in 1978 by the Modern-Lan-

guage Asssociation-American Council of Learned Societies Task

Forces, we believe that: : -
Al] students in American schools should have the opportunity to
study at least one foreign language;
 Every American college graduate should be able to read and
converse in a foreign language; > . . .
¢All adults in the United States should -have readily available

* opportunities to-acquire or improve knowledge of a foreign lan-

-their languages.

guage. e L
. The history of foreign language education in this Nation dates to

.the early Spanish settlements in’ the Southeast and a century later

.in New England. The Spaniards were the first to introduce system-.
atic instruction in Spanish to native Americans .,

Likewise, the Jesuit missionaries who traveled the coast.of Flor-
ida, Georgia; and the Carolinas, learned the tongues of the Creeks
and Cherokee Indians so that they could translate the Bible into

4
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In Natick, Mass., John Eliot, the Puritan protector of thie Inds-
ans, learned Algonquin so that he could bring the word to the
Indian residents of that area. That language learnin neces-
sity for survival in the American  wilderness is docum
throughout early history. S ;

Even the War of 1812 was to some extent fought over pronungia:.
tion of the English tongue. Impressment was literally a matten of
speaking. While our needs have changed, language learning -has

_been relegated to a secondary preoccupation. The realities of $he
last decades of the 20th century call for a reexamination of our’
linguistic needs. : ; _— )

In a nation where 39 million people’s first language is not Eng-

. lish, where Hispanic-Americans are soon to become the largest
minority group in the Nation, do we not owe it to ourselves to be

truthful about the necessity of language education in a:society -

where a growing portion-of the population is bilingual?

Efforts such as this legislation to revitalize foreign language
instruction recalls the famous quote of our late President John
Kennedy when he discussed the U.S. efforts to insure the control of
nuclear weapons in 1963. He said that a journey of a.thousand
miles always begins with the first small step. Such a belief is not
unlike the one embodied in this legislation.

H.R. 7580 is what I call an incrementalist approach to a very
longstanding and difficult problem in foreign language education.
While it makes no pretenses at redressing in 2 years the diminish-

ing language enrollments of the seventies, it provides a major .

incentive to schools at all educational levels to reconsider the value
of learning a foreign language in the context of planning a good
liberal arts education. -

<

Elementary- schools and institutions of higher ‘education are .

given a financial incentive to promote foreign language education
through a variety of training options. Especially at institutions of

- higher education there is incentive tg encourage long-term lan-" -

guage study through financial rewards and, more importantly, in-
centive funding to promote the less commonly taught languages.-

I would like to note that the less commonly taught languages
include those spoken by over 80 percent of the world’s population,

" Chinese, Hindi-Urdu, Japanese, Portuguese, and Russian. Yet en: -

rollments in 1977, for less commonly taught languages accounted
- for-only 1. percent for foreign language instruction in secondary
schools and 10 percent in colleges and universities.

-. Encouraging students to develop proficiency in wide-use lan-
guages will be a challenge which foreign languageceducators must -

meet in the.closing decades of this century: This bill will help. to
achieve it. o o : S
H.R. 7580 does not specifically fund secondary school foreign

language pragrams. It is, however, in secondary schools that the

‘majority of foreign language educators work. Whiie the JNCL
would like to see incentive funding or model programs developed at
the secondary level, we also see how othér provisions in the bill
might.at least serve.to promote-increasing high school-enrollments;

If colleges and universities are given incentive funding, if they”
require knowledge of a foreign language for entrance and gradua-
tion, there will inevitably be a favorable spinoff to foreign language

. L . 5
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/# instruction at the secondary level. This could prov1de a first step in
4 rev1tallzlng language instruction at the junior and senior "high

‘school level,

These are areas not specifically addressed in this legislation
where foreign language professionals would ,encourage greater em-

 phasis. For example, some funding devoted.to teacher tra1n1ng .
would greatly-enhance the impact of the legislation.

Likewise, there exists a need to emphasize that language is but
one part of culture. Courses which focus purely on the bare gram-
matical and syntactical featurgs of a language do not serve as a

-'medium for communloatlng toistudents ‘the other components of
the language’s cultural fabric. :

Finally, to strengtherf the incentives offered to foreign language
instruction, ‘some study on language proficiency measurement .
should be built into ‘the legislation. There has been great progress
in testing proficiency in recent years. It w.:zld be useful to add:
such proficiency eval’uatlon to the time spent learning a foreign
language.

These are recommendations which we think might enhance the
effectiveness of the incentives provided in H.R.-7580. They are
offered in a spirit of making a good bill better.

House Concurrent Resolution 301 is significant in its recognition
"of a national need for foreign language study in this Nation. That
our national leadership has taken the time to express this need is
‘testimony to the work of the chairman and his colleagues who -
cosponsored the resolution. and the President’s Commission on For-

_eign Language and International Studies, which served as a cata-
“lyst for this reassessment of this Nation's needs, 1n forelgn lan-
-guage and international education. .

The Joint National Committee for Languages urges this subcom-.
mittee to adopt the resolution in thlsﬁongress as a commitment.to
the importance of foreign language ucation among the U. S edu-
cational priorities.”

Mr. Simon. Thank you.. Your testlmony mentions once again the

- proficiency problem, and I thlnk that clearly is one that we have to
deal with.

I was also interested in your statement: “Some funding devoted
to teacher training would greatly enhance the 1mpact of this legls-
ation.”

. There is no’ question about the value of the teacher seminars,
under the old NDEA -Act. You constantly run into teachers who
say the best thing that ever happened to me was that seminar.

The Department of Education has the authority now, but does
not do anything.- Whether we $hould broaden this to set aside a
million or two for something like that is something we ought to
take a look at. '

Ms. MeNDELsoN. It would be- extremely important to not only
improve the guality of the students’-education, but improve the

. quality of the people preparing those students. The. foreign lan-

guage people who are members of JNCL have clearly expressed a
" desire to help them, especially at the elementary school where new -
foreign language teachers exist.

It would be absolutely. vxtal to have ‘some moneys set aside for
that program. *
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Mr. Simon. So we can gét to the quality you were also talking
about. Your statistics, 1 percent of students at the secondary level
are studying the language spoken by over 80 percent of the people

of the-Earth; in a—recent report I noticed that we had not had a )

student of Albanian since 1972 at which point we had one student
of Albanian. : ; o

I have no reason to believe Albania is going to erupt into head-
lines, but one of these days we may have a national need for some
expertise in that area.

Ms. MENDELSON. They are all in Peking; that is true.

Mr. Symon. That could very well be. I don’t know if we want to
have to be in a position to rely on those experts in Pcking.

Ms. " MENDELSON. In 1967, in' Illinois there were 69 high schools
that taught Russian. Last year there were only 12, ant I think that
that is testimony in itself to the decline in the studying of foreign
languages. In 1967, there were 69, and in 1979-80 there were 12.

Mr. SiMoN. That is very interesting. .

Mr. Gilmore, in part we have covered the concerns in your
testimony, and I share those concerns. In the bill itself, on page 2
where we say in our findings: - ' ‘ :

In their foreign language programs and elséwhere in the curriculum provided

their students with an understanding of the history and culture which- influences
perspective values, and attitydes of the people of other countries.” .

I agree, we can’t just be talking about language in isolation. We

also, when we talk about assistance for elementary, the elemeritary *

level, I don't want to fool anybody. . .-
We-are not talking about massive across-the-board  assistance
because we use the term’ “‘qualified elementary foreign language

course,” and we define that as a course of foreign language instiuc-

tion usingan intensive method of instruction such as immersion, so
there would be only-a limited number of programs at the elemen-

tary level that would be funded under this program; but.we want -

. to do_precisely what you' are aiming for:. , .

The one other problem, and one of the reasons frankly for my
focusing,on the language as in part a vehicle to move in the very
~direction that .you, are talking about, it

gage global international emphases. °

. = I can tell you whether my.daughter.has had SpémiSh II or not. I

can’t tell .you whether she has, I am not quite-as clear whether she
has had a gpod global perspective in the educational product. .

I don’t know if you or your colleague would care to comment on-
that.-It is much more difficult to grab hold of from the view of the -

legisldtor. -

Mr. SMITH. We agrée; it,is'difﬁcult to grab hold of, and we want.

to encourage that this be included in“the bill. People should be
encouraged td' deal: with that-problem:-We don’t have splutions;
here'is what.a global perspective is. We hope that can be developed
over a period-of years, and we must include that in programs that
~are going to be started. o N ‘ s
Ms. MeNDELSON. Foreign language and inteérnational education
go hand in glove. I started-out as a language major and, with* the

grace of NDEA, learned Spanish and Portuguese. It was precisely -

that® ability to speak both languages that allowed me ‘to go into
research and the social sciences and allowed me to go those coun-

.  ; } 112 ’
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becomes very difficult to..
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- tries, and that lang\ age tra1n1ng was the most invaluable tool and

the most important tool in seeking-employment; and that is why I
feel very strongly the international educatlolr}a.l.o\vhole component
eomes with it.

The ability to speak the”foreign language r<is-the pr1mary goal
that anybody studying the social sciences must have with their
other paft of their education. - 4

Mr. GiuMoRre. I concur; they are both needed " .

One is the concept of the area, and the other is thge¢ env1ronment
it swims in, and it moves both, ways.

I think Ahat weé are very concerned about, of course; the lap-
guage; take Steye Rhinesmith, he has spent half his life teachlngJ
languages and sending people. afound the country.

/

/

I don’t see how’you separate them It is a matter of Judgment T

"where the funding goes. -

Mr. .Smitd. We ere talking more about more than just the lan-
guage. We-are delighted that you included studying the specific

*culture, but we are talking more about other things,.in addition.

We were very pleased with the President’s-Commission that got
the foreign language people and the entire national studies_people -

* together; and we have been working very closely over the last few

years, and saying we need to have some ericouragement from you
and say this sart of 1nterd15crphnary effort is needed. : -

.Mr. Simon. If there dre other ways of encouraging that in the
bill we want to do it and in the committee report language. I hope

. if and when, this immersion- issue is discussed on the floor, I hope
‘the.discussion will also make very clear that that is the intent. Let

me add that Bill Ford's subcommittee on postsecondary educatlon

' v plays a very key role in this.

We thank you very, very much. We apprec1ate not only your

' testlmony but what you have been doing. | .

Excuse e, I did not even let my colleague. speak
Mr. STACK, Mr. ChaLman, may, I say.-just one th1ng, that a

* Nation that can put a man on the Moon can certainly find one

student to take Albanian. Seriously, we: are all on the same chan-
nel here. We agree on what we want to d6. . ‘
The.-questions. "you ' raise are largély to mot1vat10n how we

step leading us to the .achieverent of the goals that we have

" outlined, and this is nqt ‘the end. It is the beginning, and I certaln-

ly commend the chairman for his Work in this field and thank you

for coming. o :, \

~'Mr. SimoN. And my apologles agam T s -
" Qur final witness is Mr. Richard Brod, d1rector -Foreign Lan-
guage Program, ‘Modern™ Languages Asso )atlon of lAmerlca )

, STATEMENT OF RICHARD I. BROD, DIRECTOR FOREIGN LAN-

.GUAGE PROGRAM, MODERN L.ANGUAGES ASSOCIATION OF

AMERICA . s

Mr. Brop. With. your permrssron, I would like to read my very
brief and perhaps overly terse statement with some comments.
. Mr. Chairman, members of the subcommittee, I.am Richard
Brod d1rector of Foreign Language Programs for; the Modern Lan-

uv . o
1 T

" achieve the putpose. As has: beeni pointed out, this leglslatlon isa .

i
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guage Association of America, the Nation’s oldest and largest orga-
nization of c.llege level faculty in English and foreign languages.

Our organization, as you may recall, helped provide much of the
leadership and expertise that went into the creation of Title VI of
the National Defense Education Act of 1958, , .

I am here also in my capacity as secretary of the Joint National
Commitiee for Languages, a coalition of 10 organizations of lan-
guage professionals’ representing a total of sbout 69,000 members

. with expertise in all branches of the field, including English as a'
o second language a$ well as the various foreign languages.

We are grateful for this opportunity to comment on the legisla-
tive initiative embodied in H.R. 7580 and ¢o place on record our
appreciation for the interest that the Congress has already shown

. in this field .and for the leadership that 'you have taken, Mr.

- Chairman, as founder and guiding force behind the President's
Commission on Foreign Language and International Studies and -
author of this bill. : .

We endorse ‘the concepts and objectives of this legislation and
stand ready to support it as it makes its way through the Congress
during the weeks ahead. We share your conviction concerning the
urgency of the Nation’s need for remedies of this kind, and we urge

- speedy passage of the bill before yon. .

' I offer the following comments on ifs specific provisions. .
" We. applaud, first of all, -the statement of.need .and national
interest embodied in section 2 of the bill, and would suggest: only

. that ‘the sentiments contained in paragraphs (1).and (3) be-com-
‘bined to reflect the ‘conviction that “the cultural,” economic,,‘and
security interests” of the Nation will -be” served both .by the
strengthening of foreign:language instruction, and by provision of ,
instruction in the history and cultures of.other countries; . . 8

What I mean to say is I'support the comments of Mr. ‘Gilmore

‘and others about the“inseﬁarabih'ty of the two areas, which was™ . |
clear throughout the ‘work of the President’s Commission. The ’
langudge of the two fields is healthy and valid for both of us and,
strengthens our collective canse. ' - . o S

+*  Qur profession has long since recognized that the cultural -dimen-

sion of language instruction is inseparable from -the teaching of -

language skills. In our view, the study of-language.and culture

together jconstitute one of the “basics” of education and an essen-

tial ingredient of the preparation our citizéns need, tg face the

complexities of an interdependent world., ' : t

[}

I use that term “basics” deliberately: because it is in vogue in

educational circles and it is‘an easy thing for educators and State " .

" administrators of education to.regard a field like this as a frill.

* ° _ That has been the;case for a long time. 1 think the leadership of

+ +. Corigress, with the cooperation of agencies like the Department of - -
Education, can be a beacon to help overcome that particular dark-

‘nistrators-and lead-

o

_ness in the thinking: of some educational adm
ers and on the part of, the public. ' .
I will come back to that later. , L
*Second: We support the bill’s strong focus, section 2(a) on elemen: .
tary school programs in grades 1 through:6, and its recognition of
‘the need to provide incentives, not only to individual students of 5
languages but also to the institutions which must bear the expense

AN
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of planning, sQai‘fing, and mainta}ning'apprOpriate'educg\tionél pro- ’

grams. We urge, however, that in future revisions of this bill:
" First: The terms “intensive method of instruction” and “immer-
- gion” be carefully defined; o )
Second: Provision be made for linking -foreign language study
with the study of foreign cultures and with “global education,”
recognizing that such studies ought to be part of the basic educa-
tional program of all pupils; and ' ' '

Third: Provision be made for incentives to promote the introduc-’
tion of language and culture studies even in small school districts--

.mersion pregram. S o
-Again, if T may comment, it is an axiom of our thinking that

.that cannot reasonably afford the expense of an intensive or im-

language study is an opportunity for America. Therefore, should it )

deprive any group of that opportunity is simply a violation of our

own sense of educational equality and the basic principles of our’

‘democraty. :

Third: We. support the proposed survey of the effectiveness bf
foreign 'language training in grades 7 throush 12, and in com-
munity colleges, section 3 (c), but we offer the following comments:

‘First: We believe that the work of the survey can be accom-
plished with 1 year, not 2; and second, we believe the survey should

- not be regarded as prerequisite for other remedial action in this
.area. . ' : '

The secondary schools are the place where most Americans re-
ceive their first and. often only opportunity to study s foreign
language. Our secondary school language teachers ar: the largest
single group of professionals wo_rking'in the international field ‘and
thus constitute our principal “army’’ in the effort.to restore foreign

language and international .studies to a position as one of the

']

‘basics of education. -

- To comment there, I am sayir:z ;hét secondary school -language.
"teachers are the army of lead«~ship: that: we can build on. They

. many are doing a terrific job right now. Cd
‘They have the capacity to be internationalists-and-to teach-inter-

national studies, language in culture, culture in.language, as well ’

-as carry on the job of language teaching that they have been doing. -
For this reason, we hope that the present bill, or related legisla- -

tion to follow after it,will develop means of support.for model .

programs in secondary schools and for institutes that could provide

additional training for secondary school teachefs, including oppor-,

tunities to refresh their own language skills. . .
We hope also that a way will be found to provide per .capita

grants or other institutional incentives to encourage secondary . -
schools to establish (1) diploma requirements for college-bound stu: .
dents; (2) full 4-year sequences oflangiiage study; and (3) appropri-- -
ate incentives and rewards for studemts who-complete such se- -

‘quences. - . ‘e . - ' :
.~ With regard to' community colleges, we believe the Federal. Gov-
ernment can”be of assistance by encouraging the development of

s Jult-education community centers for instruction”in languages :

~nd international studies; and by assisting the efforts of the teach-
ing profession to educate community college administrators &nd

may need: some repdir, in-service training. Many of them‘;_,do, but . |
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the govermng boards to the importance of language study to the

Nation’s economic and political security.
Let me comment on that briefly. The community colleges are a

much neglected area, a much neglected level of education that .

tends to fall between the cracks of postsecondary activity and

secondary school activity.
I say this with some consciousness, because my own organrzatlon

is-virtually the only foreign language teacher organization. that has -

paid any attention whatsoever to community college programs.

They have held up in terms of enrollments, but nowhere near in
percentage, that is to say, as a percentage of the rapid. growth of
their total enrollments throughout the last decade.

Foreign languages are not well established in most of the com:
, munlty college systems of the United States. It is a pressing need.
At is_a problem that requires study. They are in many ways the
front line of a place, of language study as perceived by a cammuni-
ty, by the school board, as perceived by leglslators of a State, for
! example. .

They  lock to communrty colleges ‘as’ an example of what the
‘needs are in contemporary education; and if languages are disap-
pearing in a community college program, it is a serious and nega-

tive signal and, therefore, I applaud the attention that this bill -
would like to give to communrty colleges and focus, put some lrght

“~-_on them for a change

‘It-is_needed. : ' '
Fourth, we. applaud the brll S plan sectron 4, for providing incen-
tive grants at the-college level, with appropriate‘differential pay-

- ments in.support of advanced level enrollments and enrollments in,

the less commonly taught languages

. However, we are less certain of the. usefulness of linking incen-
tive grants to the establishment of college requirements for admis-
- sion or for graduation, when such reqiirements are stated.in 1 units
of time, Such requirements are punitive rather thanencouraging;

- and they provide no assurance that the desired levels of learning -

will be achieved.
We urge -the committee to consider, 1nstea€l the value of second-
ary school diploma requirements, mentroned above, ‘and to insist

that college level requirements be stated in terms of desired ‘levels .

of proficiency rather than fixed units. of time or credit hours. .
The task of developing nationally acceptable and rehable criteria . °

" for measuring language ‘skill proficiency is, of. course;, one that

properly falls upon the language teaching professron ltself in con-
sultatron with experts in related fields of education. :
-Much experimental work has been done, but a strong. effort is

now clearly needed as part of the larger natronal effort env1sroned- )

* by the Foreign Language Assistance Act.
We hope, therefore, that a way can be ‘found; in the present brll

<

or in subsequent legislation, to authorize special funding in support’ .

of the needed research and development of standardized proficiency
criteria and instruments of measurement in the commonly taught

languages and the most w1dely used of the less commonly “-\uo'l-t e

languages. .= - 7.
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May I comment here? Reference was already ‘made by Peter
Eddy to the,fact that testing, creation of tests back in the early
1960's was indeed done with Federal funds under-the NDEA. '
There is provision now under NDEA for that kind of grant being’
made under the research program, the very small program for
research that currently exists in the Department of Education.
"What I am suggesting here is that"a reference to research and
development .could perhaps be added to this piece of legislation,
Mr. Chairman, although, as I say, there is legislative authority
under the NDEA which is now becoming the HEA, but any recog-
nition you would give would certainly strengthen the recognition
we would need. :
. Ideally, we would hope to develop definitions and standards com-
parable to those now used by the Foreign Service Institute. If such
. standards were in use, the Congress would be able to stipulate that
grants under the Foreign Language Assistance Act could be paid
only in proportion to the number of matriculants who had achieved
a certain defined level of proficiency, with ‘a higher rate of pay-
ment for higher levels of proficiency and an appropriate differen- .
tial relating to the study of\the less commonly taught languages.
Mr. Chairman, the Modern\Language Association and the Joint
_National Committee for Languages wish also to go on record in
support of House Concurrent/Resolution 301.. We urge its speedy
passage in the current.session of Congress so that it may signal to
the next Congress and the Nation the urgency of the issue 'and the
timeliness of the remedies proposed. =~~~ . | St
. In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, let me assure you that the mem-
bers of the langudge teaching profession stand ready to assist the -
Congress in any way possible ‘in developing and implementing
these important legislative objectives. ’ : .

* - Our coalition is-a'broad cne, encompassing specialists 'in’ many
¢ ° fields, including linguistics, psychology, cultural anthropology, edu--
- . cational theory, and area studies. ; s o

We are at the same time. generalists, concerned with-discovering
~ the common human qualities that lie beneath the diversity of -
* language and culture. - . S LT
- Above all, we are skilled and’ dedicated teachers, and we offer
our knowledge and experience in -this. important new effort to

strengtheh and improve the quality of‘life in our Nation. * . -
Let me add, if I may, like Congressman Erdahl, I had an opportu-

nity to watch the Shogun program last night. i

Mr. ErpafL. I should.have made it clear for the audience, it was
- an Englishman, the shipwrecked fellow who ‘was the one trying to- -
\_3 learn Japanese. o _ . ‘
“\;Mr. Brop. The paper reports this morning that nearly half of the
viewing public. in some of our major cities are watching the tele--

vised“serialization of a novel set in 17th century Japan. Much of . -

the dialog is in Japanese, and many of the American viewers, like
the -English-born hero of the drama, are totally dependent on the :
services of ‘an‘interpreter. - R e
~ For some of-them, undoubtedly, this is their first vicarious expe- .
‘rience for such dependency. For some, it may be their first aware-
ness that a foreignnl}n age is not a set ‘of grunts and written
squiggles, but a highly's ) histicated system for the expression of

o »
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thoughts and feelings common to all mankind within a cultural
context. ) v

At the concliision of last night's episode, the hero is conducted to
- a small village and told that he must set about the task of learning
- Japanese in 6 months. His teachers will be the local villagers. If he
__v/ fails, they will be putto death. I would hesitate to suggest transfer-
NERR ring this idea to a community like Cairo, Ill,, and proposing unless
" . the citiZens shape up and produce speakers of Arabic rapidly, there

will be punishment to the citizens. '

v Incentives can be found instead of punitive approaches by our
civilization, and I trust the Congress will be able to devise a mild
set of incentives to. assist both the teaching profession and our

_ . students with this important task. . o

) I would like to add, I keep adding addenda in the nature of this,
but the points that have been made about the linkage of language
study: with international studies or global education are in our
view absolutely valid. Our hope is that the action of the Congress
in cooperation with the executive branch may help make the
Nation as a whole aware of its cultural myopia. :

What comes to mind whenever a phrase like myopia is used as
my own experience of myopia which I overcame when I bought my
first pair of glasses at age 12, until I put them on, I didn’t know
what I hadn’t been seeing, and until Americans learn another
language ‘and another culture, they truly do not know what they

. have not been experiencing. .

ly - - Itis a simple concept, but how does one tell a myopic population
that you are myopic? o . ]

Mr. Sivon. Particularly if you want to get re-elected. - .

Mr. ‘Brop. Well, I think the incentives that might work in Cairo

-might include the business community and might include the op- -
portunity for students to go abroad and travel and learn first-hand, -
the opportunity to enrich themselves-culturally. »

You know Cairo better than I, and you can tell me what their
economic needs are, but the connection: with all aspects of Ameri-

. ean life, I think has emerged from the hearings of the: President’s
Commission and from all of the other discussions that have gone:
on. .. ; .o ¥ RS ' - n

It affects our diplomacy, our ¢orhmerce, our culture and. I would”, -

also mention the media. No less a personage than Walter Cronkite * -
_has called public attention of tne failure of the media to adequately
instruct Americans indepth concerning foreign cultures, foreign

. affairs, concerning daily events that Americans are not necessarily

all well prepared to comprehend. e
_ Thank you for the opportunity, Mr. Chairman. -

Mr. SimonN. Thank you very much for your testimony. -
~ I think somehow we might very well, and you mentioned about
basics, we may very well, my comment is to the staff here, somehow
work that into the legislation suggesting this ought to6 be part of -
the basic. - : . o

I would take one minor excéption to your effort, and-that is on i
the immersion programs, they are not expensive.. They’are expen-
sive only in that they requirg a little more administrative time,
and you Have to pay a little more for textbooks. Beyond that, they -
are not that expensive, and the expetience now in Canada, Takoma

e,
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. Park, Md., and elsewhere is about one-third of the students and
" parents are interested, and this seems to be universally the case’
If you offer a program, if you are large enough to have three first
grades, you can have one of them be an immersion program at not
much additional cost. .

Mr. Brop. You are right, but:-I am also right, because there are
small school districts where a small administrator hestitates to
hire even one foreign language teacher out of fear that there will .
not be the continuity, or out of fear that if the teacher leaves, no
other faculty ‘member will be able to substitute for that person.

It becomes an_administrative question that the school adminis-
trator sees in terms of the entire budget. I am talking about rural
districts. I am talking about schools that have never had it before,
and where there is hesitation to make any kind of commitment
that would involve more than 1 year at a time.

That was the purpose of the point I made.

Mr. SimoN. Right; your comment about community colleges’
really is in the front line, so to speak, and I concur with .it com-
pletely. I guess where you talk about measurements in units of
time, I don’t argue with you in theory; but I am not sure we are
prepared at this point in the history of education in the United
States to make that jump right now in legislation. :

Mr. Brob. Right. . ,

Mr. Simon. One final question, and I will defer to 'my colleagues.

I have talked to some people in the Foreign Service Institute who °
believe that their standards and programs can be adapted very

- readily by the public schools. ~ - ‘ : !

Is this unrealistic or is it not? e T _

Mr. Brop. I am not- a specialist in testing, but what I have seen
‘by visiting the Foreign Service Institute- and what I have learned

' from those colleges who have participated in the: workshops they
" have been conducting is the following: - o

‘Of course, there is a subjective element in the evaluation of the -
way a person communicates, that is to say, the test is or an
interview is not the same as a written test where you have yes, no,

.or A-B-C answers, obviously. =~ = - T . .
_ - Nevertheless, the level of consensus that is reached by a number
- of evaluators; each responding to the same _person being inter-
:viewed in the oral proficiency interview, is very high,  and suffi--
ciently high to please.any statistician or any measurement special-
ist. e C
There are criteria; in other words, the intérviewers and the
testers of a set of criteria which they keep in the back «of théir
minds; they do:not tell the person being tested what they are
" ‘precisely looking. for, but it relates to accurate understanding of
spoken questions, accurate responses 'to-spoken questions. Those
" ‘things can be broken down into small units of analysis, and there-
by.come as close to being objective as one could hope for. * -

‘In, short, we have reached the stage of expertise where an oral
proficiency test is feasible and doable. It is a question . of teaching
the profession h6# to apply it, how to.conduct the tests, and what
we hope for, this is in the planning stage. Lo : '

Technology makes things possible that were not possible before.
Cassettes are available; .one could give:an oral interview to. a
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person on a video cassette, transmit that cassette to an agency that
" - really had the expertise in evaluting spoken performance, and
: come up with a reliable and accepted universally accepted score, so
I think the day has come when we can say, yes, we can do it.
Mr. SimoN. One of the other witnesses mentioned, and you did
also, we ought to check with the department of education, if we put
some language in here on the teacher seminar matter, whether
that would move things along a little more rapidly. : '
N Mr. Stack? ' ! U S
Mr. Stack. I would like to say this with regard to the use of the
word “basics”, that I would be very cautious about using this term.,
It has been my experiende, having been the author of a piece of
‘legislation that is concerned with the education of refugee children,
the recent influx into the United States, particularly Cuban and
Haitian and Indochinese children to some extent, that there was a
great deal of hostility in this country to the fact that we are- .
receiving refugees. - , ' o
« I can'see us going to the floor of the House, if we use the word
“basics”, being rerninded. very vigorously by certain people that we
have failed in oyr edudational system to teach the basics of readirig
and writing ar'ld*ai-éiigmetic effectively. .
~ Of course, to'an ¥ktent we have to plead guilty. We in the quiet
of this room‘in the setting here can agree that one of the values of
a foreign language is to learn more effectively how-to speak and
write English; but aside from that, I think of one occasion when 1
. spoke in my district and tried to explain- this bill, and'I mentioned
the fact of how important it was to provide a proper éducation to
those children who had recently come to the United States; and . -
that because the shortage of funds, our local school district could '
. not maintain the present level of the quality of education unless
the Federal Government can pick up a part of the cost at least..
I thought before I left the room I r:::ht be tarred and feathered;
this was a Lions Club that I was addressing, not the cream of
- society, shall we say, with no offensé to the Licns who may be
oo < present; but the thrust of the questions I got was, why don’t you
- force those. people to learn to speak English? Why should we teach
them a-language in the country-of their origin? For any period o
time whatever, make them speak English. + -
Dade County, the .Jargest county.in the State of Florida, is now"
officially bilirigual, but there is a.great deal-of resentment in. this-
country that this.bill may ignite. I have been subject to it, and I
know that there is such, I would say, latent hostility becomes very’
evident: when we ‘talk in terms of providing education along the
general lines that I have been addressing, so'I would shy away
from the word “basics” and I think we have to sell this largely on
_ the fact that we have to go in the direction that we have talked
about earlier today. ' T '
I'thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SimoN: Thank you. - '
Mr. Erdahl? T T o < B :
Mr. ErbaHL. You brought up an interesting point, and one Mr.
Simon says is well that we stress, dealing with the community
colleges. i '
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I héve another hearing I have been going back and forth to this -

morning, on vocationdl technical education. : :
- What are we doing as a society in providing some language

-opportunities for the people that are going to vocational and tech-

nical school, because here we have gregt opportunities for people to

maybe learn a good skill in that way and also combine it perhaps -

with a foreign language skill. ‘

Mr. Brop. Well, as I said, we believe language study is an oppor-
tunity and should be closed to no one. . : '

Personally, we are distressed when we find school administra-
tions or community college administrations that rigorously sepa-
rate for administrative reasons different tracks of study.

What we- have, however, found is that originally in community
colleges language study was seéen only as one of the cotirses you took
when you wanted to transfer to a senior college; and that was kind
of a dividing lie between transfer programs and vocational pro-
grams, or'programs that ended after 2 years.

What we are hoping to encourage and what has been encouraged

“in_many community college districts~across the country are ways of

relating language study to career goals.

This is a natural in many of our big cities, where, for example,

the hospital personnel will call upon the local college and ask-them

to provide a course so that the admissions clerk, and the nurses,
and. even the doctors can learn a little Spanish, -for example, to
deal with Spanish-speaking parents'who come in in a.nervous state
and need to be consoled and advised quickly. i

This is one of the classic cases. Depending on. the city, the qofn- '

munity ‘and the needs, it varies a great deal. There is a growing

<interest in learning French for commercial uses, that is to say, for
French corporations whith have American operations in the °
- United ‘States, American corporations which-have French oper- -

ations. This is growing. . -
The multinational corporations are no longer a spector. They are
a reality, and the interplay at both executive levels and at secre-

" tarial levels,; translations of documents, bills.of lading, what have

you, is growing, in all parts of the country. -~ -
- _Ifound out a few years ago, it isn’t limited to the seaports.of the

United States. I received information fron1 South Carolina, for

example, that happens to have one of the largest groups of German
and Swiss industries in the western partof the State which has in
fact produced a resurgence of enrollments, ‘particularly among

adults, in German and French in a State that is not regarded as

one of the gateways as New York is, so that that is'a growing

- ¢ trend.” : . : . -
: There is growing visibility; it needs to ‘be built upon; and needs _

to be brought to the attention of more community college adminis-
trators. . ) - Lk

. Mr. ErpaHL. Thank yoil very much. . .
" In another area that you mentioned, what' is being done in the

less commonly taught languages. You mentioned Frehch,,German,".‘

Spanish,-and so forth. . " | .

" What about the Asiatic languages; tﬁé A:frigiar; languages? What
opportunities do .we have there? Should there be joint efforts be-,
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tween educational institutions for people who have. a desire to
learn some of those less commonly taught? . . ]

Mr.. BRog. Traditionally the teaching of those languages has béen
limited to the large universities and has been partly supported by
funds that help also to support research and the training of. re-
search specialists. To an increasing extent, particularly with the
growth of ethnic groups that also represent Asian languages or
Arabic, Portuguese, or whatever, instruction in those langlages
d has spread and has grown. ‘ \

' ' It is still too tiny. The total college level -enrollment in Japanese -
was only 10,000, the tota) in Chinese about the same, Arabic, 3,000;
Russian has been dropping from the last few years. ¢
L " Mr. ErpaHL. We have.a Son who is a freshman at St. Olaf
College where once 1 stugled Norwegian. I also learned a couple of . ,
years of Japanese.“Anyway, our son started studying Russian and
he said the first words he was going to learn were, “Don’t shoot.”’
Mr. Brop. I will finish by saying that we do advocate, we have
advocated in our MLA task force report, which the chairman. is-*
familiar with, the introduction of what we call the wide use lan-
guages, Chinese, Japanese, Arabia, Russian, in high schools. To do *"- ©
this you are going to have to overcome a great deal of administra- .
tive and public inertia and, unfortunately, enrollments in high
“schools have been slipping in those languages, the few that exist.
We advocate among other things the.development in each State -
or in.each region or in each metropolitan area a magnet school, an
N international high school, that could serve as the focus. for those
. students who, reglly have tHe motivation and qualifications to per- .
severe. o 5 A : L .

It takes many more. hours of study to become minimally or
functionally proficient in a language like: Chinese than it does in
French or Spanish, so the student clearly ngeds double the motiva-
-tion, double the incentive, and he must start early enough if he
wants to relate it'to his.or her career objectives, and by giving an
early startto:the lahguage, our hope is that ‘the .student” will find
. the career objectives:as he goes thrpugh college. - . '
* Mr. ErpanL. Thank- you very much, and thank you for being,

with us today.~ - . _
- <~ Again, Mr.-Chairman, I think that the emphasis that hopefully.

) can come from this legislation will be  added to by other pieces-of _
legiglation,-and ofher activities fromr the business'sector, from:State
and local as well as incentives, to provide opportunities for not only )
learning other people’s languages, but also bther people’s cultures
and businesses. We ag' Americans must do this." : :

Thank you verymuch: L _ K
- Mr. SimoN. We_thank you very, very much fom,your testimony.
'“We have a markup scheduled -for noon on the resolution itself.

: I think it is noncontroversial. Co
I don’t know of any opposition, although a few very minor lan-
guage changes have been suggzsted. - : . ¢
We could run a copy to all of the offjces and get everyone to sign
off on it, and report it to the full committee. Y
Mr. ErpaHL. I don’t object to that and withhthe membership in -

" atténdance today, that is‘a good way to proceed.

.
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Ms gNElDER Was lt the mtent of Congréés in the résolu‘tio(n to

) eétabhsh curgiculum?-’
: r. SIMON: learly, it was not the mtent of House Concurrent

<

Resolutmn 301 nor H.R. 7580. Both were drafted in such a way that

the Federal Government is not tr¢ihig to dictate curriculum.

Simon. Yes. ,
there is no further busmes&, w wﬂl%tand adjournedq.
[Whereupon, a{ 11:4 a.m. mmittee on Select Education
of the (Eommltte n Educatx«nezand"[?0 bgr adJourned] .

yi SNEIDER. Could, we 1equest{ that be made Clear in the report" .
: ,
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WrrrTEN TESTIMONY SuBMITTED BY ALLEN H. Kassor, EXECUTIVE DirecTor, NATION-

AL COUNCIL ON FOREIGN LANGUAG:® AND INTERNATIONAL Srupies, New York City,

-

I am pleased to have the opportunity to,comment on this very significant bill
which, i? enacted, would become a landmark in the difficult and vital struggle to
improve_this Nation’s.lan e, capacity. As a member of the President’s Commis-
sion on Foreign Langiage anc Internationa) Studies, and now as,Executive Director
of the follow-up: Council on' Foreign Language and - International Studies,, I am
keenly aware of the magnitude and importance of the problem which -the- bill
addresses, and of the tremendous advantages that this Nation would enjoy if we -
could devise an effective means to promote oreiﬁ language ac?uisitions. '

Since the members of the Coyncil on Foreign Language and International Studies
have_not yet had th\ocg%gr_tunity to meet and discuss the specifics of this bill, I

al

testify in an individual city rather than officially on behal of the Council. But I

“can assure you that the Council -attaches very great importance to efforts of this -
-kind, and that it will follow this bill with the greatest interest. -

'The important initiative represented by H.R. 7580 will be welcémed by all who
are concerned with improving the Nation’s capacity to act effectively in the interna-
tional arena in the'years ahead. Practical knowledge of modern foreign languages 18
an indispensable tool in dealing with friends and competitors overseas, and in
pmvédin our-citizens with the means to make informed judgments about America’s
world role. L . , C

As has now been throughly documented, our linFuistic capacity, never ve
strong, is now in a precipitous decline as the result of the falling lan e enroll-
ments at every level of our educational system. This. downward spiral, which was
the subject of intensive analysis in the report of the President’s Commission on
Foreign Language and International Studies, will surely exact a price in_the future

- if it is not reversed. Every sector and every region of American society will bear the -

co! uences. No less is at stake than defense, jobs, and our prospects for living in a
peace L world. Of course, an intelligent and effective Janguage policy will not by
itself fulfill these needs, but it is an essential and basic element.

We do not need to look very far to see the need for improved languagé capaciti'a';ln

" this country. In addition to my duties with the National Council on Fore

fuage and’ International Studies, 1 continue to serve as director of , the
nternational Research and Exchanges Board—the o ization that administers

4 %Ses ﬁrincipal U.S. exchanges of .research scholars with Eastern Europe and the

I am sona' to report that, even among the select group of experts whom we
send, language fluency is not -always what it should be, and that the average has
been dzclining over recent years. It is clear that something is going wrong in the

- language training process: it begins too late, and the quality of instruction is often -

inadequate, - -
Nor does the problem concern only scholars or researchers. Among the almost 90
persons in the European section of the Office of the Secretary of Defense—a group .

“with very serious and delicate responsibilities involving our principal allies—there

is no.one who-is listed as having competency in even German or French. In fact,
afnong the entire staff of the Office of the Secretary of Defense, some 1,500 persons,
the number of individuals having a recognized competence in any foreign language
whatsoever is, beliéve it or not, zero. Are we really acting in our best interests when
U.S. personnel who have to handle such sensitive matters:as base site negotiations
with European partners, let alone with Somalia or Oman, do not know the language
of the people on the other side of the table, and understand little or nothing about

- how they see the world? Isn’t it time that we in this country recognized that

effective language study is not a frill but a practical necessity? - -
This bill offers tHe proslpect for a boid new approach. By dramatically focusing -
an,

‘ national attention on the language and international studies issue, and by olZering
I R R
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concrete incentives to schools and colleges, it would, if enacted, constitute a truly -
national effort that would mobilize state and local resources as well.

What is especially significant about this bill is that it includes an emphasis on. ",
early language education. All too often, young -people coming to language study for
the first time in the secondary school, in college, or even in -graduate school, find
that the optimum time for learning has already afmed As latecomers know to their
sorrow, language study-that-does not lead to real facility in a foreign tongue can be
both frustrating and wasteful. An early investment, properly managed, is likely to
pay rich dividends. . . . ' '

Another important strength of this bill is the attention that it gives to quality by
examining_the effectiveness .of.instruction in grades 7 through 12 and community
colleges. Finally, there is an important incentive given to the revival of language
instruction in our colleges and universities through the provigion that eligibility for
assistance shall be tied to a certain floox of enrollments. .

* To'be sure, the bill is,not intended to provide a comprehensive answer-to all of
the deep-going problems of foreign language and international studies. Questions of.
advanced training and research on foreign areas, research exchange programs, and
the like, will have tqg be addressed in other legislation and in" cooperation with
private and state universities, professional associations, ard the business, labor, ahd
agricultural communities, But in the long run, a sveccasful approach to these
matters, t00, will depend on a strong language-base, begun as early and continued

. 88 long as possible. . ’ i -

I want to emphasize.again that foreign language skills are neither a. luxury nor a
frill, but a necessity closely tied to our future well-being. It is time to stop worrying -
about our foreign language weaknesses, and to begin to act. :

‘H.Rl.'t7580 is a truly pioneering effort. It deserves our thoughtfut and enthusiastic

support. . ;

“

PREPARED STATEMENT OF LORRAINE A. STRASHEIM, COORDINATOR FoR ScrooL
FoREIGN LANGUAGES, INDIANA URNIVERSITY

INTRODUCION

+ While Section.2 of H.R. 7580 defines the purpoge of the bill as the strengthening
of foreign-language instruction, the raison d'etre of foreign-language education, the
devélopment of listening, Aspeak,ing, reading, and writing skills in a second language,
is summarily defined as “* * * teaching which is more than rote memorization
* * *" although there is some specificity as to the cultural understandings required.
Since this is to be per capita funding with no competitive grants, no peer reviews,
and no provision for accountability, it is difficult, if not impossible, to determine
what it 15 that the $95 million is to accomplish and how the success of the effort can

measured onte the funds have been expended.
‘ The bill addresses all the sectors of foreign language education from kindergarten
through undergraduate studies in_college or university, yet in reality it may not
serve any of these educational levels in any substantive way. -

THE ELEMENTARY SECTION: GRADES 1-6

, Although this fortion of the bill may appear on the surface to be fostering
elementary school foreign languages, the focus on courses ‘‘using an intensive
method of instruction, such as immersion” has the effects of: :

1. Eliminating all but a handful of the states from participation, for these pro-
grams are an emerging phenomenon;
* 2. Prescribing what forms elementary foreign-language education must take, co-
pptinx the options traditionally left to school corporations and local communities;
3. Addressing only the large comprehensive districts, for these programs tend to
be centered in metropolitan systems; and
. 4. Imposing federal or governmentally written curricula on this country's school
systems. . - T : -
Since 8o few of these programs exist, some arising out of court-ordered desegrega-
tion needs, and most have not been of sufficient duration to learn what skills and
what learnings really are being developed or what the attrition rates are at each
stage, this focus is a curious and quixotic one, for it presupposes that immersion
prwmms are doing thin  “right” in ways that other elementary programs are not.
: ere the thrust of H.®. 7580 really to prepare this country's youth for the
cultural understandings an interdependent world demands, a more effective ap-
proach for the mass of the citizenry ‘would be to foster strong global/international
education at the elementary level to sensitize students to the needs for and values
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"asking teachers to teach t|

‘efficiently than, any national survey ever could.

N U

of second-language capabilities .and to build readiness to leam.languages ét the -

middle, junior high, or high school levels in extended and meaningful sequences.

THE SURVEYS: GRADES 7-12° AND COMMUNITY COLLEGES A

While the section of the bill related to elementary schools specifies handling by
“State educational agencies”, the surveys.are to be relegated to the Secretary of
Education in an approach which has to be the least efficient and the most’expen-

. “sivg, for, although few states will have immersion programs with which to work, all
states have 7-12 programs.-It is also curious and arbitrary to treat community

colleges as if they -Were‘\relabed to K-12 educatiop rather than a branch of postsecon-
dary education.s R . Lo _ )
Surveying the nation's schools 7-12 is’ the least efficient way to ‘“determine

-methods by which materials relating to the cultures of fereign countries may best

be introduced into foreign language courses, “for the profesgion has been developing -
these methods, promulgqting them through the professional literature, conferences, -
and workshops, and researching them since the sixties. A relatively small grant or
two or three small grants could synthesize this information far more effectively and
And foreign language education is both in need of “methods of "involving the
maximum number of studénts in foreign language courses” and in need of ways of
retaining the maximum number of students in meaningful sequences leading to the
development of usable and/or saleable. skills in second languages. The single great-
est problem of K-12 foreign languages today is holding students into the second and
third years of study. A national survey simply defers the problem for several years
while thousands of students study only the equivalent of the first year of & second
language; it does nothing to'address it omto begin solving it. . .
ere the intent to strengthen foreign language ingtruction throughou .ite spec-
trum, a meaningful first step would be to make funds ayailable to schools so that
they can afford to:-hold segatpbe classes for each level ofithe langu: rather than
e second and third or the third and fourth years in the
same class period. At least one-quarter to one-third of all foreign-language. classes
above the first year are being taught today in the multi-level context. . -
In 50 far a8 “the desirability * * * of additional training for foreign_language
teachers” is concerned, it is a relatively simple matter.to review licensing require-

" ments and to determine that'few teachers have had adequate training in the

culture(s) of the languages they teach. An assessment, state by'state, of the numbers
of teachers who are licensed as minors in the languages would also extrict the
information desired. Again a relatively small grant or several small grants could
determine the data needed, in usable form, state by state. ’

’I':‘xeldre_al impact of the survey propcend for grades 7-12 gnd community colleges is
twofold: \ . : :

1. It presup that elementary immersion and college and university programs
d9t not lil?iave tEedsame deficiencies, \\needs, and problems as grades 7-12 and commu-
nity co , an : \ ’ t.

2¥ It defers ‘action for thousands of students for at least five years.

The foreign langun‘ge gm in grades 7-12 and in community colleges are as
worthy of per capita funding today as any other progranms on any other levels, If the
survey provisions are an effort reduce the costs of this legislation, perhaps the
funds would be better ‘spread dut over a geriod of five years and administered
through competitive grants, peer \reviews, and well-defined evaluative criteria.

If the intent of the bill is to fohter the “understanding of the history and culture
which influence the perspectives,|values, and attitudes of the people of other coun-
tries,” the students who are ingrades 7-12, the great mass of whom will be
terminating their educations at various stages of these ades, need these under-
standings soon, for they will be assuming their career an citizenship roles as these
grades finally begin to receive atténtion. | .

c R -

GRANTS TO IN!
It is interesting that the grants|to institutions of highef learning—these one-year

‘grants call for “reports which evaluate the progress of students in such programs” .

although the grants to elemen intensive or immersion programs do not have
these requirements. Since the insfitutions 'of higher learning cannot really predict
how these funds which may be “ra lf' redpced can be utilized until the sum to be
received is known, the institution fould, predictably, spend more money on testing
programs than it receives. \ -
It is further curious that this sejFon sieciﬁes courses meeting “at least five days
a’

each week,” for colleges and universities have been moving away from this schedul-
| 126
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ik pattern for the past several years because: few higher education -offerings are
five-hour courses, because of the tedium and boredom on the part of the student,
and because there'are concerted efforts to utilize both class and staff time more
effectively. A more reasoned approach might specify that the two-year requirement
consist of actual foreign language experiences and not a mixture of a first-year
language course and culture offerings taught in English. -

AN AGTERNATIVE FOREIGN LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE ACT

N KZ) i . ; @
The réport of thc.:‘ President’s Commission on.Foreign Languages and Internation-

al Studies ‘stressed multidisciplinary cooperation in " the development of young
Ameritans' “understanding of the history and culture which influence the perspec-
tives; values, and attitudes of the ple of other countries.” It was to be hoped that
any législation arising out of the mmission’s work, éven the first tentative legisla-
tive steps, would stress these emphases. - i :

Rather than ‘excluding the secondary school: population, why can we not offer

legislation built on competitive grants, specit’;ying ‘that the $95 million are to be
expénded over.a period of five or more years? Such an approach could encompass
foreign langudges from kindergarten t.hrouﬁh undergraduate collegiate studies, but

evelopment in ways that a one-year per
capital effort does not.-The peer reviews and evaluative stipulations would, further,
serve the profession:by adding both rigor and vigor to the process. In_the long run,
efforts of this kind would serve-the students in the schoogs of the Uni tates,

. American cducation as a  whole, and the-national interests far better t a one-

year offering of granlt; which may be “ratably reduced” to the putchasing of a map ’

or two and a few . .
. What is needed is not a <“c9mpartmentalized'»' approach to each of the various

_ levels of schooling and education or to foreign languages. Foreign: language educa-

tion needs the support systems provided b{ multidisciplinary “curricular comple:
ments to build upon the second-language skills develope&.to expand and enrich the
cultural learnings acquired, and to provide students with more holistic educational
experiences. In a program -of competitive grants, priority should be given to those,

programs involving one or more disciplines in collaboration with foreign languages.’.

Since we do know -what the components of teacher training have been, we do'
know that anywhere from 85 to 95 percent of our teachers are tenured in with little
incentive to change their teaching behaviors, and we do know that new conteiit and
new approaches are required by the realities of an intérdependent world, any
monijes directed to foreign languages and global/intarnational studies must call for
staff and program -development through tEe school corporation instead of att_,em%té
ing to rely on the individual or “volunteer” teacher. The school district should
involved with multidisciplinary collaboration within its parameters and in multile-

vel cooperation with colleges and universities. To that end a model of a mutually -

interactive approach for preparing inservice teachers for the twenty-first century
might well involve a school district or a consortium of regional schoo[‘; in collabora-
tion with a university or a consortium of regional colleges and.universities. In this
model, the school system or consortium of schools: T

Receives concrete, specific, and extended training for the teachers, making release®
time, meeting rooms, and some resource available. - * N

- Develops tentative working goals:

a. for individual teachers and groups of teachers, and

b. for the program(s) to be strengthened or developed.

Develops course goals, guides, and teaching materials. . -

Has the benefit of ﬁeld—experience.interns from the college(s) or university.

The university or consortium of regional institutions of higher learning, in turn:
_ Develops multidisciplinary courses uilt on the needs and goals of the participat-
m% teachers. . : .o

s provided with viable and meaningful field experiences for preservice teachers.

. Validates and corrects materials prepared in the schools.

Establishes processes for utilizing the knowledge gained in working ‘with schools
and teachers to: o ’

a. impact upon undergraduate programs, .

b. “adjust” preservice teacher training programs, and- _

c. “adjust” graduate teacher training programs. : .

The school districts and the institution(s) of higher learning, finally, have joint
responsibilities: o . .

ooperatively developed decisions as to:

a. procedures -

b. needs"

c. goals L
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. ,* d.content of “courses” for teachers ) < '
‘: e. evalution—immediate and long-range.

Classroom assistance from “on call” consultants ready with relevant and practical

advice. . v . .
| Machinery for obtaining the necessary feedback and opportunities to share prob-
ems, . - ¥ . o :

It turng out that in' today’s world George B. Leonard’s admonition is realistic both _
educationally and legislatively. . , : . '
: Not'to dream more boldly
1 - May turn out to be,
: ’ i In view of present realities, . .
: Simply-irresponsible. - - : oo .

By

N ‘e
'

. ' MILWAUKEE PUBLIC ScHoots,
DivisipN oF CURRICULUM AND AINsTRUCTION,
) " Milwaukee; Wis., July 11,°1980.

Hon. PauL Simon,
' * ' US. House of Representatives, . Lo
. Cannon House Ofﬁce Building, R N

Washington, D.C. : . c

DEAR"REPRESENTATIVE SimoN: I am writing in support of ‘he Foreign Language
Assistance Act which I consider a great initial step for the improvement of foreign
language/international studies programs. . o

1 think one of the ot strengths of the bill is that it provides for foreign .
language education at the elewentary level. Language teaching, in order to be truly -
effective, must begin at this 'evel and be. continued "through secondary and post.
secondary education. Providing incentives to school systems per student studying a
language is an excellent way to begin to spread language study. I have found that
one student’s -good experiences in a lan age program have a ripple effect, and
squort for ;g:‘fuagg program spreads in this way. .

was ple: to read in your speech that you had visited the immersion program

in Silver Spring, Maryland. We have an elementary kindergarten through gmdgersix
French and German immersion-magnet program here in Milwaukee and have found
it to be extremely effective in meeting three goals: successful voluntary integration,
extraordinary fluency in the second language and success with the regular Milwau.
kee Public Schools curriculum, even though it is being taught in another language.

We are.also involved in a partial immersion program in the middle school level
and found it to be just as effective in obtaining second language fluency and subject .
content mastery. : . . L

I strongly urge that foreign language programs be looked on as one continuous
process from kindergarten on through igher education. In this way, we will have a
population which will be able to meet the challenges of this increasingly
interdependent world: I applaud your efforts in thisarea.. ... . ... 7 .

‘ery dincerely, :

: . HELENA ANbsRSON.' :
Curriculum Specialist, Foreign Languages, . .
Department of Elementary and Secondary Education. ]

UNIVERSITY OF DELAWARE,
COLLEGE OF ARTS AND SCIENCE,
Newark, Del., July 11, 1980.

Hon. PauL Simon,
U.S. House of Representatioves,
-Cannon House Office Building,
Washington, D.C.". ) :
DeAR CONGRESSMAN SIMON: Please accept my sincere thanks for introducing the
Foreign Language Assistance Act, because it goes right to the heart of the problems
- affecting foreign language study in the United States at all levels of education.
Providing financial incentives for starting foreign language study in elementary
schools has distinct advantages.-In the first place, beginning to learn a foreign
language is psychologically a propriate for pre-adolescents. Little children do not
mind rote memorization, and earning another tongue is fun, whereas it often seems
to involve blood, sweat and tears in older students. Moreover, starting early makes
it possible to have a longer sequence of study which.can produce real competence. A
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U.N. survey a few years ago showed -that i the vast majority of countries foreign
language study is begun by the age of eleven and continues for at least: five years.’
‘The provision for funding studies of methodology and teacher training for junior
and senior high schools is advisable, because' we need to know all we can about-
helping students and teachers to be more effective, ' RS
“"At the level of higher education, rewarding institutions for, continuing or reestab-
lishing foreign language entrance and degree requirements should help to encour- .
age faculties and' administrations to realize that a. good college program should be
based on educational needscrather than the whims of students.”Strengthening of
college entrance and degree requirements will also strengthen the hand of “high

guages before going on to college. The capitation provisions should make available

" to.institutions of higher learning funds to give their language instructors release

time to make themselves more effective in classroom and laboratory.

Thank you again for your interest in foreign languages. I have already written to
Congressman Evans, as ‘well as to Senators Biden and Roth, all of whom have
expressed deep interest in foreign language study -and- international education.
When your bill comes to the floor of each congressional-chamber, 1 shall write them
again, asking for their support of this specific measure. : :

Sincerely yours, . ' .
: ) Max S. KircH, Professor of Modern Languages.

GovernNor's HoNORS Pnocmm,
VaLpostA StaTe COLLEGE,
Vildosta, Ga., July 18, 1980.

Hon. PauL SiMON,
U.S. House of Representatives, - -

*Cannon House Office Building,

Washington, D.C. : .

Drar Mg. SiMON: As students of Spanish partizipating in the 1980 Georgia Gover-
nor's Honors Program, we are very awars of the current need for increased foreign
language study. In a world of stesdily improving communications, expanding trade,

" and emerging nations, it will soon become essential for the'United States as a whole

to be capable of communicating easily with other peoples. It is also important that
Americans come to understand and appreciate other cultures.
For too many years we have expected foreign peoples to speak our language. It

* ghould be our responsibility to instruct our students in other languages and cultures

s0 that we will have to depend on no one else for translating information.

The Foreign Language Assistance Act which you. introduced into the House of
Representatives on June 13, 1980, is a good first step toward multi-lingual compe-
tence in the United States. - _ : i

On behalf of the students of the United States, we are grateful to you for
introducing this act and we are urging our congressmen to support it. Hopefully the
passage of, the act will. revive interest in foreign language study in the United States
and further our country’s progress toward friendly and understanding relations™ °
with other nations. In most major European nations students are required to take a
foreign language, yet many American colleges are presently dropping or lowering
their foreign language requirements. .

If the United States expects to continue to be a leader in world trade, our foreign
language programs must be expanded far above their present levels. The Foreign
Language Assistance Act is & constructive and positive step toward a strong future
of American foreign relations. : '

Sincerely, ) . )

Francie Mizell, Barbara Anderson, Merrie B. Chesser, Angela Clinkscales,
Yvonne Johnson, Jon M. Payne, John Womack, Jane Gallager, Dar-
rell S. Blalock, Danielle Coile, Cynthia M. Daniel, Debra Myhand,
Edna Rios, Laura L..Wright.- LT

]
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: . BOARD oF EDUCATION,
i . . Crty oF CHICAGO,
Chicago, IlL, July 10, 1980.
- “%
US. Housé¢ of Representatives,
Washtngton, D.C. . - - 5 L :
DeAR CONGRESSMAN SIMON: This letter is written in support of. the Foreign’
Language istance Act. In view of the startling findings® of _the Presidential
Commission bn Foreign Langiage/International St ies, I feel that the most imme-
diate way to remediate our deficiencier in this area is through legislation.
Although one hears many supportive comments and observations on the need for
Foreign guage instruction, the reality is that programs are being cut back or
discontinued. Administrators do not realize that these programs ‘are not frills but

.. are essential content areas.

Our young people have been short-cht'mged for too long. Training should‘begin‘on

.’ the elementary level with continuity provided through the high school level.

As Coordinator of the Language Academy Program, Chicago Public Schools, I

' gtronily urge the adoption ¢f this bill. Qur program is in the process of implement-

ing the recommendations of the Presidential Commission and the Illinois Task

Force on Education with the hoge.that these strategies can be extended to all .

foreign language programs in the Chicago Public Schools. . v
;ll‘hal;zk you for all of your efforts to provide support for quality education in our -

schools. - . : . :

’ Sincerely,

[y

: " EmEwoa L.
Coordinator, Bureau of Foreign Languages.

STATE OF ILLINOIS 81ST GENERAL ASSEMBLY, HoUsE oF REPRESENTATIVES
. . Ad ‘
HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 960, OFFERED BY REPRESENTATIVE MAUTINO

Whereas, there currently exists a strong national interest in improving and -
expanding the teaching of foreign languages and international studies; and - = .-
ereas, there has been created an Illinojs Task Force on Foreign Language and
International Studies which has investigated the expansion of these programs in all
levels of the Illinois educational structure; and :

. Whereas, the Task Force. has tediously examiried all relevant data and submitted
its findings on the current status of these programs as well as suggesting possible
changes and improvements for these programs: Therefore, be it

Resolved, by the House of Representatives o[l'_the 81st General Assembly of the State
of Illinois, That we commend the Illinois Task Force on Foreign Language and
International Studies for its- scholarly analysis of the currenf.state o teaching
foreiﬂxe languages and international studies within the Ilinois educational system;
and, be it further - ] T

Resolved, That we extend our deepest thanks and appreciation to all of the .
members of the Task Force for the outstanding and diligent effort they produced on .

~ behalf of the State.

Adopted by the House of Representatives on July 1, 1980.
- ' WiLLiaM A. REDMoND,
| Speaker of the House.
JoHN O’BRIEN,
“Clerk of the House.

AMERICAN ABSOCIATION OF TEACHERS oF FRENCH,
‘ - : Champaign, Ill., August 7, 1980.

Hon. PauL SmmoN, ‘
U.S. House of Represéntatives,
Cannon House %"ﬁce Building,
Washington, D.C. . :

Dear Mr. Smmon: The American Association of Teachers of French is most
pleased to learn of the amendment (H5376) that you recently proposed to the

oreign Service Act of 1980 (HR6790). e
- We agree with you entirely on the idea of staffing one of our Embassies with 100 -

rcent foreign-language speaking personnel. It would be one small step, of course,
ut certainly a realistic and easily obtainable goal.. .
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* utmost to support your amendment, as well as the bill itself.

- er concepts of their fellow man. In addition for
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“ Please rest assured that:'our’Associatioﬁ—I0,000 members stfong—will do o(url

Frep M: Jenkins, Executive Secretary, AATF,

- A oo :
/’ . ‘ProJect BIEN,
/. 8r. Joun PARisH ScHooL BOARD,
o Resarve, La., July 8; 1..980.

Sincerely yours,

)
/

/ &

Hon. PauL SiMmoN, = . -
U.S. House,of Represcatatives,. o
Cannon House gfﬁce Building, AV .
Washington, D.C.. . . o Vo
DeAR MR. SiMoN: Ag u foreign language graduate, I'd like to congrgtulate you on
recognizing the, dire =ized for schools to evelop skills in other languages. Your
efforts are sincerely supported, in that, many Americans are becoming aware of the
necessity to possess bilingual skills. : ) . . o
At present, St. John the Baptist Parish boasts of a very successful bili
program. The-inclusion of a child's native. language and culture has done much to
enhance zae Anglo-student’s language appreciation and ‘English proficiency.- I've
found that students’ participating in larguage instruction are apt to develop broad-
331 lanﬂmge instruction serves as a
motivational impetus tc ‘he student bored with English dominant instruction.”An-
other possible considers“ion ig that foreiﬂx language instruction places the English
dominant teucher on the same level as the student as far as the language acquisi-
tior is concarned. It’s rufreshing to hear a first grader tell his teacher that he would
be ‘ﬁlad to help her wiil: tha French lesson. . - .
ishing you success with your bill, I remain, . . — ,
" Sinceryay, ; v ) . :
- Joun C. Zewe, Supervisor of Second Languages.

 AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF TEACHERS OF FRENCH, .
: ) . East Lansing, Mich., July 14, 1980.
Hon. PauL SiMoN, B v . . , Rl
U.S. Representative, . |- - R - e 7
House Office Building, . Coe . - oL
Washington, D.C. .

. DEAR CONGRESSMAN SuMON. In the name of.the 10,000 members of the American .

Association of Teachers of Fiench and in my own, I.would like to express our to
support of the Foreign Language Assistance Act, HR7580. It is our firm belief that
this Bill must be adopted by Congress and funded at the maximum levels to ensure

. that the United States does not continue to lag in language or international studies.

Only decisise action on the part’ of Congress will make it possible for the country
to remedy what the President’s Commission on Foreign Language and International
Studies refers to as “a scandalous situation” and thus ensure our generations, and
the generations to' comg'of the proper skills and understanding needed to operate

successfully and meavingfully in the ever-increasingly interdependent world of

tomorraw.

Thanking yéu fofr yo::r understanding and cooperation, I remain,
Sircerely yours, -
L GEORGES J. JOYAUX, President.

f _ EASTERN MONTANA COLLEGE, °
. i - o Billings, Mont., July 14, 1980.
Hon. PAuL SmyoN, ‘ -
U.S. House of Representatives,
Cannon House Office Building,

Washington, D.C. . , B
" DeAR CONGRESSMAN StMoN: Your continuing efforts on' behalf of foreign, lan- _

guages and international studies are indeed commendable dnd supported by many
concerned citizens.

i
4

Unfortunately many of the administrators (superintendants, principals) and guid-

ance counselors in our public schools are the products ofschools of education that

tend to be provincial in their outlook and therefore place little value on the study of -

I
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m’ill%

Slaer

ultures.: At a, time

evies, these very administrators find

this dangerous' erosien
languages. )

- =

when taxpayers are paring down local
it convenient to cut foreign languages

- from the curriculum. Only an effort, such as yours, on the ‘national level can stop

. For optimum effectiveness, foreignrlanguage study should s.tgrt in the grades ar;d
continue through high .school. An early start.and a long sequence are absolutely ,

essential for a successful

foreign language program.

The re-instatement of a college foreign - | )
return stature to the degree earned, it would also provide strong motivation to begin

all

Sincerely yours,

Hon. PauL Stmon,
U.S. House of Representa

vels could quickly turn th
a step in the right direction: '

language requirement would not only

language study early in a child’s education. This along with capitation funvdinsg at
fe is unforfunate situation around: I believe HR 7580 is

MAURICE M. HEIDING_ER, meesso"_r of German.

tives,

Cannon House Office Building,

Washington, D.C.

DeAR MR. SiMoN: I am an Associate

OMaHA, NEB., July 11, 1980,

' Professor of German and Assi.stant Dean of

Arts and Sciences at the Universitmf Nebraska at Omaha, and I would like to

express my support of the Foreign

in the House on July 13

This piece of legislation would hel

guage Assistance Act which was introduced
P to assure that fdreign language/international

studies’ programs are supported in the schools and colleges of our country. As a

foreign language instructor, I am, or

emphasis of the stucy of

a recent trip to the People’s Republic of China, I was shown even more

course, keenly aware of the need for more

other languages and cultures.

succinctly the great importance of knowing more than one language. The govern-

1t is supporting foreign 1

their success in: internationa

ment of China seems acutely aware of its need for foreign language specialists, and -

ar.guage study at every level of education, beginning with
the third year. of elementary school. er{where I went in China I found persons
studying foreign Ianguages;(esrecially Englis

h). The Chinese seem to be aware that

markets and diplomatic circles depends on their

~having-a largfe nurber of ple who are conversant in other languages.
- 'We, on the other hand, have seemed content to allow the Chinese (and the rest of
the non-English speaking world, for that

thoughts into our language befor

matter) to interpret their -words and .

€ we even-try to understand them. That.the

monolingual American is at a serious disadvantage in dealing with a multilingual

foreigner is obvious,
As I understand it, the

Forei’gﬁ Language Assistance Act would provide per capita

. funding for foreign language instruction at .the elementary and college level and

would ‘provide for a survey of the effectiveness of forej n language training in

grades 7-12 and communit

incentive to schools and

would ‘help to reestablish foreign language

" and graduation.

Thank you for allowing me to express my
interest 'in foreign language education, and I would welcome an opportunity to
express my opinions on further legislation. o

Sincerely yours,

i

Hon. PauL E. Simon,
U.S. House of Representa

y colleges. It seems to me that t 18'would provide needed
colleges to nourish their . foreign language rograms and

requirements for both college entrance

views on this matter. I appreciate your

Maurice W CONNER.

JOINT NATIONAL COMMITTEE FOR LANGUAG

tives,

Cahnon House 7 fice Building, .

Washington, D.C.

Dear Mr. Simon: On behalf of the Joint

me congratulate you on
to elementary schools an
Ianguages. .

the introduction of

m,
Washington, D.C, June\§6, 1980,

National Comxr;ittee for Languages, le
legislation to provide per capita grants

d institutions of higher education, for instruction in foreign

{

i

o~
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" This legislation represents a significant step toward implementing the recommen- -
_ dations of the President’s Commission on Foreign Language and International Stud-.. . . |
-jes. The report of that Commission, which noted the decline of foreign language

study in the United States since 1970, -also advocated that measures taken to

reverse the trend, and promote language training as an integral dpart, of the curricu-
lum at all levels of education. Your bill will set the tone for additional legislation

cultural and international studies. : S
Specifically, this bill begins to address certain concerns expressed by language

“which will develop .the con\ce ts of integrating foreign language ‘study with other
stu v - '

professionals which we consider ve important: the development of certain stand- -

ards for proficiency to be monitored by the Secretary of ‘Education, recognition of
the importance of language study as part of the elementary education process, and

providing incentives for renewing foreign language requirements as necessary for
. college entrance and graduation. ’ : :

The complexities of global politics, intémational business, ;"md the United State’s

" ability to trade and negotiate with other nations requires Americans to use foreign
languages as an essential tool of international communication. Four hundred years

a?o British grammarian Richard Mulcaster ronounced that “The English tongue is
of small reach, stretching no further than this island of ours, not there over all.” It
is- becoming apparent as America ends its second century, that we will have to

. expand our knowledge of other languages and cultures, if we are to enter the next

incerely, : .
JoHANNA S. R. MENDELSON,

centurg as a strong and vital international actor.
; ) Director, Washington Liaison.

OLp DomivioN UNIVERSITY,:
ScHOOL OF ARTS AND

House of Representatives,
‘Washington, D.C. ) : _
DrAr CongressMAN SiMon: Thank you for your kind 1ett_er of July 28.

LETTERS,
Nprfol!z, Va., August 4, 1.98_0. )

Enclosed is a copy of the State President of the Virginia Sons of Italy to the
Vart

National President. in Cornetta, a friend of mine, wrote his létter as a response

to my letter to the editor of the Virginian Pilot. Enclosed also is Congressman

Whitehurst’s response to my letter to him. o -
Since receiving .Congressman Whitehurst's reply, I have distributed hundreds of

post cards to his constituents asking them to sign their-names and addresses and

return them to me for mailing. Most are blank except for the address permitting
them to write their own messages. So far Congressman Whitehurst has responded in
the same terms as in the enclosed letter to me. I am enco_qra%iigg'other TSEEL
members statewide to initiate similar action in their areas. I have encountered no
ogposition to your bill from any citizens, conservative or liberal. I will continue this
effort until the bill comes to a vote. Last week I was able to obtain cards from the

entire membership of a Kiwanis Club when appearing for a speaker’s engagement.

With best wishes for success in this effort, I am -
Sincerely yours, d B
- : Jonn A, FaHEY,
. Dregident—Virginia Chapter, .
American Association of Teachers of Slavs - snd East European Languages.

!

. VALDOSTA STATE COLLEGE, -
o _ Valdosta, Ga., July 3, 1980.
Hon. PauL SiMoN,
House of Representatives,
Cannon House gﬁce Building,
" Washington, D.

DeArR REPRESENTATIVE Simon: I wholeheartedly support HR 7580 to provide for
per capita grants to reimburse elementary schools and institutions of higher educa-
tion for part of the costs of providing foreign language instruction. :

Your bill comes at a time when it is essential for the federal government to

-+ provide the leadership and initiative in demonstrating to the American public the '
pressing need for more wide-spread competence in the use of foreign. languages.

}

\

}

~
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Top long has our nation suffered in the areas of diplomacy and ‘foreign relations
arid in international marketing because of the isolationist, monolingual penchant of
the/general public..If passed, HR 7580 will provide the necessary impetus which
foréign language instruction has needed for so long. . -
Thank .you very much- for- your-concern in this much-neglected aspect of our
educational systems. ' - .
. Sincerely, - - .
: C. LEE BRADLEY,
Regional Representative,

" National Executive Council, American Association of Teachers of French.

Sr. PETERSBG INTERNATIONAL FoLk FaIr Sociery, INc., ~
' St. Petersburg, Fla., July 15, 1980.

U.S. House of Representatives,
Cannon House Office Building,
Washington, D.C. . . .

DeArR MR. SimoN: Mrs. Mary Sanchez, Foreiga Language Supérvisor of Pinellas
county schools has advised us of your bill No. HR 7580 calling for measures to
improve the quantity and quality of foreign language instruction in our country.

-As an umbrella organization for over thirty ethnic groups, we have long been
concerned with the apathetic attitude of our educational system in regard to foreign
languages. We offer you our enthusiastic support in your efforts to improve the
situation. ’

All best wishes for your success.

Sincerely, -
ANNA TRAKAS, Executive Director.

Dansury PusLic ScHooLs,
Danbury, Conn., July 3, 1980.

Hon. PauL SiMon, i o
U.S. House of Representatives, :
Cannon House Office Building,
Washington, D.C. ‘

Dear CONGRESsMaN SiMon: I have read with a grat deal of interest and, I dare
say, excitement, your- revised capitation bill—the Foreign Language Assistance

. Act—introduced in the House on June 13, 1980. We in Danbury look at this bill as

the first “giant step” in the resuscitation of Foreign Language education in Ameri-
¢an schools. We also realize that this is but a beginning and that the road ahead
will be a'long and tough one. ' .

This bill does much to focus on the importance of beginning Foreign Language
study in the elementary schools. An outcome of the bill's thrust, too, could be
eventually increased Foreign Language course requirements ip colleges and univer-

- gities.

My greatest concern, personally, at this point is the emphasis which is needed on-
Foregn Language education at the secondary level, grades 7-12, It is my hope that
increased incentive for study at both the elementary and college levels will neces-
sarilly arlxd automatically see increased Foreign Language enrollments at the second-
ary level. - -

The post-elementary and precollege period is a vital one from the standpoint of
continuity and preparation. Unlike some disciplines, unbroken exposure to the

subject matter is absolutely necessary in Foreign Language skills development. The

. road to mastery and fluency, as you know, is a long one.

1 salute you for this significant.first step and ericourage you to continue to
intensify your efforts to provide renewed incentives for Foreign Language study-in
the United States. : . S -

Yours sincerely, -. s
RicHARD H. TYLER,

Chaimerison. Foreign Language Departmept.

9

o e o
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' AMERICAN FEDEKATION OF LAnoR & CONGRESS OF INDUSTRIAL ORGANIZATIONS, |

Washmgton. D.C, August 25, 1980.

Hon. Paur SimoN,
Chairman, Subcommittee on Select Educahon, Commtttee on Education and Labor.

Cannon House._Off ce Building, U.S. House of Representatives, Washington, D.C.
DeAR CHAIRMAN StMON: The AFL-CIO supports H.R. 7580, the Foreign Language

Assistance Act, which you introduced as a by-product of your service on the Presi-
dent s Commission on koreign Languages and International Studies. :
“In December of 1979, a resolution was adopted at the AFL-CIO Thirteenth Consti-
tutional Convention calling for legislation that would imiplement the Commission’s
recommendations. For your possible use, a copy of that resolution is attached.
H.R. 7580 would effect a principal recommendatjon of the Commission by empow-

" ering the Secretary of Education’to provide per capital grants to- renmbprse schools

at all leve]s of our education system for foreign language teaching. In a world of
increasing. interdependence and an ever present need for greater international
cooperation, this measure represents an important step toward expanding communi- *
cation amoiig people.

We urge legislative enactment of H.R. 7580 before the Congress adjourns.

Sincerely,
° : . Ray DEN[SON

Director, Department of Legislation.
RESOLUTION ADOPTED AT THE AFL-CIO 13TH CoNSTITUTIONAL CONVENTION,
DECEXMBER 1979’ .

FOREIGN LANGUAGE AND INTERNATIONAL STUDIES

Wherbas, in. Aprll 1978, through Executive Order No. 12054, President - Jlmmy )
Carter jestablished the President’s Commission on Foreign Language and Interna-
tional $tudies, and .

Whereas, such Commission was empowered to:

(1 ommend means for directing public attention to the importance of foreign
language and international studies for the improvement of communications and
understanding with other nations in an increasingly interdependent world;

2 the need in the United States for foreign language and area specialists
ways/ in which foreign language and international studies contribute to meetmg
thesef needs, and the job market for individuals with these skills.

(3)/Recommend what foreign language area studies programs are appropriate at

ed to-carry out most’ effectwely the commission’s recommendations.
ereas, a representative of organized labor named as a member of the commis- .
and several other distinguished labor leaders contributed greatly to the work of
is|commission . its f'nd.ngs and recommendations, and 2
hereas, such recommendations, if 1mplemented by the executive and legislative
ches would place the United States in tull compliance with the Final Act of the
Cogjference on Security and Cooperation (better known as the Helsinki Agreement),
which commits the participating countries to ‘‘encourage the study of foreign lan-
gupges and civilizations as an important means of expanding communication among
peoples—for the strengthening of international cooperation,” and

Whereas, such recommendations’ are in the national interest given increasing
world interdependence and the concomitant-need for greater international coopera-
tion: Therefore, be it

* Resolved, That the AFL-CIO goes on record supporting the ﬁndmgs and recom-
mendatxons of the Presidential Commission on Foreign Language and Intérnational
Studies, and be it further

Resolued That the AFL-CIO calls on the President and Congress to exert leader-
ship in the legislative enactment of such finding and recommendations, and be it
further

Resolved, That the AFL-CIO pledges full cooperation and support in actweiy
promoting the passage, nf such leglslatlon
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L ot z s WasRington, D.C., October 13, 1980.
Hon. Paur SiMoN, . b B e R ! A
U.S: House of Repre?ﬂ'r’:ta'tives, . v R"’ e ;. »
Canngp House Office Building, ' . ISR . * CE
Wasiﬁgtbn, DC. : . N ‘ .
‘DEAR REPRESENTATIVE SiMoN: The K-12 Task:Force of the Washinfton Global/

International Coalition wishes to submit the'enélig_siiedf testimony regarding the For- &
B

Heet includes the names of indi-
viduals and organizations:supporting the testimony. - .
- We continue to appreciate your concerted efforts in behalf of international pro-
grams at the K-12 level and encourage you to accept the.enclosed testimony in the '
spirit of constructive criticism. . :

Please contact us if you have questions. L \

Sincerely, N
b . . ANNA S. OcHOA,
. - " Chairperson, K-12 Task Force.
. + WASHINGTON GLOBAL/INTERNATIONAL CoALITION, PasT PResiDENT, NCSS. .
.- : . ENDORSEMENT SHEET ¢ . !
. + INBIVIBUALS

®

Robert Black, Council on Leaming,2271 North Ave., Suite 1200, New‘Rochellle,

" New York 10801, Phone 914 235-8700, 212 280-4618 Institute on W. Europe.
Jeffrey Brown, 118 Elm St., Montclair, New Jersey 07042, Phone 201 744-1832.
Lg'nda C. Falkenstein, 4431 N.E. Wistoria Drive, Portland, Oregon 97213, 50321;
636 ’ ‘ :

Henry Ferguson,fCenter for International Programs and Comparative Studi€s;
New York State Education Dept., Albany, New York 12230, 518 474~5801. .
. Thomas H. Geno, Department of Romance Lan es, 505 Waterman Bldg., Uni-,
. versity of Vermont, Burlington, Vermont 05405, 802-656-3196. :
Margaret L. C. Jones, Education Director, United Nations Association, St. Louig,
7359 Forsyth Blvd., St. Louis, Missouri 63105, 314 721-1961. ) C~
Ernest A. Kerstein, 78 Glermere Terrace, Mahwah, New Jersey 07430, .201 327-

8463, .- .
Gordon Klopf, 70 La Salle St., New York, New York 10027, 212 666-5478. .. :
Margaret H. Lonzetta, World Affairs Council of Philadelphia, 1300 Market Street,

Philadelphia, Pennsg'clvania 19107, 215 563-3363. . i
Anna S. Ochoa, School of Education, Indiana University, Bloomington, Indiana

47405, 812 337-3838. i

' Jonathan Swift, Director School of Global Education, 33500 W. Six Mile Road, -

L /l_)ivonia. Michigan 48152, 313 261-1250.

N

Marylee Wiley, African Studies Center, Michigan State University, Egst Lansing,
Michigan 48824, 515 353-1700. - : i : .

Williain.Work, Speech Communication Assn., 5105 Backlick Road, #E, Annan-
dale, Virginia 22003, 703 750-0533. ’ : )

ORGANIZATIONS

Global Learning, Inc., 40 South Fullerton Ave, Montclair, New Jersey 07042,
Jeffrey Brown, Executive Director, 201 783-~7616. . -

‘Law-Related Education Project, Portland State University, P.O. Box 751, Portland,
Oregon 97207, 503 229-3119. . : . L

National Asscciation of State Universitiés and Land-Grant Colleges, One Dupont

- Circle, NW, Washington, D.C. 20036, 202 293-7120.

ERIC
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Dgaz%%ri%l Council for the Social Studies, 3615 Wisconsin Ave., NW, Washington,
‘National Council of Teachers of English, 1111 Kenyon Road, Urbana,-Illinois
61801, 217 328-3870. . . ] . .

The puri)ose of this document is to present the views shared by a: number of
educational associations concerned with the quality of .global/international educa-
tion at the K~12 level. Specifically, this paper will 1) present several concerns about
the proposed legislation and 2) present several recommendations for a desirable
piece of legislation.as viewed by the K-12 Task Force. T :

At the outset, we wish to commend Representative Paul Simon for his sustained - -
commitment to this field. His attention and commitment to international/global.
competence has been heartening throughout the life of the President’s Commission

136' ;
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on foreign Language and International Studies and since. The following concerns
are presented with the hope of broadening the scope of the proposed legislation and
heightening the quality of programs that it supports.

. * I CONCERNS Lo - .

A. Federal supfaart should support interdisciplinary programs.— \ro )
If successful, federal financial support for foreign language instruction (as pro-

) at the elementary leyel may generate some increased activity with respect to
immersion -progri i eleinentary school. However, it does not maximize what
can be done to advance the total/elementary curriculum in the direction of‘aupport--
ing international/global competence. Since regearch tells us that international
learning are cumulative and that attitudes. formed at early ages are likely to
pergist, this legislation runs against such findings by not supporting additional
areas ‘of the curriculum that target international leaminfs and concomitant atti-
tudes and.values directly. Nothing-that is said here should be construed to .sl_x%gest
that foreign language Instruction should not be gupported. Rather, we wish to~
emphasize that.such support is not sufficient if we wish to provide strong founda-
tion for the development of global/international competence at the elementary
level. Federal financial support needs to address interdi iplmary collaboration in
the curriculum rather that heightening only one aspect of the school curriculum
and neglecting all others. Fragmentation and an uneven instructional emphasis will
result from the n ‘ocus of the proposed legislation. . ‘

The social studies, uge it plays a major role in developing international/global
understanding, deserves attention—though not at the expense of other areas. Cur-
rently, the social studies:program at the elementary level is in low profile. A recent .
National Science Foundation study tells us that approximately thirty minutes per

" day is spent on this subject in the elementary grades—and even less.at the primary
grades%us :

condition is a dismal one for the curricular area that assumes major
responsibility for the preparation of citizens. As we focus on ways to enhance
international/global competence, an important concern becomes how to increase the
qualit}' and quantity of instruction related to global/international education. The
need for imcreased awsreness of the world’s pecples, conditions ‘and problems is

‘ patently clear. No single area of the curriculum .can deliver on this broad and far-
reac]

goal. Collaborative and coordinated efforts are needed in all areas of the
curriculum. This need is underscored by the Report of the President’s Commission
on Fom"gn La and International Studies when it says: :
ue s & if o gensitivity to other cultures and an increased awareness of world
issues are o be major %oels for our schools, they will not be reached solely through
daching of such subjects as social studies and foreign language, crucial ag:these
onat-tentent should be part of all subjects and within the ilities

fdrther emphasized bg twelve educational associations—OrganiZations for the
ials of Education.(1979) when they state: )
ilis and abilities do not grow in"isdlation from content. * * * Students master
ekills and abilities through observing, listening, reading, talking, and writing
Bcience thematice, history and the social sciences, the arts, and other
; b of cur indellectual, social and cultural heritage.”
ally, the needs of the uy;gung to know abcut their world in a comprehensive
way—makes the case com% ing. -~
. Federal su:fport shou bazmce support for il levels of learning.—The bulk of
the 95 million dollars requested in the proposed législation is likely to go to colleges
and universities which reach only ggf of the population. While it is commendable

that the bill targets three educational :“elementary, secondary and postsecon-
dary (although it igriores middle schools per se), colleges and universities receive the
greatest support. ‘ - : '

Due to the shortage of teachers qualified to teach foreign languages at the
elementary level, few school districts are Bgloing to e able to start up foreign
1 {mmersion programs or their equivalent. A minor portion of the 95 million

ill be spent here. The secondary survey will not be costly. Clearly, the bulk of the
funds go to coll and universities to support their language programs. ile
some support for higher education is needed, it must be recognized that the univer-
sity population i3 one that still underrepresents major segments of the total popula-

_” tion—especiatly minorities and the poor. It-is ONLY at the K-12 level that the
entire population is addressed. Yet, it is the awareness, concern and com;ﬁlffneelof
g rela-

the citizenry at large that must be heightened to facilitate effective worl
tionshipe with the rest of the world. It is here that the large portions of available
dollars must be spent. Education CAN enhance the power of people to understand
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the world, and the ability to deal with its people and problems. Such power must be
held by all, not just some, American citizens. L . .

C. Immersicn. programs require that instruction be provided in the target“}ar;guage
for a major portion of the day.—Currently, elementary teachers are not certified to
teach such programs. While there is technically an oversupply of language teachers,
these are secondary and not elementary teachers. While these sécondary teachers
dgn obtain elementdry certification, this process takes time—an academic year or
more. It is very likely that only a few school districtg will be eligible Yor funding due
to the shortage of qualified teachers. . o

D. Substantial su[ciﬁoﬁb needed at the secondary level: Surveys are not enough.—
The kind of survey cdlled for in this legislation is narrow in scope and delays action

. that is alreedy overdue. It i§' narrow in that its focus is on foreign languages and
" language study is not tied to international/global understanding. One exception is

the fact that this survey links culture study to foreign 1 es. A two year survey
delays action, at a time when any action-taken, is already late. The low level of
intérnational/global understanding and foreign language competence makes Ameri-
cans seriously deficient in participating competently in a shrinking world. We
cannot afford delay; nor can we be narrow in scope. Language is but one n

* tool in building inbernaﬁ%:l/global competence. Without concomitant understand-

ing of cultures, transnatiogal 1ssues and global/international interdependence, U.S.
citizens will have little competence to bring to their icipation in the world
community. If incentives are to be given, they should be given immediately to
support interdisciplinary efforts in foreign language and global/international _ed}l,xca-
tion at the middle and secondary school levels. gecial attention should be given to
those languages that are not commonly taught but widely used. Surveys can take
place concurrently, but not at the expense of supporting programs that are needed

now. e
-

. - II. RECOMMENDATIONS : ,

) ision for accauntabitity ~Any piece of legislation carrying financial sup-

po%d speak to the uses to which tge funds will be put. The proposed legisla-
tion does not speak to this point.

B. Provision of inservice training of all professional staff,.—Monies received by .

school districts should be used for the continued growtk of all members of the
professional staff. Not only teachers, but administrators, curriculum coordinators,
supervisors, and department heads need to become aware of the importance of

. global/international competence. In addition, they need to develop the competence

to implement and maintain such programs. While teachers are part of a larger
system that must be/supportive if meanin%ﬁl- is to deva%p, they also need
special attention. Most teachers now in tHe field, have completed all certification

‘requirements, are at or near the top of the salary schedule and probably, have

Master's Degrees, they have little incentive to. return fo college campuses for more
advanced work. Rather, their continued professio evelopment requires the pro-
vision of inservice training in school districts. of these teachers will be in the
field for another twenty-five years or . Funds obtained by school districts
through this program, or any other, shoulg be to sl:ip/port 1nservice training
and released teacher time for professional ent and/or curriculum develop-
ment in foreign languages and global/international studies. Teacher Centers are
one vehicle that can be utilized.

C. Provision for interdisciplinary collaboration.—Meaningful support for global/
international competence wiil encourge interdisciplinary efforts across the curricu-
lum. It is necessary to develop-the necessary understandings, skills and attitudes to
cnable citizens to understand the world’s peoples, conditions and problems so that
they can function as competent cifizens. Such interdisciplinary collaboration in-
cludes not only foreign languag d social studies but all areas of the curriculum
that focus their content on international/global competence. .

D. Provision for support of international programs in State education agencies.—

1. Education is a State level function, implemented at the local level. The States
provide a significant, broad-based and cost-effective method of assisting local schools
to improve their international and global education efforts. The States provide
stimulation, coordination, technical assistance, monitoring, evaluation and linkages

between, in and among schools and for the teachers certified or licensed to teach in

them. To prepare for, introduce, and integrate new techniques, content, and materi-
als for coping with an interdependent and changing world society into the general
curriculum, each State Agency should establish a special unit. A specialist coordina-
tion or program unit in international education would help improve and interrelate
the foreign languages and international studies and help find ways to integrate

them into the basic curriculum. '
: t
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2. State Education Agencies uniquely reach all schools. They reach both rich and
poor school districts, both rural and urban schools as well as the suburban, and in
many States are the only agency. capable of impacting broadly upon the independ- °
ent school sector. In grant proposal writing, rural and innercity schools suffer from
an inability to compete with wealthier and better equipped schools. The direct
disbursement of funds equally to all schools would be unproductive, but provision of
technical assistance, coordination and leadership for all schools at the State level
would have significant impact in each State and across the nation. -

3. State Education Agencies require Federal incentives to establish and maintain .
international education iunits, for present circumstances of fiscal exigencies, declin-
ing enrollments and pressure on taxation are disincentives in most States for
introducing new units to their administrative structures.

E. Status surveys and information needs.—Currently, very little is known about
the status of global/international education at the K-12 level. Limited information
exists on the certification requirements of teachers, the nature of teacher prepara-
tion programs and virtually no information is available’ on the extent to' which
implementation/on-going programs have been established in schools. Further, no
assessment of student learning in foreign languages or social studies is bein§ con-
ducted §iat gives significant attention to global/internation competence. Legislation
is needed that would support the collection of needed information on a continuous

e

135









